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Ronson Europe N.V.
Letter from the CEO

To our shareholders

The year 2014 was characterized by mixed trendthénglobal economy. With the lingering effects bé t2008
financial crisis still impacting many countries anal the world, the Polish economy continued to geeegrowth and
general stability, despite the crisis in Easterrrdife, which unfolded during the year and resultadpngst other
matters, in the growing economic isolation of Rassin important Polish trade partner. In 2014,Rbésh economy
grew by approximately 3.2%, while unemployment fellapproximately 11.5%, with many of the largeti§tocities

maintaining rates around 5%. According to many ecats, the Polish economy is expected to growrtntteer 3.0%
to 3.5% in 2015.

During 2014, the residential market in Poland corgd to show signs of growth both on the demandoanithe supply
side. In 2014, construction commenced on 148,000 nesidential units in Poland, which is an increatever 16%
compared to 2013. The total number of building permranted during 2014 amounted to 157,000, winels 13%
higher than the year before. However, an increasimgply of residential apartments becoming avaglabla number of
major Polish metropolitan areas beginning in l&i&resulted in the overall stabilization of restia¢e prices last year.

H|ghl|ghts for Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Companyriohg 2014 include:
The pre-sale of 711 units which exceeded the Cogipautans for 2014 and represented the highestyeatput
in the Company’s history;

- Delivery of 469 units to our customers, which wassy similar result to the 2013 record,

- Completion of construction works on 3 projects (Esgo I, Miody Grunwald | and Chilli Ill) resulting the
receipt of permits for occupancy for 396 units;

- Commencement of construction of 6 projects (SakuraVerdis IV, Moko I, Miody Grunwald II, Kamienica
Jezyce | and Panoramika Il), representing a total5# @nits (another record for the Company);

- Afurther strengthening of Ronson’s brand nameltiesufrom its overall activities.

The foregoing positive results were tempered byfdloethat due to a uniquely unfavorable mix ofjpets delivered to
our customers in 2014 (including the low profitégilof Mtody Grunwald and Chilli), applying IFRSandards, the
Company reported — for the first time since itéidig on the Warsaw Stock Exchange — negative filshmesults for
the year as a whole. The Company does not seéhthigver, as a future trend.

During 2014, in an environment of increasing cortjoet, the Company sold 711 units with a total wabf PLN 267.8
million while in 2013 the Company sold 572 unitstiwthe total value of PLN 221.8 million. Net lossr f2014
amounted to PLN 15.4 million, while in 2013 netiitramounted to PLN 18.6 million.

We continue to believe that in the medium and ltergn, the residential Polish market holds greatnise. Studies
continue to suggest that the living standards % far below the average European standardsording to some
estimates, as much as over 4 million new units mékd to be built in the coming years in orderHotand to reach the
EU27 average number of units per 1,000 inhabitdntaddition, the ongoing migration of Polish aitis from rural to
urban areas will create further demand for a newsimg stock. With current annual production toppimg at
approximately 160,000 units the long-term shortagehe residential market will remain pronounced ahould
continue to create strong residential developmppbdunities.

We believe the Company is in an advantageous paosit benefit from current market conditions. Wdidwe the
Company currently enjoys the following advantages:

- astrong capital structure allowing the Compangtéot and finance new projects;

- apipeline of projects at attractive locations;

- the ability to increase and decrease the sizeiandg of specific projects based on perceived miadkenand,;

- a highly professional staff, and

- aknown brand in Warsaw and an emerging brandherd®olish cities.

The advantages mentioned above should give the @wynihe opportunity to significantly expand thelscaf its
operations and sales, and ultimately to rank antahgdarger residential development companiesoiarii.

We wish to thank all of our shareholders for th@ntinued support and confidence in our abilityctory out our
corporate vision.

Sincerely,
Shraga Weisman
CEO



Ronson Europe N.V.
Table of Contents

Contents

Page
Supervisory Board report 1
Corporate Governance 3
Remuneration Report 12
Risk Profile and Risk Management 15
Directors’ Report 17
Auditor’s Report 44

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2014

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and O8wmnprehensive Income for the year ended 31 Deceftldet 49

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position &ldbecember 2014 50
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity folyther ended 31 December 2014 52
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yede@ 31 December 2014 53
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54

Company Financial Statements for the year ended 32ecember 2014

Company Statement of Profit or Loss for the yeateein31 December 2014 116
Company Statement of Financial Position as at 3deBéer 2014 117
Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the gaded 31 December 2014 118
Company Statement of Cash Flows for the year eBdddecember 2014 119
Notes to the Company Financial Statements 120

Other Information 126



Ronson Europe N.V.
Supervisory Board Report

Supervisory Board report

We are pleased to present the Financial Staternéfenson Europe N.V. for the financial year 204dcompanied by
the report of the Management Board. Ernst & Yourmgduntants LLP have audited the Financial Statesnant
issued an unqualified Auditor's Report. We recomuiiie shareholders to adopt the Financial Statesvaenpresented.

We concur with the Management Board’s proposabkert up on page 126 to allocate the net loss oyédar 2014
amounting to PLN 15,431 thousand to Retained egsnin

Supervision

During 2014, there were frequent Supervisory Baand Management Board meetings and conference daits)g
which, among other topics, the following items wdiscussed:

e the Company’s business strategy;

» the dividend policy;

» the Company’s financial position;

. potential sources of long term capital, includiaguance of long-term bonds;

« aperformance review of the Management Board aatliation of the Company’s remuneration policy;
» the corporate governance structure of the Company;

. risk management and processes undertaken during#ng

» the group structure anticipating potential Polesk tegulations;

* an evaluation and re-appointment of the Companydtars; and

» the financial results and other related issues.

The Supervisory Board (including its committees) might times to discuss, among other things, timetfoning of the
Management Board. The Board (Audit committee) afset with the external auditors without the preseat¢he
Management Board. All Supervisory Board meetindd he2014 were attended by the majority of the rhers of the
Supervisory Board.

Audit Committee

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Come@tare to supervise, monitor and advise the ManageBoard and
Supervisory Board on all matters related to risknagement, audit, control and compliance to relevarancial
legislation and regulations. The Audit Committes lagso been involved in the process of assessmgédiformance
and costs of the external auditors, with whom thamittee met four times during the year.

Remuneration and Nominating Committee

It is the primary task of the Remuneration and Nwmating Committee to: (i) propose to the SupervisBoard

remuneration of the members of the Management Bdaoluding a review and monitoring of the Groupgal

remuneration policy, (ii) advise the SupervisoryaBbon matters relating to the nominations of tatipervisory and
Management Board members. The Remuneration andrisbintg Committee regularly reviews the Supervisdoard

profile, its effectiveness and composition. The outtee also reviews the performance of the memiwoérshe

Management Board.

Internal Auditor

The Supervisory Board appointed an internal audiborthe Company, which - upon request — examiravant
control procedures within the Company in specifieas.



Ronson Europe N.V.
Supervisory Board Report

Financial statements

The Management Board has prepared the Financitdrig¢ats for the year ended 31 December 2014. Tireseial
statements were discussed at a Supervisory Boagtingattended by the auditors.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

There were no changes in the composition of thedBoaSupervisory Directors during 2014. In viewtbé expiration

of their term as members of the Supervisory Bodrthe Company, it will be proposed to re-appointsigts. Mark
Segall, Arie Mientkavich, Przemyslaw Kowalczyk afiair Shilhav during the upcoming General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Composition of the Management Board

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholdestdhon 30 June 2014, Mr Peter Dudolenski was ap@oin
member of the Management Board and managing dir&tfor a term of four years. On the same date,|8fael
Greidinger stepped down as a member of the ManageBuard of the Company.

During the upcoming General Meeting of Shareholdérsill be proposed to appoint Mr Roni Sofferasew member
of the Management Board. On the same day Mr Rorgrkénazi will step down as a member of the Managéme
Board.

19 February 2015
For the Supervisory Board

Mark Segall,
Chairman



Ronson Europe N.V.
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Governance structure

The Company is a Dutch public company with a ligton the Warsaw Stock Exchange (‘WSE’). For thison the
Company is subject to both Dutch and Polish ruresragulations regarding corporate governance.

Corporate Governance Code in the Netherlands

On 9 December 2003, the Dutch Corporate Govern@ocemittee released the Dutch Corporate Governaoce Gt
was updated on 10 December 2008 by the Corporater@ance Code Monitoring Committee (“the Commitjete’
take effect as of the financial year 2009. The tedlaDutch Corporate Governance Code (‘the Codeftains
principles and best practice provisions for managgnboards, supervisory boards, shareholders amefrglemeetings
of shareholders, financial reporting, auditorscldisure, compliance and enforcement standards.Cidmemittee has
published its most recent monitoring report in Met02014.

Dutch companies listed on a regulated stock exahamthe EU/EER are required under Dutch law teld&e in their
annual reports whether or not they apply the pioris of the Code and, if not, to explain the reasahy. The Code
provides that if a company's general meeting ofedi@ders explicitly approves the corporate goveceastructure and
policy and endorses the explanation for any demiatiom the best practice provisions, such compaitiypbe deemed
to have complied with the Code.

The Company acknowledges the importance of goopotate governance. The Management and Supervisuayd8
have reviewed the Code, and generally agree vétputport. The Boards have taken and will take famther steps
they consider required and appropriate to furtmplément the Code and any Dutch law corporate gewvere
requirements and improve the Company’s corporatem@ance features. This is very much a living psscét is the
Company’s policy to discuss the topic annually wilte shareholders and schedule it for this purgos¢he annual
general meeting of shareholders each financial. @ topic has been part of the agenda for eachrgemeeting of
shareholders since 2007.

The corporate governance policy and the corporatergpance framework of the Company were approvedth first
time by the shareholders in 2007 at the occasigheofPO of the Company.

Exceptions to the application of the Dutch CorpoeaGovernance Code:

The Company endorses the Code and has appliedetbeant best practice provisions of the Dutch Crafmo
Governance Code, except for the provisions sebelatw.

Il. 2.4 If options are granted, they shall, in aayent, not be exercised in the first three yeaterahe date of
granting. The number of options to be granted shalldependent on the achievement of challengirgetarspecified
beforehand.

In 2014, the Company has granted to selected maembfemanagement and key personnel a form of variabl
remuneration, which are technically not optionsatgjuire shares but the cash value of such varranheineration is
determined by the development of the Company’seshece after the date of granting (Phantom Stotkg rationale

is to align the interests of management and kegqgmerel with the interests of shareholders. Referémanade to the
Remuneration Report on pages 13 and 14. This \arisdmuneration has been granted unconditionallgt an
independent on the achievement of targets. The @oyphall not amend these existing agreements rtplgowith
provision Il 2.4 of the Code (to the extent it wibdde deemed applicable). Considering that the Cogipastage of
development and its intention to create a simpgmaient of interests of management and sharehglttersCompany
shall not apply this provision (to the extent dedrapplicable).



Ronson Europe N.V.
Corporate Governance

Governance structure (cont'd)

lll. 2.1 The supervisory board members, with tkeeption of not more than one person, shall bepeddent within
the meaning of best practice provision lll. 2.2.

Our Supervisory Board currently consists of fivenmbers, of which three are independent within theumrgy of the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code. Two leading sbédets, i.e. Global City Holdings N.V. and U. D&@froup Ltd.,

each (indirectly) holding a shareholding and votiights of 39.8%, have agreed to use their votigts in such a
manner to procure that the two leading shareholdér®e in a position to nominate independent sujsery directors
to the Company. Moreover, the Company’s articlesssfociation state that the Supervisory Board $taale at least
two independent Supervisory Board directors.

lll. 6.5 The terms of reference of the supervidoogrd shall contain rules on dealing with conflid&interest and
potential conflicts of interest between manageni®#rd members, supervisory board members and thernek
auditor on the one hand and the company on theroffiee terms of reference shall also stipulate Whi@nsactions
require the approval of the supervisory board. Toeenpany shall draw up regulations governing ownigrsif, and
transactions in securities by management or superyiboard members, other than securities issuethéy ‘own’

company.

The Company believes that the restrictions undexibgecurities law are sufficient to govern the evghip of, and
transactions in, securities by Supervisory and Mangent Board members. Implementing additional ict&tns would

potentially harm its ability to attract and enstlre continued services of Supervisory and ManagéeBeard members
and the Company therefore believes that applyirsgltst practice provision is not in its best iagtr

IV. 3.1 Meetings with analysts, presentations talgsts, presentations to investors and institutloinaestors and
press conferences shall be announced in advandbeooompany’s website and by means of press redeBRsevision
shall be made for all shareholders to follow theseetings and presentations in real time, for exanyl means of web
casting or telephone lines. After the meetingspiiesentations shall be posted on the company'siteeb

Considering the Company’s size, it would creatextessive burden to provide facilities which enablareholders to
follow in real time the meetings and presentatimgferred to in the best practice provision. The @any will ensure
that presentations are posted on its website immhagliafter the meetings in question.

Transactions with a conflict of interest

During the financial year 2014, no transactionsedsrred to in best-practice provisions 11.3.4,8I8 and [11.6.4 took
place involving a conflict of interest relating directors, supervisory board members or naturalcaridgal persons
holding at least 10% of the shares in the compapyplying best-practice provisions 11.3.2, 11.3.31.6.1 and I11.6.2
was therefore not relevant.

Statement referred to in the Decree of 20 March 20&tb 154, determining the further requirementsnoerning the
contents of annual reports

Based on Section 391 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civdd€ (Act of 9 July 2004, Stb 370, to amend Book€) and the
Royal Decree of 20 March 2009, limited liabilitymapanies, whose shares — to put it briefly — atedi®n a regulated
stock exchange, must include a statement in theiual reports about their compliance with the pples and best
practices of the Code.

In light of the foregoing the Company confirms tirathe year under review, it did not comply full§th the provisions
of the Code, nor does it intend to comply during thurrent financial year or the next financial ydés reasons for
doing so are explained in the paragraphs above.



Ronson Europe N.V.
Corporate Governance

Governance structure (cont'd)

Corporate Governance Code in Poland

The Code of Best Practice for WSE-Listed Compafties ‘WSE Corporate Governance Rules’) appliesoimganies
listed on the WSE, irrespective of whether such games are incorporated in Poland or outside oambl The WSE
Corporate Governance Rules consist of general remordations relating to best practices for listechganies (Part I)
and best practice provisions relating to managerbeatds, supervisory board members and sharehd@erss Il to
V).

The WSE Corporate Governance Rules impose upooatm@anies listed on the WSE an obligation to dselo their

current reports continuous or incidental non-coamle with best practice provisions (with the exicepof the rules
set forth in Part I). Moreover, every year each WiStd company is required to publish a detailledesnent on any
non-compliance with the WSE Corporate Governancie®R(including the rules set forth in Part I) byywaf a

statement submitted with the company’s annual tgfpioe “Yearly Compliance Statement’).

Companies listed on the WSE are required to justify- or partial compliance with any WSE Corpor&tvernance
Rules and to show the ways of eliminating the gmestonsequences of such non-compliance or thes steph
company intends to take to mitigate the risk of-sompliance with such rule in future.

The Company intends, to the extent practicableptaply with all principles of the WSE Corporate @avance Rules.
However, certain principles will apply to the Comgabnly to the extent permitted by Dutch law. Dietdiinformation

regarding non-compliance, as well as additionalangtions regarding partial compliance with cerfAI8E Corporate
Governance Rules due to incompatibilities with Dutaw, are included in the aforementioned repavtsich are also
available on the Company’s website (www.ronsorapk) are being published by way of a current report.

The Company makes all efforts to comply with allnpiples of both the Dutch Code and the WSE Corgora
Governance Rules and to enforce such corporatetsteuthat ensures the Company’s transparencyetontst possible
extent. The Company believes that its efforts @m@reciated by its stakeholders and that theseteffuitl support the
Company’s growth and its reliability.

General Meeting of Shareholders

Per the Articles of Association* of the Companye #mnual General Meeting of Shareholders shalldbe \within six
months after the end of the financial year to degth, among other matters: (i) the annual repar}’ gdoption of the
annual accounts, (iii) discussion of (any substhmihanges in) corporate governance, (iv) discassfaremuneration
policy for the Board of Managing Directors (“Managent Board”), (v) granting of discharge to the Mgement
Board for the management over the past financiat, i) discussion of remuneration of SupervisBoard members,
(vii) granting of discharge to the Supervisory Bbdor the supervision over the past financial ydsiij) policy on
additions to reserves and dividends, (ix) adoptbthe profit appropriation, (x) (re)appointment members of the
Management Board and (xi) (re)appointment of mesbéthe Board of Supervisory Directors (“SuperwsBoard”).

Other General Meetings of Shareholders shall beé hsloften as the Management Board or the Supeyvidoard

deems necessary. Shareholders representing ig¢inegate of at least one-tenth of the Companyisegsapital may
request the Management Board or the SupervisorydBtm convene a General Meeting of Shareholdeegingt
specifically the business to be discussed.

’ Most recently amended on 30 June 2011
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Corporate Governance

Issue of new shares

The Company shall only issue shares pursuant ®salution of the General Meeting or of another ocoape body
designated to do so by a resolution of the Gemdealting for a fixed period not exceeding five yedrse designation
must be accompanied by a stipulation as to the rumbshares that may be issued. The designatigneaeh time be
extended for a period of up to five years. The glesion may not be cancelled, unless the designgiifovides
otherwise. A decision by the General Meeting taiésshares or to designate another body to issuesshan only be
taken upon the proposal of the Management Boare.pfbposal is subject to the approval of the Supery Board.

Each shareholder shall have a pre-emptive right mispect to any share issue in proportion to ¢jggesate amount of
his shares, except if shares are issued for a asin-@onsideration or if shares are issued to erapboygf the Group.

Considering the interest in the Company held (eatly) by two leading shareholders, (1) Global Cityldings N.V.
and (2) U. Dori Group Ltd., each holding (indirg}tB9.8% of the Company’s share capital and vdtes,change of
control over the Company is not possible withowt ttonsent and involvement of at least one of the leading
shareholders. In addition, the two leading shadrsl are represented both in the Supervisory Baadlin the
Management Board of the Company.

Supervisory and Management Boards

The Company has a two-tier corporate governanagtshe, consisting of an executive Management Bdtrd
‘Management Board’) and a non-executive Supervi8ogrd (the ‘Supervisory Board’). The day-to-daynagement
and policy-making of the Company is vested in thankigement Board, under the supervision of the Sigoey
Board. There are currently five members of the Mgmnaent Board whose names are set out below. Ther@sqory
Board supervises the Management Board and the Guoyispgeneral course of affairs and the businessritucts. It
also supports the Management Board with advicgehfiorming their duties the Supervisory Board mersitmust act
in accordance with the interests of the Companythedbusiness connected with it.

As of 1 January 2013 the Act on Management and 1Sigien (‘Wet Bestuur en Toezicht’) came into etfed/ith this
Act, statutory provisions were introduced to ensubmlanced representation of men and women in geamant boards
and supervisory boards of companies governed IsyAbi. Balanced representation of men and wometeésned to
exist if at least 30% of the seats are filled byhraad at least 30% are filled by women.

Ronson Europe N.V. has currently no seats takewdigpen. Since Ronson Europe N.V. does not complly thi¢ law
in this respect, it has looked into the reasonsnfum-compliance. The Supervisory Board recogniheshienefits of
diversity, including gender balance. However, thp&visory Board feels that gender is only one péddiversity.
Supervisory Board and Management Board members amititinue to be selected on the basis of wide rangi
experience, backgrounds, skills, knowledge andyinisi The Supervisory Board continues to strivenfiore diversity
in both the Supervisory Board and Management Bdaod.more information on the rules of the SupenmyisBoard
please refer to the profile of the Supervisory Bloamn Ronson Europe N.V.'s website.
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Supervisory Board

The Articles of Association provide that the Compahall have a Supervisory Board consisting oast three and at
most seven persons of which at least two Supenvi€irectors shall be independent. Supervisory Dinexc are
appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholdars foeriod of four years. After holding office fiire first period of
four years, Supervisory Directors are eligible flerelection for two additional terms of four yeaach. The General
Meeting of Shareholders shall establish the renaitiver for each Supervisory Director.

Supervisory Board Committees

The Supervisory Board is supported by two comnittee

e the Audit Committee (comprising Mr Shilhav (chaimyaMr Sharoni and Mr Segall)
e the Remuneration and Nominating Committee (compyisilr Mientkavich, (chairman),Mr Shilhav and Mr
Sharoni)

These committees are composed of members of ther@sqry Board with relevant experience. All comntesis
operate under the overall responsibility of the Sujgory Board, in accordance with the best pracsiipulations of
the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

Mark Segall (age 52, US citizen, male), Chairman

Mr Mark Segall was appointed as a member of theeBtgonry Board of the Company on 28 September 20G¥re-
appointed on 30 June 2011. Mr Segall is the fournddfidron Corporate Advisors LLC, a corporate adviy and
mergers and acquisitions boutique, Kidron Capitdvidors LLC, a US registered broker dealer, andKifron
Opportunity Fund I, LLC, a small private equity €urPrior to forming Kidron in 2003, he was the Guoed executive
officer of Investec Inc. Mr Segall serves as chainnof Global City Holdings N.V. (the 39.8% sharatesl of the
Company) and on the board of directors of Bel Fume and Temco Services Industries Inc. His curtenin as
Supervisory Director expires in June 2015. Thereasconflict of interest between the Company artteiobusiness
activities of Mr Segall.

Arie Mientkavich (age 72, Israeli citizen, male),ide-Chairman

Mr Arie Mientkavich was appointed a member of thg&visory Board of the Company on 30 June 201d, ian
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. He has Iigputy Chairman of the Board of Gazit Globe Ltth¢s
2005). He is also Chairman of the Boards of thivéahg companies: U. Dori Group Ltd. (since 2018)&kDC Rafael
Development Corporation Ltd. (since 2007). From@@® 2014 Mr Mientkavich served as Chairman of Board of
Gazit Globe Israel (Development) Ltd.; From 2002@14 Mr Mientkavich served as Chairman of the BazfrElron
Electronic Industries Ltd. From May 2006 to Janua®g5 Mr Mientkavich served as Vice-Chairman of IBBlding
Corporation Ltd. and from July 2007 to February 20derved as director in Given Imagining Ltd. Poegly (1997 to
2006), Mr Mientkavich was Chairman of the Boardisshel Discount Bank Ltd. and Chairman of the Boafanain
subsidiaries of such bank, including Israel DisaoBank of New York and Discount Mercantile Bank. blerved as
Active Chairman of the Israel Securities Authorig¥987 to 1997). His current term as Supervisorarddirector of
the Company expires in June 2015. There is no icowfl interest between Ronson and other businetsgitaes of Mr
Mientkavich.

Przemyslaw Kowalczyk (age 45, Polish citizen, male)

Mr Przemyslaw Kowalczyk was appointed as a memlbe¢he Supervisory Board on 30 June 2011. Since 2040
Kowalczyk is an independent business consultantogedates as financial and investment advisorrange of small
and medium enterprises in Poland. From 2002 to 20@%as member of the management board at VollexswBgnk
Polska Group. Prior to that, from 1994 to 2002,Hémwalczyk was active in the banking sector in b8thitzerland and
Poland, and held various positions including theadH®f the Treasury Department with BankgesellscBailin
(Polska) S.A.. His current term as Supervisory €iwe expires in June 2015. There is no conflicintérest between
the Company and other business activities of Mr Klowyk.
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Composition of the Supervisory Board (cont’d)

Reuven Sharoni (age 77, Israeli citizen, male)

Mr Reuven Sharoni was appointed as a member ddtipervisory Board on 23 June 2008 and re-appomte2B June
2012. Mr Sharoni’s recent positions include DepMgnager and head of Non Life Arieh Insurance Cormgplaal.
from 1980 to 1984. In the years 1984 to 2000, lledaas Deputy General Managing Director and fro®02@ntil 2002
as the General Managing Director of Arieh Insuragmmpany Ltd. Since 2003, Mr Sharoni has been diveac
chairman of Shirbit Insurance Company Ltd.. Hisreat term as Supervisory Director expires in Jub&62 There is
no conflict of interest between the Company ane@iobusiness activities of Mr Sharoni.

Yair Shilhav (age 56, Israeli citizen, male)

Mr Yair Shilhav was appointed as a member of thpeBrisory Board on 28 September 2007 and re-apgubioh 30
June 2011, and he is the Chairman of the Audit Citteen Mr Shilhav is member of the Supervisory Bband
Chairman of the Audit Committee of Global City Himigs N.V. (the 39.8% shareholder of the Companijc&2004,
Mr Shilhav has been the owner of a business cadngutiffice. Between 2000 and 2003, he was a mermbéhe

executive directory committee of the audit firm,n8&kh Chaikin, a member of KPMG. Between 1995 and32b0e
was the head of the Haifa branch of Somekh Chadimyhich he was partner from 1990 to 2003. Priob¢coming a
partner at Somekh Chaikin, he was head of the gsafeal and finance department of the same firmwhg also the
head of the accountancy faculty at Haifa Univerbiggyween 1998 and 2002. His current term as SugmgvDirector
expires in June 2015. There is no conflict of iegtbetween the Company and other business aesiifiMr Shilhav.
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Management Board

The management of the Company is entrusted to thealjement Board under the supervision of the Sigoew
Board. The Articles of Association provide that thanagement Board shall consist of two or more rgemga
directors. Managing directors are appointed by @emeral Meeting of Shareholders. The ManagementdBshall

meet as often as a managing director requests tingeall resolutions by the Management Board shalladopted by
an absolute majority of the votes cast.

The Management Board as a whole is responsiblgh@rday-to-day management, including comprehenssle
management control, financing and regulatory coamgié.

The Company and its operating companies are orgdrilong clear functional reporting lines. Througthive Group,
corporate and operating accountabilities, rolesraggdonsibilities are in place.

Managing directors A and B

Per the Company’s Articles of Association, the Mgaraent Board shall consist of one or more manadgiregtors A
and may in addition consist of one or more managdingctors B. The Supervisory Board shall deterngirexisely the
number of managing directors and the precise numibm@anaging directors of a specific class.

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall grantrte of the managing directors A the title of ‘Chigkecutive
Officer’ who will be the President of the ManagemBpnard, and may also grant to one of the manadiiregtors A the
title of ‘Chief Financial Officer’ and other titled® managing directors A or managing directors B.

The Management Board shall represent the Compamg.atithority to represent the Company shall alsgdsted in
two managing directors among whom, if one or mornaging directors B are in office, at least onelldha a
managing director B.

Composition of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman (age 63, Israeli citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Shraga Weisman was appoimsechanaging director A and President of the Mamegé
Board, for a term of four years and granted tHe t€hief Executive Officer’. On 28 June 2012, hasanre-appointed
for another term of four years.

Mr Weisman served as ‘Chief Executive Officer’ aslar Building Company Ltd. from 1997 until May 30@\shdar
Building Company Ltd., listed on the Tel-Aviv Stogkxchange since May 2007, is one of the largest estate
development companies in Israel focusing on resigleand commercial projects, hotels and proteetstbmmodation
projects. From 1990 to 1997, he was ‘Chief Exeeutdfficer’ of Natanya Tourism Development Compamhich
developed residential and infrastructure develogrpeoiects in Israel. Mr Weisman holds a BA titterh Tel-Aviv
University, an MSC title from Technion, the Israkistitute of Technology, and is a certified realage appraiser in
Israel. His current term as Managing Director eapin June 2016.
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Composition of the Management Board (cont'd)

Tomasz tapiski (age 38, Polish citizen, male)

On 23 June 2008, Mr tafski was appointed as managing director A and merobéne Management Board, for a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Chiefdfinial Officer’. On 28 June 2012, he was re-appairfor another
term of four years. Mr Lapgki is also a member of the management boards of sabsidiaries of the Company.

Between 2000 and 2008, Mr tapki worked in the investment banking division of iOredit Group in Warsaw
(formerly of HVB and of Bank Austria Creditanstak) in UniCredit CA IB Poland (formerly CA IB Finaiat
Advisers). His experience in investment bankindudes mainly M&A (mergers and acquisitions) trarnisars as well
as other corporate finance related assignmentsvdsealso responsible for equity capital marketdsations, including
the initial public offering of Ronson Europe N.Ve®re joining CA IB Financial Advisers, from 1998 2000, Mr
tapinski worked for the consulting company Central Ewdpust. Mr tapiski graduated from Warsaw School of
Economics (Finance and Banking Faculty). His curterm as Managing Director expires in June 2016 t&pinski
does not perform any activities other than for@wmpany.

Andrzej Gutowski (age 45, Polish citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Gutowski was appointed asagang director A and member of the Management &dar a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Sales &fatketing Director’. On 28 June 2012, he was rpeapted for
another term of four years. Mr Gutowski is also ammber of the management boards of many subsidiafi¢ise
Company.

Mr Gutowski had been employed by Ronson Developrnamagement Sp. z o.0. for five years as the ‘Sateb
Marketing Manager’. Mr Gutowski is also a membetled management boards of many subsidiaries o€tmpany.
Before joining Ronson Development Group, betwee®412003 Mr Gutowski worked for Emmerson Sp. z 0.0.
(leading real estate agency and advisory compatheifPolish market) as Director of Primary Markatsl member of
the management board. From 1988 until 1993, Mr @siko studied at Warsaw School of Economics (Fordigade).
His current term as Managing Director expires ineJ2016. Mr Gutowski does not perform any actisitigher than
for the Company.

Peter Dudolenski (age 36, Bulgarian citizen, male)

On 30 June 2014, Mr Peter Dudolenski was appoiasethanaging director B and member of the ManageBeatd
of the Company, for a term of four years. Mr Dudhsleé has been the chief executive officer and pegdi of the
management board of Global Parks Poland Sp. msmee 2011. From 2006 to 2011, he was the chiefudike officer
of Real Estate Services Bulgaria EOOD, where he imaslved in the development of the Mall of Plovdiwhich
opened in 2009, the Mall of Ruse, which openeddihl2and the Malls of Stara Zagora and Park TowetwBen 2001
and 2006, he held management positions in M.0.aSB®OD and was involved in the development of thal Mf
Sofia. He has also been a board member of the Kfgpitals and Clinics in Bulgaria since 2012. Mrdolenski
received a degree in Finance and Banking from thigddsity of National and World Economy in SofiaylBaria. His
current term as Managing Director expires in JUdiE82 There is no conflict of interest between tleen@any and other
business activities of Mr Dudolenski.

Ronen Ashkenazi (age 53, Israeli citizen, male)

On 30 June 2011, Mr Ronen Ashkenazi was appoirgadanaging director B and member of the ManageBeatd

of the Company, for a term of four years. Mr Ashkairis CEO and co-owner of Gazit Globe Israel (Depment) Ltd.

From 2011 to November 2014 Mr Ashkenazi served B® ©f U. Dori Group Ltd. and from May 2011 to Novaen

2014 Mr Ashkenazi also served as the Chairman efbibard of U. Dori Construction LTD (the terminatiof his

office as a director of said company was on Felyr@@15).Mr. Ashkenazi also serves as Board Depiigitéhan of

Citycon Oyj, a property investment company spezxéaliin retail premises in Finland, Sweden and thkidcountries.
His current term as Managing Director of the Conyparpires in June 2015. There is no conflict oéiest between
the Company and other business activities of Mrkasiazi.
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Explanatory notes by reason of the Decree, Articl&0 of the Takeover Directive

By reason of the Decree of 5 April 2006 to implemnanicle 10 of Directive 2004/25/EC of the Europdarliament
and the Council of the European Union of 21 ApfiD2 regarding public takeover bids, Ronson Europé. lthe
Company’) provides the following explanation:

a. Capital structure of the Company
The capital of the company consists of one classhafes, being ordinary shares with a nominal vafueUR 0.02
each. Information on the Company’s shares has inetrded under Note 25 to the Consolidated Findr&ti@ements.

b. Restriction on transferring shares or issued asjtary receipts with the Company’s co-operation
The Articles of Association of the Company haverestriction with respect to the transfer of shafidee Company has
no depositary receipts issued with the Companyeeration.

c. Duty to report interests in the Company

The Company has been notified regarding sharel®ldéth a substantial holding in accordance with &et on
Financial Supervision (3% or more) in the Compahby: |.T.R. 2012 B.V (ultimately controlled by Glob&ity
Holdings N.V.), U Dori Group Ltd. (indirectly), Meife Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny and ING Otwarty Husz
Emerytalny.

d. Special controlling rights
The Company has issued no shares with specialatiomdrrights.

e. Employees’ shares
The Company currently does not hold any employegesscheme or option plan where the control rigines not
exercised directly by the employees.

f. Restriction on voting right and issue of depasiy receipts
No restrictions are currently imposed on votinghtiggattached to issued shares. The Company hasmusitary
receipts issued with the Company’s co-operation.

g. Agreements with shareholders

Currently, the Company is unaware of any sharehaddeeements, except for agreements among |.0R2 B.V.,
Global City Holdings N.V., U. Dori Group Ltd. andl'lR. Dori B.V., which sets forth certain rightsdaobligations of
the parties with respect to each other in conneatidh various matters, including the appointmentmanagement
board and the supervisory board of the Company.

h. Regulations pertaining to the appointment andsdiissal of executive and supervisory directors amdendments
to the Articles of Association

By virtue of articles 13 and 14 and articles 21 a@8df the Articles of Association, the General kieg is authorized
to appoint, suspend or dismiss members of the Mamagt Board as well as members of the Supervisosyd The
Directors shall be appointed from a list of nomsjemntaining the names of at least two personsdoh vacancy, to
be drawn up by the Supervisory Board. A nominatidrich is drawn up in time shall be binding. Howevtite
General Meeting may deprive the nomination of itgllmg character by resolution adopted with a mgjaf not less
than two thirds of the votes cast, representingentban half of the issued capital. The membersiefManagement
Board and the Supervisory Board may be suspenddidmmissed by the General Meeting at any time.résolution to
suspend or dismiss a Director has not been propogdide Supervisory Board, the resolution to sudpandismiss a
Managing Director is adopted with not less than thiods of the votes cast by shareholders, repteggmore than
half of the issued capital.

By virtue of article 40 of the Articles of Assodm, the Articles of Association can only be ameahédethe proposal of
the Management Board subject to approval from tige8/isory Board and the shareholders. A resoluticamend the
Articles of Association shall be passed by an alisahajority of the votes cast.

i. The powers of the board

By virtue of article 5 of the Articles of Associati, the Management Board is, subject to the approahe
Supervisory Board, authorized to resolve to isthwes for a certain period for a maximum per issfughares of 25%
of the issued share capital immediately prior &t fesue, with an aggregate maximum of all nonedsshares of the
authorized share capital. The period of authoratif the Management Board by the General Meetirghareholders
was renewed by a decision of the General Meetin§hafreholders which took place on 28 of June 20t 2ifiother
period of five years lapsing at 28 June 2017.

j- Important agreements when issuing a public bid
The Company is not aware of any existing agreemith is relevant in the context of the issuanca ptiblic bid.

k. Agreements with executive directors or employethe event of a public bid
The employment contracts of the Members of the Mdangent Board do not contain any specific clausdstwiefer to
a change of control in the Company.
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Remuneration Report
Introduction

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholdeitd lon 1 October 2007, upon recommendation of tipe&isory
Board, approved the Company’s remuneration polibicivsets forth the terms of remuneration of thenimers of the
Management Board. The remuneration for the SupmnwiBoard was also adopted at the same Generatlsblders’
Meeting.

Remuneration Policy

The objective of the Company’s remuneration poigcio provide a compensation program that allovesGompany to
attract, retain and motivate members of the Superyiand Management Boards and those who havehtdraater
traits, skills and background to successfully leadnage and supervise the Company. The remunenatiicy is
designed to reward members of the Management Baardi®ther key personnel for their contributiornthte success of
the Company. Each of the Supervisory Boards membegives fixed annual remuneration and remunergtien
attended meeting.

Governance

The General Meeting of Shareholders approves p#as of the remuneration policy for the Managenodrd. The
General Meeting of Shareholders further determithesemuneration of the Supervisory Board. Compansaf both
the Supervisory Board and Management Board is wederegularly. The Supervisory Board has a dedicate
Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman

Mr Shraga Weisman, as a member of the ManagemeardBf Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into an eynpént
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsoevdlopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The terms of his
compensation package include a gross monthly féleeoPLN equivalent of EUR 2,500. Mr Weisman i®adstitled to
reimbursement of housing and office costs amountindo the PLN equivalent of EUR 3,000 per monthwell as
certain other social and medical insurance costs. ddmpensation also includes a reimbursement asamably
incurred and documented expenses related to thepperformance of his consulting agreement uéoaimount of
EUR 5,000 per calendar year as well as reimburseofahe costs related to his and his family’s &lato Israel up to
the maximum amount of EUR 20,000 per year and gpamcar.

In addition, he provides via his consulting compaeyvices to Ronson Europe N.V. For these serhtreg/eisman’s
company charges Ronson Europe N.V. a monthly feEUWR 22,500. His consulting company is also emtitie an
annual bonus set at 3.3% of the consolidated ampraahx profit of the Group.

Tomasz tapiski

Mr Tomasz tapiski, as a member of the Management Board of RoBswape N.V., has entered into an employment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsavdlopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnthe®
employment contract include a monthly salary of PAROOO, reimbursement of the medical insurancéscaisd a
company car.
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Remuneration of the Management Board (cont'd)

Andrzej Gutowski

Mr Andrzej Gutowski, as a member of the ManagenBaard of Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into apl@yment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsavddopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnth®
employment contract include a monthly salary of P2ZB000, reimbursement of the medical insurancéscasd a
company car.

Peter Dudolenski

Mr Peter Dudolenski is not entitled to any remutierafrom Ronson Europe nor from any of the Company
subsidiaries.

Ronen Ashkenazi

Mr Ronen Ashkenazi is not entitled to any remunerafrom Ronson Europe nor from any of the Company
subsidiaries.

Remuneration of the Management Board in 2014

Total compensation of the Members of the Managemeatd, not including the company car, amountegll 2,599
thousand. Additionally the benefits from the indemtplan linked to the share price performancecalled to the
members of the Management Board (calculated basdglack & Scholes method; not paid) amounted to RI19
thousand.

Compensation of the members of the Management Baaadinted to:

- Mr Shraga Weisman - PLN 1,504 thousand,

- Mr Tomasz tapiski - PLN 526 thousand (plus the current valueheffiotential benefits from the incentive plan
linked to the share price performance in the amot®LN 207 thousand),

- Mr Andrzej Gutowski amounted to PLN 569 thousandghe current value of the potential benefitsrfrine
incentive plan linked to the share price perfornaaimcthe amount of PLN 172 thousand).

Long-term incentive plan linked to the share pricegperformance of Ronson Europe N.V.

On 3 February 2014, the Supervisory Board of thengamy adopted an incentive plan, addressed totsdldey
employees, which is based on the price performarfcthe Company’s shares (the “Phantom Stock Plahfe
Phantom Stock Plan, which does not assume any s&we iof shares and which will not result in any rehares
supply, is based on the following key assumptiorgiacludes the settlement mechanism as descrigledvb

i. the exercise price of one option under the RivarStock Plan is PLN 1.6;

ii. the total number of options is 2,705,000 (whishthe equivalent of approximately 1% of the Comps total
number of shares), and the allocation of optiongadicular employees shall be made by way of arsge
decision of the Remuneration Committee;

iii. benefits will be aggregated among the seleaatployees (of the Company or of its subsidiarielsd join the
Phantom Stock Plan through the end of 2015, of wké) 50% is awarded as of the date of the decisfahe
Remuneration Committee approving the Phantom S®bak, (b) 25% as of the end of 2014, and (c) 25%hby
end of 2015;

iv. employees participating in the Phantom StocknPhaintain the right to exercise their optionsiluhe end of
2017 (or a maximum of two years from the date t@yno longer employed by the Ronson Group);

v. upon the exercise of the options, the Companly pay the option holder the amount in cash equoathe
difference between PLN 1.6 and the current markieeof the shares in the Company (“Current MafRete”)
allocated to a particular employee (option holder);
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Long-term incentive plan linked to the share pricegperformance of Ronson Europe N.V. (cont'd)

vi. the Current Market Price will be calculatedtias average trading price of the shares duringtbeeding calendar
month, whereby the average trading price shalldierchined by calculating the total turnover valué’LN of all
of the shares in the Company traded during thabgetivided by the total number of shares tradedndusuch
period (however, if the total value of the ovetalinover in any particular month is lower than PLOD thousand,
then the Current Market Price shall be calculatethe basis of the most recent two-month marketzae;

vii. in the event that the free float is less tH&%6 of all the outstanding shares in the Compamg,Qurrent Market
Price will be established by a reputable valuattompany based on a comparable valuation of Ronguees
companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange dbas®/E and P/BV multiples);

viii. an option holder shall be entitled to submipayment request during the first five working slay each calendar
month, provided that all employees must observe taaging restrictions related to the sale/purchaS¢he
Company’s shares by Management and SupervisorydBowmbers and key management under applicable
regulations, especially with respect to the obsweaf closed periods.

Based on the Remuneration Committee decision, Ptiteototal 2,705,000 options, 950,000 options vadlecated to
Tomasz tapiski, and 675,000 options were allocated to And&atowski while the remaining 1,080,000 options were
allocated to other key employees of the Companyiriguhe year ended 31 December 2014 no options exercised.

Long-term incentive plan linked to Ronson Europe NV. financial results

On 3 February 2014, the Supervisory Board of then@any adopted an incentive plan, addressed totedld®y
employees, which is based on the financial perfocaaf the Company. Financial performance shatldtermined by
the Company’s Remuneration Committee of the SuperyiBoard taking into consideration either (a)rent sales
results (the new contracts signed with customaréd)oprofits before tax recognized by the Company.

Based on the Remuneration Committee decision, Tprapinski (in addition to his remuneration) is entitlex dan
aggregated payment which would be equivalent ob%.6f the Company’s profit before tax in particufarancial
year. Moreover Andrzej Gutowski is entitled to ajgeegated payment which would be equivalent of Odf%he net
value of the Company’s current sales results.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

Each Supervisory Board member currently receivesaamual remuneration of EUR 8,900 and EUR 1,500 per
attendance at meetings or EUR 750 if attendanbyg telephone. Moreover Supervisory Board membersatitled to
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses relatesetuvices provided to the Company (mainly comprigiagel and
accommodation expenses). The Supervisory Board mesrdre not entitled to any benefits on terminatibriheir
service. One Supervisory Board member, notably Mie AMientkavich, has waived his remuneration frohe t
Company. The remuneration paid (or accrued) toSimgervisory Board members includes only the renatiwer for

the other four members: Mr Mark Segall, Mr Yair IBAv, Mr Przemyslaw Kowalczyk and Mr Reuven Shardifie
total Supervisory Board remuneration during 2014amted to PLN 253 thousand (EUR 60 thousand).
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Risk Profile and Risk Management

Risk Profile

Management believes that the residential marketwhole in Poland is less saturated than in angratbuntry within
the European Union, including also the developiogntries in Central and Eastern Europe, which imegal provides
for many opportunities for residential developétewever due to the fact that the Polish econonstillsexperiencing
many dynamic changes, it may be sensitive to piatemp and down-turns. These market conditions famimportant
and significant risk factor for the Company and dtiner residential developers, as the developmerttegs (including
stages such as the purchase of land, the prepawdtiand for construction works, the constructpmocess itself and,
finally, also the sale of apartments) may take sdweears from start until completion. It is impeamt to understand that
decisions taken by the Company must assume awvediationg-term time horizon for each project as Iwad a
significant volatility of land prices, constructiczost levels and sales prices of apartments dufiegduration of
projects which may have a material impact on thm@any’s profitability and financing needs.

Another specific risk is associated with the raggdvelopment of many Polish cities which very oftevolves a lack of
stability of development plans which could subsgtdiyt impact the likelihood that projects on paulr sites are
realized as initially desired or planned. Sometimessdential developers are interested in buyimgl lparcels without
zoning conditions or without a valid master planttee area, which would allow for a better assesgrokthe ultimate
value of the plot. Pursuing such market opportasitnay result in relatively low prices of the Igratcels. However,
this strategy may result in increasing operati@mal financial risks for the developer. Moreovemfiing development
plans of the cities could also impact the plannedetbpment and realization of utility infrastruauiincluding water,
gas, sewage and electricity connections), whiahiigal factor for the Company and other develspé&towever, for a
vast majority of land parcels, the Company hasadlyeobtained zoning approvals, which reduces tisis to the

Company significantly.

In addition to the above, simultaneously with tleevmmaster plans that enter into force in the Pdligbs, there are
new requirements shifting up the standards of nemstruction sites (including environmental ruleafftc solutions
and infrastructure connections) which may resulbdath increasing costs of the new projects as a&lunplanned
delays in the preparation of the new projects.

A very specific risk for the Polish residential rker is related to the initiatives of the Polish @ovnent supporting
young people wanting to buy their first apartmédiite previous government program, which expiredhatend of 2012,
was called Rodzina na Swoim (Family on its Own) amd subsidizing the costs of mortgage loans. A pesgram

called Mieszkanie dla Miodych (Apartment for the ung) was launched in the beginning of 2014. ThesRol
government, whilst setting up the parameters ohquograms (for instance maximum total area of apartments
qualifying for the program, or maximum allowablécgrin particular cities), will thus be of influemon the increasing
attractiveness of certain type of apartments aedidtreasing for other types.

Another operating risk lies within the constructiprocess itself. The Company does not operate atremtion
business, but, instead, it hires third party gdnewatractors, who are responsible for runningabastruction and for
the finalization of the project including obtainiradl permits necessary for safe use of the apatsndmportant
selection criteria when hiring a general contraétmlude experience, professionalism and finanstedéngth of the
contractor as well as the quality of the insuragmalicy covering all risks associated with the comstion process.

The turbulence in the financial markets and with €uro currency during the past few years hastesbint a lack of

stability in the manner in which financing instituis (banks) have approached both real estate cuegppand

individual customers when applying for a mortgaggnl As the real estate business is very capit@uoning, the role
of the banking sector and its lending ability antlimgness are crucial for the Company leveragiog only when land

parcels are acquired but also during the laterestafj development, especially during the constoagthase. Moreover,
the availability of external financing is a crucedément driving the demand for apartments, avasé majority of our

customers are using mortgage secured loans toctinidwe purchase of apartments.

Simultaneously with increasing demands from devaig@rranging debt financing of their projects, theks are more
demanding from the customers arranging mortgagesltafinance their purchase of apartments. Staftom January
2015, the banks require each client to financeaxt|10% of the apartment price out of his or ket esources.
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Risk Profile (cont'd)

This requirement is going to increase to 15% in&28dd to 20% in 2017. These increased borrowingireaents may
translate into lower demand for new apartmentsckviniay be a source of additional risk to all resiie developers.

For addition informational on financial instrumenitsks see Note 40 of the Consolidated Financiiestients.

Risk Management

As part of its risk management measures, the Coynjsarontinually requesting, monitoring and puréhgsnsurance
policies for most common risks associated with dletivities of its contractors and their subconwast including
construction companies and architectural desigmarsyell as insurance policies with respect tadtparty liability. In
the Company’s opinion, these insurance policiegroidequate coverage for the financial consequeatemy
misconduct of Company’s business partners.

In order to mitigate the market risks involved witte Company’s activities, the Company appliesviaié internal

procedures. Moreover, in response to market ingtabver the past several years, the Company dekctd scale down
the size of individual projects offered for salg, dplitting larger residential projects into relaly smaller phases
(usually at on average around 120 units for eaabesbf completion). The Company’s plans for 201suas the

possibility of commencing the construction of thresav projects one of which will be in two phased aaven further
stages of projects that are currently under coastmu comprising some 525 and 881 units respegtiwghich means
that the average scale of each new project, agesbf completion, will be around 128 units. Tharany is further
mitigating the risks related to the constructiongass by selecting and hiring experienced congbrucompanies with
good reputation and proven track-record in Poland.

Moreover, various other organizational measurespmadedures were implemented in order to safegterdjuality of
operations and to incorporate adequate checks aaddes, including approvals, authorizations, meirig investment
decisions and so on. As part of implementing beatyre provisions of both the Dutch and Polishpooate
governance codes, the Company introduced a tailotedhal risk management and control system. Ru#@l4, the
proper operation of the new internal risk manageraad control system has again been monitored eVakiation was
discussed with the members of the Audit Committad the Supervisory Board. Also, the Company hagtaok
whistleblower rules in place to ensure that empdsyef the Company and its subsidiaries have thsilpbty of
reporting alleged irregularities of a general, apienal or financial nature.

The Company’s Management Board believes that iistieg risk management measures are sufficientréwige a
reasonable degree of certainty as to the absenwoatefial inaccuracies in the financial reportilogses and fraud.

Moreover, as a result of ongoing volatility in tfieancial markets and the continued unstable sd@nah the banking
sector, the Company’s Management pays particutentidn to cash and liquidity management, basicadiguring
sufficient amounts of cash deposits with a viewa imontinuation of the Company’s operations in thEsentially more
turbulent times.

For a description of the Company’s financial instants risk management reference is made to Notef4be
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Directors’ Report

General

Introduction

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’) is a Dutch pulgibmpany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam,Nle¢herlands,
and was incorporated on 18 June 2007.

The Company (together with its Polish subsidiaritee Group’) is active in the development and safleesidential
units, primarily apartments, in multi-family resi&l real-estate projects to individual customersPoland. For
information about companies in the Group from whibkir financial data included in the Consolidateidancial
Statements see Note 1 of the Consolidated FinaStaééments.

The shares of the Company are traded on the Wassagk Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31 iDeee
2014, 39.78% of the outstanding shares are coetrddy I.T.R. 2012 B.V., which is a subsidiary ofoGal City
Holdings N.V. (‘ITR 2012") (32.11% through a joiptcontrolled partnership formed under Dutch lawwesn ITR
2012 and ITR Dori B.V. and 7.67% through a jointntrolled company formed under Dutch law betweER P012
and U. Dori Group) and 39.78% of the outstandingre$ are controlled by U. Dori Group Ltd. (‘U Ddsroup’)
(32.11% through a jointly controlled partnershipnied under Dutch law between ITR 2012 and ITR BN. (of
which it holds 50% of the shares) and 7.67% throaigbintly controlled company formed under Dutchv laetween
ITR 2012 and U. Dori Group). The remaining 20.44f4he outstanding shares are held by other investaiuding
Metlife Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny holding betweg¥ and 5% and ING Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny hgdin
between 5% and 10% of the outstanding shares #sealate of this report. For major shareholderthefCompany
reference is made to page 39. On 18 February 28&5market price was PLN 1.27 per share givingGbenpany a
market capitalization of PLN 345.6 million.

Company overview

The Company is an experienced, fast-growing ancaym residential real estate developer expandmgeébgraphic
reach to major metropolitan areas across Polanderaging upon its large portfolio of secured sitis® Company
believes it is well positioned to maintain its gmsi as a leading residential development comphrgughout Poland.

The Company aims to maximize value for its shamdrsl by a selective geographical expansion in Eotasnwell as
by creation of a portfolio of real estate developimgroperties. Management believes the Companypbsitioned itself
strongly to navigate the volatile economic enviremithe Company has found itself in over the pagemal years. On
the one hand, the Polish economy appears to restedhe, which potentially bodes well for the Comygarprospects.
On the other hand, the tenuous European recoveageebated in the last year by the instabilityhia Ukraine, may
continue to have a negative impact on the Polisih@ny and the Company’s overall prospects. As altethe

Company continues to adhere to a development gyrdibat allows it to adjust quickly to these una@rtconditions by
spreading risks through (i) closely monitoring it®jects, (ii) potentially modifying the number pfojects and their
quality and sizes and (iii) maintaining its consgive financial policy compared to other regionakidential

developers.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has 854 unitdahle for sale in thirteen locations, of which 74iits are
available for sale in nine projects that are ongoas at 31 December 2014 and the remaining 10% @amé in
completed projects. The nine ongoing projects cisapa total of 1,403 units, with a total area of380 nf. The
construction of 821 units in five of the ongoingjects, with a total area of 47,706,ns expected to be completed
during 2015, while 582 units in four of the ongoimjects, with a total area of 32,600, fis expected to be completed
during 2016. In addition, the Group has a pipelofel9 projects in different stages of preparaticepresenting
approximately 4,339 residential units with a tatea of approximately 305,800 fior future development in Warsaw,
Pozna, Wroctaw and Szczecin. The Group is consideringnroencement of another seven stages of the currently
running projects comprising 881 units with a tatea of 51,100 fmand three new projects one of which will be i tw
phases comprising 525 units with a total area ¢8@3 n? (in total 1,406 units with a total area of 79,78, during
2015.
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Company overview (cont’'d)

During the financial year ended 31 December 20thé, Gompany realized sales of 711 units with thal tealue
PLN 267.8 million, which compares favorably to saté 572 units with a total value of PLN 221.8 ioifl during the
year ended 31 December 20IBhese results appear to reflect a generally moverédle market position of the
Company and an ongoing improvement of the Polishleatial market as a whole.

During April and May 2014, the Company issued bowith an aggregate nominal value and issue priceldd 45
million. The bonds carry an interest rate compasked base rate equal to 6 months Wibor plus a margth interest
payable semi-annually and maturing in January @18 12 million), February 2018 (PLN 5 million) anday 2018
(PLN 28 million), with full payment due on the méty date. The bonds have been issued in ordeméble the
Company to finance the purchase of land for newepts and the construction costs of new projeats. deditional
information see Note 28 and 29 of the Consolid&iedncial Statements.

Dividend policy

On 8 May 2013, the Company issued current repomibiar 4/2013, announcing that the Company’s Manageme
Board would recommend to the General Meeting ofr&i@ders to change its dividend policy and totgparying
dividend in 2013. On 14 May 2013, current repormber 5/2013 was issued, stating that he SuperviBogrd
approved the recommendations of the ManagementBoar

Prior to 2013, since the incorporation of the Compand the IPO in 2007, the Company has retairsgprrdfits and did
not distribute dividends, in accordance with theidind policy as set out in the prospectus. The dswdend policy
assumes on-going periodic dividend payouts to Haeholders. The Management Board believes thaéxpected
operating, financial and cash-flow position of tbempany may allow for increasing the dividend payouhe future.
According to a new policy, the Board of Supervis@iyectors will be evaluating the future recommerates of the
Board of Managing Directors with respect to theeptil dividend payouts taking into account (i) tharent and
expected balance sheet of the Company, with clbsergance of the all balance-sheet linked debtranws, (i) the
financial needs of the Company aiming to be rard@dngst leading residential developers in Poland(&ih changing
market environment.

During 2014 the Company did not pay dividends $ostiareholders, while the dividend paid during 28d®unted to
PLN 8.2 million.

Market overview

The Polish economy has proven to be relativelyngtreven in the recent turbulent times throughoubpe, which in
combination with the general paucity of dwellingsRoland (in comparison to all other European aies)t creates,
what management believes to be, solid long termspw@ats for further development of the residengal estate market
in spite of the volatility that has characterizbd market for the past seven years. Managememiveslihe Company is
well positioned to adapt to changing market condi&i The Company’s sales results during the pastesirs seem to
confirm that the Company has adapted positivethéovolatile market environment.

The trend observed in 2010 and in 2011, when isangaactivities of developers resulted in an inseehoffer of
apartments available for sale on the market, slod@an in 2012, as many developers faced difficsliie finding
customers for their products. In 2012, the consibnoof 142 thousand new apartments was commencé&dland (a
decrease of 12% compared to 2011) and during 20&3ntumber decreased by a further 10%. Even adroctien
continued to decrease through 2013, the overalkebhappeared to turn around during that year. Ngtalemand in
2013 increased in comparison to 2012. As a rethdtnumber of new construction sites increasechdl2014 by 16%.
It is important to note that the number of new pot§ built by developers increased during 2014 &6, 3while the
activity of individual investors increased by 2%helmarket data suggest that leading residentiatldpers (such as
the Company) were able to overcome many factorsdtieerwise tempered rapid growth in the markeirdu013,
with the main impediment to growth related to negulations and banking restrictions that came éiftect in 2012
that limited the developers’ ability to secure fioang for new investments.
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Market overview (cont'd)

Meanwhile, a number of external factors have cbnotad to recent market growth. First, a governnmeagram that
subsidized young couples purchasing their firstrtapents, called “Rodzina na Swoim” (“Family on isvn”) that
expired at the end of 2012 was replaced with a gewernmental program called “Mieszkanie dla Miodych
(“Apartment for young”) that came into effect inetlbeginning of 2014 and supports the residentiaketdan those
cities where the maximum price of apartment qualgyto subsidies is close to the market price. #stance in
Gdaisk, £o6dz and Poznéa nearly 30% of clients buying their first apartn®em 2014 were supported by this program,
which was also important to the Company, whichcigva with 3 projects in PozhaSecond, in the last few quarters,
the National Bank of Poland has kept interest ratascord low levels (2.5% from July 2013 throi@gptember 2014
and lowered to 2.0% in October 2014). These hisatlyi low interest rates in 2013 and in 2014 pwgslii impacted the
residential market for two reasons. First, mortglages became more affordable to the potentiatiezsial purchasers
and second, more customers are purchasing apastfieerdash, as they consider real estate investaseah attractive
alternative to the very low interest earned on bamkeposits.

Taking into consideration all these factors, theréase in demand for residential units noted in32add in 2014 has
caught up with supply. The improving market envimamt has encouraged developers to expand thettergsl
development activities. During 2014 developersoiiticed more new apartments in major Polish metitapoareas to
their offer than they were able to sell in thisipdr(47,500 new apartments in six major Polish opatitan areas,
including Warsaw, were added on offer by developlersng 2014 which compares to total sales of 43 &@artments
during 2014). The number of total new apartmentd soWarsaw during 2014 amounted to 17,000 whics W6%
higher than in 2013. The number of new apartmeald m the five major Polish metropolitan areashéstthan
Warsaw) increased in 2013 by 16% over 2012, whilend 2014 this increase amounted to 22% comparezD13.
The continuing positive market trends in 2014 ttatesl into ongoing improved sales results and arallvincrease in
market share for the most established Polish rasaledevelopers. Specifically, the overall salesults during 2014
reported by the nine largest residential develofistesd on the Warsaw Stock Exchange were 35% hitftaa during
2013.

Management believes that all the above factorsicpdarly taking into account the significantly imgving sales results
reported during the last few quarters both for @menpany and for the Polish market as a whole, sitgbat there is
on-going strength in the Polish residential maf&eft least the following several quarters.

19



Ronson Europe N.V.
Directors’ Report

Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2014

A. Projects completed

The table below presents information on the prejélcat were completed (i.e. completing all condiomcworks and
receiving occupancy permit) during the year ende@®8cember 2014:

Project name Location Number of units Area of units(m?)
Espresso {’ Warsaw 210 9,500
Miody Grunwald ) Pozna 148 8,500
Chilli 111 © Pozna 38 2,300
Total 396 20,300
™*) For additional information see section ‘B. Resliteakdown by project’ below.

B. Results breakdown by project

Revenue from the sale of residential units is reczagl upon the transfer to the buyer of signifiaasis and rewards of
the ownership of the residential unit, i.e. upamnsig of the protocol of technical acceptance dedttansfer of the key
to the buyer of the residential unit. Total revemdighe Group recognized during the year ended 8dehber 2014
amounted to PLN 153.2 million, whereas cost of s&lefore write-down adjustment amounted to PLN 828illion
and after write-down adjustment amounted to PLN.24tillion, which resulted in a gross profit beforeite-down
adjustment amounting to PLN 24.4 million (and asgranargin of 15.9%) and after write-down adjustnanbunting
to PLN 11.9 million (and a gross margin of 7.8%).

The following table specifies revenue, cost of saled gross profit in 2014 on a project by propedis:

Information on the i Gross Gross
delivered units Revenue!” Cost of saled™ profit margin
Number Area of PLN PLN PLN
Project name of units units (m?) (thousand) % (thousand) % (thousand) %
Espresso | 206 9,143 63,264 41.3% 50,478 39.2% 12,786 20.2%
Mtody Grunwald | 124 6,415 35,424 23.1% 32,944 25.6% 2,480 7.0%
Verdis | & II 58 3,661 24,324 15.9% 18,543 14.4% 5,781 23.8%
Sakura | & I 9 772 5,711 3.7% 5,045 3.9% 666 11.7%
Chilli 1 & 11 4 345 1,374 0.9% 1,256 1.0% 118 8.6%
Chilli 1l 10 585 2,403 1.6% 2,267 1.8% 136 5.7%
Impressio | 3 162 1,252 0.8% 1,304 1.0% (52) -4.2%
Constans 3 805 3,241 2.1% 3,135 2.4% 106 3.3%
Naturalis I, I & 111 31 1,725 8,960 5.9% 8,188 6.4% 772 8.6%
Panoramika | 20 1,116 4,836 3.2% 4,280 3.3% 556 11.5%
Gemini Il 1 81 947 0.6% 670 0.5% 277 29.3%
Other N.A N.A 1,419 0.9% 644 0.5% 775 54.6%
Total / Average 469 24,810 153,155 100.0% 128,754 100.0% 24,401 15.9%
Write-down
adjustment N.A N.A N.A N.A 12,471 N.A (12,471) N.A
Results after write-
down adjustment 469 24,810 153,155 100.0% 141,225 100.0% 11,930 7.8%
*) Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of sggmifirisks and rewards of the ownership of thedesiial unit to the buyer, i.e. upon signing of finetocol
of technical acceptance and the transfer of thedfefe residential unit to the buyer.
**) Cost of sales allocated to the delivered srproportionally to the expected total value of pineject.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2014 (cont'd)

B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Espresso |

The construction of the Espresso | project was detag in February 2014. The Espresso | projectdea®loped on a
land strip of 4,200 flocated in Wola district in Warsaw at Jana KazizéeStreet. The Espresso | project comprises 2
seven-eight-nine-and-ten-storey, multi-family resitlal buildings with a total of 202 apartments @hdommercial
units and an aggregate floor space of 9,500 m

Mtody Grunwald |

The construction of the Miody Grunwald | projectsmeompleted in May 2014. The Miody Grunwald | pobjevas
developed on a land strip of 5,60C tncated in Grunwald district in Poznat Jeleniogérska Street. The Miody
Grunwald | project comprises 3 six-storey, multinfly residential buildings with a total of 136 apaents and 12
commercial units and an aggregate floor space58iBn{.

Verdis | & Il

The construction of the Verdis | and Verdis Il s was completed in December 2012 and DecemhE3, 20
respectively. The Verdis | and Verdis Il projectsrasdeveloped on a land strip of 8,40blatated in the Wola district
in Warsaw at Sowiskiego Street. The Verdis | and Verdis Il projectenprise 3 seven, eight and ten-storey, multi-
family residential buildings with a total of 128 apments and 11 commercial units and an aggretmte $pace of
9,400 nf and 2 seven-storey, multi-family residential birilgs with a total of 72 apartments and 6 commeraiais
and an aggregate floor space of 4,9G0respectively.

Chilli 1, 11 & 111

The construction of the Chilli I, Il and Il projecwas completed in July 2012, in July 2013 antlavember 2014,
respectively. The Chilli I, Il and 11l projects wedeveloped on a land strip of 12,360lotated in Tulce near Pozna
The Chilli I, Il and 11l projects comprise 30 unitsith an aggregate floor space of 2,10%) 80 units with an aggregate

floor space of 1,600 frand 38 units with an aggregate floor space of &) respectively.

Sakura | & Il

The construction of the Sakura | and Sakura Il gutg was completed in May 2012 and May 2013, reéisedye The
Sakura | and Sakura Il projects were developed lanc strip of 11,100 fin Warsaw at Klobucka Street. The Sakura
| and Sakura Il projects comprise 1 eleven-stomaylti-family residential building with a total offapartments and 21
commercial units and an aggregate floor space BI®nf and 1 seven and eleven-storey, multi-family residé
building with a total of 136 apartments and an aggte floor space of 8,300’ mespectively.

Impressio |

The construction of the Impressio | project was ptated in June 2012. The Impressio | project wasldped on a
part of a land strip of 5,200Tpcated in the Grabiszyn district in Wroctaw. Tingpressio | project comprises 3 four-
storey, multi-family residential buildings with atal of 70 apartments and an aggregate floor sp&ég00 .
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2014 (cont'd)

B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Constans

The first, second and the third phases of the @msshousing project were completed in July 2010/elNtber 2010
and June 2011, respectively. This project was d@eel on part of a land strip of 36,377 lucated in Konstancin near
Warsaw. The first, second and the third phases@fConstans housing project comprise 8 semi-dedachis (total
16 units) with an aggregate floor space of 4,4715semi-detached units (total 10 units) with agragate floor space
of 2,758 ni and 4 semi-detached units (total 8 units) wittaggregate floor space of 2,176, mespectively.

Naturalis I, Il & 111

The construction of the Naturalis I, Il and Il pgots was completed in December 2012, August 20ti22aigust 2013,
respectively. The Naturalis I, Il and Ill projest&re developed on a land strip of 11,80Dlocated in Lomianki near
Warsaw. The Naturalis I, 1l and IIl projects conggril four-storey, multi-family residential buildingth a total of 52
apartments and an aggregate floor space of 2,8G#hth2 four-storey, multi-family residential buitdjs, each with a
total of 60 apartments and an aggregate floor spa8gt00 m.

Panoramika |

The construction of the Panoramika | project wasgleted in October 2012. The Panoramika | projexs developed
on a land strip of 4,300 ocated in Szczecin at Bska Street. The Panoramika | project comprisesu dad five-
storey, multi-family residential buildings with atal of 90 apartments and an aggregate floor spa6¢00 .

Gemini Il

The construction of the Gemini Il project was coetpll in December 2012. The Gemini Il project wageted on a
land strip of 4,700 flocated in the Ursynéw district in Warsaw (KEN Awe) situated next to the subway station
Imielin. The Gemini Il project comprises 2 eightdaeleven-storey, multi-family residential buildingsth a total of
167 apartments and 15 commercial units and an gagréloor space of 13,900°m

Other
Other revenues are mainly associated with salésegbarking places and storages in other projbetswere completed
in previous years, as well as rental revenues.

Write-down adjustment
During the year ended 31 December 2014, as a rebilet Realizable Value (NRV) analyses and revieavsvrite-
down adjustment for some of the Company’s projeets made in the amount of PLN 12,471 thousand.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2014 (cont'd)
C. Units sold during the year
The table below presents information on the totamber of units sold (i.e. total number of units fehich the

Company signed the preliminary sale agreementstivitlients), during the year ended 31 Decemb#&420

Units sold during

Units sold until the year ended Units for sale as at

Project name Location 31 December 2013 31 December 2014 31 December 2014 Total
Constans” Warsaw 32 1 1 34
Gemini 11©) Warsaw 180 - 2 182
Verdis 1 & 11 © Warsaw 203 6 8 217
Verdis 111 Warsaw 21 114 11 146
Verdis IV Warsaw - 41 37 78
Sakura | & 1100 Warsaw 245 - 11 256
Sakura 11 Warsaw 29 72 44 145
Sakura IM™ Warsaw - 46 68 114
Naturalis I, Il & 111 ®) Warsaw 106 23 43 172
Impressio ) Wroctaw 67 2 1 70
Impressio 11" Wroctaw 1 37 98 136
Chilli1& 11 © Pozna 47 2 1 50
Chilli 1 © Pozna 2 23 13 38
Panoramika {’ Szczecin 80 9 1 90
Panoramika 1f” Szczecin - 15 92 107
Espresso Warsaw 187 20 3 210
Espresso I{” Warsaw 29 45 78 152
Miody Grunwald 1) Pozna 69 56 23 148
Miody Grunwald 11 Pozna - 35 102 137
Tamka™ Warsaw 10 27 28 65
Moko 1 Warsaw - 89 90 179
Kamienica Jiyce 1 Pozna - 45 99 144
Old projects Warsaw - 3 - 3
Total 1,308 711 854 2,873
™*) For ir;formation on the completed projects $Besiness highlights during the year ended 31 Denen2014 — B. Results breakdown by project” (pa2@s

to 22).
**) For information on current projects under cdnsction, see “Outlook for 2015— B. Current projeatnder construction” (pages 33 to 36).
D. Commencements of new projects

The table below presents information on the prsjéamt which the construction and/or sales processncenced during
the year ended 31 December 2014:

Project name Location Number of units Area of units (nf)
Sakura IV Warsaw 114 6,600
Miody Grunwald 11 Pozna 137 8,200
Verdis IV ©) Warsaw 78 4,000
Panoramika If? Szczecin 107 5,900
Moko 1© Warsaw 179 11,300
Kamienica Jayce 10 Pozna 144 7,800
Total 759 43,800
*) For additional information see section “Outledor 2015 — B. Current projects under constructigmages 33 to 36).

23



Ronson Europe N.V.
Directors’ Report

Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2014 (cont'd)

E. Land purchase

In May 2014, the Group signed with private indivadhi (the “Sellers”) a sale-purchase agreement coimge
undeveloped land situated in Warsaw, district M6ékoat Jaminowa Street with a total area of 82 thousadd m

Pursuant to a preliminary purchase agreement ehiete with the Sellers in June 2012, the Compaay the right to
purchase properties with a total area up to 118ofigand rh (“Real Properties”), provided that the Sellersfifud

number of conditions precedent, which included tafing a court dispute between the Sellers andl tharties
concerning some of the properties covered by tledinpinary purchase agreement (the “Disputed Reapéties”).
Due to the fact that the above mentioned courtudéshas not been concluded, the agreements sigtiethe Sellers in
May 2014 did not include the Disputed Real PropsrtDepending on the final outcome of the dispotecerning the
Disputed Real Properties, the Company, however, puaghase the Disputed Real Properties in the dutsubject to
terms and conditions to be agreed with the Sellers.

The total purchase price for the (undisputed) Raperties was PLN 65.57 million, out of which PRR.75 million

was paid in advance by the Company in June 2012tendutstanding balance of the price amountingLtl 44.82
million was paid in May 2014.
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Overview of results

The net loss attributable to the equity holdershaf parent company for the year ended 31 Decembg4 2vas
PLN 15,431 thousand and can be summarized as fallow

For year ended
31 December

2014 2013
PLN
(thousands, except per share data)
(restated*®)
Revenue 153,155 207,025
Cost of sales** (141,225) (164,460)
Gross profit 11,930 42,565
Changes in the value of investment property - 774
Selling and marketing expenses (6,881) (6,821)
Administrative expenses (18,220) (15,905)
Share of profit/(loss) from joint ventures (3112) (680)
Other expense (3,058) (2,608)
Other income 726 731
Result from operating activities (15,814) 18,056
Finance income 1,957 1,872
Finance expense (4,827) (2,842)
Net finance income/(expense) (2,870) (970)
Profit/(loss) before taxation (18,684) 17,086
Income tax benefit 3,469 958
Net profit/(loss) for the period before non-controling interests (15,215) 18,044
Non-controlling interests (216) 604
Net profit/(loss) for the period attributable to
the equity holders of the parent (15,431) 18,648
Net earnings per share attributable to
the equity holders of the parent (basic and dilutejl (0.057) 0.068

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thesbdated Financial Statements as at 31 Decemb&82nd reflect adjustments made as
detailed in Note 2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).

** Including a Write-down adjustment in the amoofitPLN 12,471thousand during 2014 and nil durind 20

Revenue

Total revenue decreased by PLN 53.9 million (26.@n PLN 207 million for the year ended 31 Decemb@13 to
PLN 153.2 million for the year ended 31 Decembet£@vhich is primarily explained by a decreasenim total surface
of units delivered to customers from 33,084 during the year ended 31 December 2013 to 24,&16uning the year
ended 31 December 2014, as well as slight decieake average selling price pef.m
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Overview of results (cont'd)

Costof sales

Cost of sales before Write-down adjustment dectebgdPLN 35.7 million (21.7%) from PLN 164.5 milliaduring the
year ended 31 December 2013 to PLN 128.8 milliorinduthe year ended 31 December 2014, which is guilyn
explained by a decrease in the total surface d$wglivered (in m2).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, as a rebilet Realizable Value (NRV) analyses and revieavsvrite-
down adjustment for some of the Company’s projeets made in the amount of PLN 12.5 million.

Gross margin

The gross margin before Write-down adjustment dutive year ended 31 December 2014 was 15.9% cochpathe
gross margin during the year ended 31 December 2028.6%. The decrease in gross margin is prima&splained

by two factors: first, a slight decrease in therage selling price per InSecond, the main part of revenues and costs of
sales (and therefore also gross profit margin) geized during the year ended 31 December 2014 glated to the
Espresso |, Miody Grunwald | projects, both of whigere less profitable than the projects delivdoethe customers
during the year ended 31 December 2013 (mainly @idirénd Verdis ).

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by PLNntillon (0.9%) from PLN 6.8 million for the yearnded
31 December 2013 to PLN 6.9 million for the yeadeth 31 December 2014. The increase of expensextsethe
changing market dynamics, which demand that deeetopndertake a more proactive sales and markeffog in a
more competitive environment. Simultaneously, thenber of units sold by the Company in the pericttéased by
24% (from 572 units during the year ended 31 De@zrdb13 to 711 units during the year ended 31 Dbeer2014).

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by PLN 2.3 millip4.6%) from PLN 15.9 million for the year end&t December
2013 to PLN 18.2 million for the year ended 31 Dmber 2014. The increase is primarily explained iy impact of
the new employee incentive plan adopted during Uraalpr2014 (for additional information see Note 3 ,well as the
increase of the sales department bonus due tatheaise in realized sales. The increase is offsgait by a decrease
in the Management Board bonus which is calculaigatéportion to the profit before tax.

Other expenses

Other expenses increased by PLN 0.5 million (17.8%hn PLN 2.6 million for the year ended 31 Decemb@l3 to
PLN 3.1 million for the year ended 31 December 204Hich is primarily explained by increased costsrepairs and
defects in completed projects.

Result from operating activities

As a result of the factors described above, the gi2omy's operating result decreased by PLN 33.9 onillfrom an
operating profit of PLN 18.1 million for the yeanded 31 December 2013 to an operating loss of FA.R thillion for
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Net finance income

Finance income and expenses are accrued and agultals part of the cost price of inventory to #xtent this is
directly attributable to the construction of resitlal units. Unallocated finance income and expsmex capitalized are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

The table below shows the finance income and exgsebsgfore capitalization into inventory and thealtdinance
income and expenses capitalized into inventory.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 1,966 (9) 1,957
Finance expense (14,975) 10,148 (4,827)
Net finance (expense)/income (13,009) 10,139 (2,870)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
PLN (thousands)

(restated*)
Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 2,008 (136) 1,872
Finance expense (16,588) 13,746 (2,842)
Net finance (expense)/income (14,580) 13,610 (970)

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thefdbdated Financial Statements as at 31 DecemB&Bnd reflect adjustments made as
detailed in Note 2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).

Net finance expenses before capitalization decdebgePLN 1.6 million (10.8%) from PLN 14.6 millioduring the
year ended 31 December 2013 to PLN 13 million dutire year ended 31 December 2014, that is priynexilained
by a decrease in the interest rates (reference irate NIBOR).

Income tax benefit/(expense)

During the year ended 31 December 2014 the Groalizeel a tax benefit of PLN 3.5 million, in compaomn to a tax
benefit of PLN 1.0 million for the year ended 31dember 2013. The tax benefits are explained byedbegnition of
tax assets. The recognition of the tax assetsptaale after an organizational restructuring of @reup, which allowed
the Company to utilize certain tax losses thatriarperiods were deemed not to be usable.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the share of-oontrolling interest (minority shareholders) inofit and losses
from subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by then@any and amounted to PLN 216 thousand (negativehé year
ended 31 December 2014 as compared to PLN 604 ahdugpositive) for the year ended 31 December 20h8.
change in the non-controlling interest is explain®d revenue recognized from the Espresso | prdjeat was
completed in February 2014.
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Exchange rate of Euro versus the Polish Zloty

Average Minimum Maximum Year end
PLN/EUR exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate
2014 (12 months) 4.184 4.100 4.314 4.262
2013 (12 months) 4.198 4.067 4.343 4.147
Source: National Bank of Poland (‘NBP’)
Selected financial data EUR PLN

(thousands, except per share data and number of stes)
For year ended 31 December or as at 31 December

2014 2013** 2014 2013**

Revenues 36,605 49,315 153,155 207,025
Gross profit 2,851 10,139 11,930 42,565
Profit/(loss) before taxation (4,466) 4,070 (18,684) 17,086
Net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to

the equity holders of the parent (3,688) 4,442 (15,431) 18,648
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (11,941) 12,966 (49,962) 54,430
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (319) 225 (1,336) 944
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 16,667 (11,379) 69,735 (47,771)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,407 1,811 18,437 7,603
Inventory 165,767 145,838 706,501 604,790
Total assets 197,437 179,657 841,477 745,036
Advances received 23,232 17,016 99,013 70,565
Long term liabilities 57,579 37,367 245,403 154,960
Short term liabilities (including advances received 33,959 29,785 144,733 123,520
Equity attributable to the equity holders of theqra 105,406 112,050 449,242 464,673
Share capital 5,054 5,054 20,762 20,762
Average number of equivalent shares (basic) 272,360,000 272,360,000 272,360,000 272,360,000
Net earnings per share (basic and diluted) (0.014) 0.016 (0.057) 0.068

* Information is presented in EUR solely for pretsgion purposes. Due to the significant fluctuatafrthe Polish Zloty against the Euro over the
past years, the Statement of Financial Positioradid not accurately reflect the actual comparativencial position of the Company. The
reader should consider changes in the PLN / EURa&xge rate in 2014 comparing to 2013, when reviguliis data.

Selected financial data were translated from Phté iEUR in the following way:

(i) Statement of financial position data were skated using the period end exchange rate publighethe National Bank of Poland for the
last day of the period.

(ii) Statement of comprehensive income and casisftlata were translated using the arithmeticalrage of average exchange rates published
by the National Bank of Poland.

** Certain amounts shown do not correspond to @mnsolidated Financial Statements as at 31 Decer@b&8B and reflect adjustments made as
detailed in Note 2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).
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Overview of selected details from the Consolidatedstatement of Financial
Position

The following table presents selected details ftbm Consolidated Statement of Financial Positiowlich material
changes had occurred.

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
PLN (thousands)
(restated*)
Inventory 706,501 604,790
Advances received 99,013 70,565
Loans and borrowings 236,190 164,001

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thesotidated Financial Statements as at 31 DecemB&Bnd reflect adjustments made as
detailed in Note 2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).

Inventory

The balance of inventory is PLN 706.5 million as 3ff December 2014 compared to PLN 604.8 milliono&s
31 December 2013. Inventory increased primarilyaasesult of the Group’s investments associated \wlitlect
construction costs for a total amount of PLN 14@illion and an increase in land and related expdase total
amount of PLN 79.4 million (mainly the Nova Krolikaa project). The increase was partly offset bgtaof sales
recognized for a total amount of PLN 127.9 million.

Advances received

The balance of advances received is PLN 99.0 miléis of 31 December 2014 compared to PLN 70.6aniléis of
31 December 2013. The increase is a result of adgareceived from clients regarding sales of resialeunits for a
total amount PLN 181.6 million and is offset in fpay revenues recognized from the sale of residkutiits for a total
amount of PLN 153.2 million.

Loans and borrowings

The total of short-term and long-term loans anddwings is PLN 236.2 million as of 31 December 2@d4npared to
PLN 164.0 million as of 31 December 2013. The iaseein loans and borrowings is primarily explaibgdhe effect
of proceeds from bank loans, net of bank chargasaftotal amount of PLN 69.0 million, as well & teffect of
issuance of new bond loans, net of issue costsieéSE, G and H) for a total amount of PLN 44.1lionl. The increase
is offset in part by repayment of bank loans anddbleans for a total amount of PLN 38.4 million &dN 5.0 million,

respectively. Of the above mentioned PLN 236.2iom|lan amount of PLN 0.9 million comprises fa@# maturing
no later than 31 December 2015.

The maturity structure of the loans and borrowirgffects the Company’s recent activities relatedaods issued in
June and July 2013 and in April and May 2014. Siamdously, the bank loans that were obtained byCthmpany in

the past 7 to 8 years to partially refinance sofriessdand acquisitions with short-term and mediterm bank facilities
were gradually converted into construction loanbdmwthe Company commences construction in a phatipuoject)

and mostly repaid by the Company after constructias completed and the apartments were sold tecub®mers.
The Company intends to repay its loans and bormgsyiboth received for land purchases as well agdaostruction
works from the proceeds expected from customersngugpartments in the projects co-financed with pleticular

loans as well as with the bonds.

29



Ronson Europe N.V.
Directors’ Report

Overview of selected details from the Consolidatedstatement of Financial
Position (cont'd)

Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

The balance of loans and borrowings may be spbtfour categories: 1) floating rate bond loansh&)k loans related
to residential projects which are completed or wnzfnstruction, 3) bank loans granted for the foiag of land
purchases related to projects where the Companynbtaientered into loan facilities regarding theafining of
construction works and 4) loans from third parties.

Floating rate bond loans as at 31 December 2014iat@o to PLN 159.8 million comprising a loan privedi amount of
PLN 161.3 million plus accrued interest of PLN Grlllion minus one-time costs directly attributed ttee bond
issuances which are capitalized and subsequentiytaed based on the effective interest method (RLANmillion).

The bank loans supporting completed projects ojept® under construction are tailored to the pdaceoastruction
works and of sales. As at 31 December 2014, loattss category amounted to PLN 62.9 million.

The bank loans granted to finance the land purchaseat 31 December 2014 amounted to PLN 10.8milti total.
Loans from third parties as at 31 December 2014uateal to PLN 2.7 million.

Overview of cash flow results

Debt and net debt position

As of 31 December 2014, the Company’s total delitaioks, bonds and third parties amounted to PLNZ228fillion
(31 December 2013: PLN 164.0 million). Taking imtccount the Company’s available cash position ab8tember
2014 amounting to PLN 70.6 million (31 December 20BLN 52.2 million), the net debt position of tG@mpany
amounted to PLN 165.6 million as at 31 December2@1 December 2013: PLN 111.8 million).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Company funds its day-to-day operations pradtipfrom cash flows provided by its sales actiastias well as
from borrowings under several loan facilities, udihg bonds. The net cash inflow from operatingvé@s and from
financing activities has enabled the Company ta@ed with the development of its residential prigi@nd purchasing
new plots of lands whilst at the same time mairtgrsufficient liquidity for its day-to-day operatis.

The following table sets forth the cash flow oroasolidated basis:
For the year ended
31 December
2014 2013
(restated*)
PLN (thousands)

Cash flow from/(used in) operating activities @en) 54,430
Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (1,336) 944
Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities 69,735 (47,771)

*  Comparative amounts shown do not correspondhi® tonsolidated financial statements as at 31 Dbeen2013 and reflect
adjustments made as detailed in Note 2(f) on p&§emd 60.

30



Ronson Europe N.V.
Directors’ Report

Overview of cash flow results (cont’d)

Cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

The Company’s net cash outflow used in operatintyities for the year ended 31 December 2014 anexuro
PLN 50.0 million which compares to a net cash wflfsom operating activities during the year endddC3cember
2013 of PLN 54.4 million. The decrease resulting icash outflow is principally explained by:

- anet cash outflow used in inventory amountingtdl 75.1 million during the year ended 31 Decemb@t£
as compared to a net cash inflow from inventory amiog to PLN 60.4 million during the year ended 31
December 2013. The main reason for increasing oatflow used in inventory was increasing expenses f
purchase of new lands (Nova Krolikarnia projectjlevluring 2013 the Company has not purchased amy n
land) as well as an increase in the number anddhene of projects under construction.

The above mentioned effects were offset in part by:
- a net cash inflow during the year ended 31 Decer2b&¥ from advances received from clients regarding
sales of residential units in the amount of PLN.&&illion, which was offset in part by revenue agnized
for a total amount of PLN 153.2 million comparedamet cash inflow during the year ended 31 Decembe
2013 from advances received in the amount of PLM.20nillion, which was offset in part by revenue
recognized for a total amount of PLN 207.0 million.

Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities

The Company’s net cash inflow from financing adies totaled PLN 69.7 million during the year en@idDecember
2014 compared to a net cash outflow totaling PLIN 4idillion during the year ended 31 December 201 increase
resulting in a cash inflow is primarily due to:

- arepayment of bond loans amounting to PLN 5.0ianiltluring the year ended 31 December 2014 compared
to a repayment of bond loans amounting to PLN &&Ikon during the year ended 31 December 2013;

- arepayment of secured bank loans amounting to .M million during the year ended 31 December 2014
compared to a repayment of secured bank loans amguto PLN 90.6 million during the year ended
31 December 2013;

- the effects of the proceeds from bank loans nbbok charges amounting to PLN 69.0 million during year
ended 31 December 2014 compared to PLN 26.4 mitlioing the year ended 31 December 2013;

- the dividends paid to equity holders of the paréat,a total amount nil during the year ended 3tdyaber
2014 compared to PLN 8.2 million during the yeadeh31 December 2013.

The above mentioned effects were offset in part by:
- the proceeds from issuance of new bond loans, friessge costs, for a total amount PLN 44.1 millauring
the year ended 31 December 2014 compared to PLN hdilion during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Employees

The average number of personnel employed by thep@oynand its subsidiaries — on a fulltime equivalessis —
increased from 66 in 2013 to 73 in 2014. The ingeem the number of employees resulted from the g2my's
expanding activities.

Research and development

The Company and its subsidiaries are not involneahly research and development activities.

Environmental protection

The Company, in conducting its business activitieglertakes to comply with all laws and regulaticegarding use of
land and protection of the natural environment. Twmnpany is not a party to any pending proceedmegarding
potential environmental protection violations.

Quarterly reporting by the Company

As a result of requirements pertaining to U. Doro@ Ltd, one of the Company'’s larger (indirectusholders, whose
shares are listed on the Tel Aviv stock excharge fitst quarter reports, semi-annual reports aird fuarter reports
are subject to a full scope review by the Comparaislitors. For the Company itself, being domiciiedthe
Netherlands and listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchamgg the semi-annual report is subject to an tatgiiew. The
Company has agreed with U. Dori Group that the scést the first and third quarter audit review wie fully
reimbursed to the Company. The Company considermdpats first and third quarter report providedthvan audit
report a benefit to all of its shareholders.
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Outlook for 2015

A. Completed projects

The table below presents information on the tataidential units in the completed projects/stages the Company
expects to sell and deliver:

Number of residential units expected to

Number of residential units delivered (*) be delivered (*)
During the Sold until Units for ~ Total units
Until 31  period ended Total 31 sale at 31 expected
December 31 December units December  December to be Total
Project name Location 2013 2014  delivered 2014 2014 delivered project
Miody Grunwald Pozna - 124 124 1 23 24 148
Espresso (" Warsaw - 206 206 1 3 4 210
Naturalis 1,11 & 111 ¢ Warsaw 95 31 126 3 43 46 172
Sakura | & I Warsaw 235 9 244 1 11 12 256
Verdis 1 & 11 @ Warsaw 150 58 208 1 8 9 217
Constans” Warsaw 29 3 32 1 1 2 34
Gemini 11 Warsaw 179 1 180 - 2 2 182
Impressio (7 Wroctaw 66 3 69 - 1 1 70
Chilli 1& 11 @ Pozna 44 4 48 1 1 2 50
Chilli 1 Pozna - 10 10 15 13 28 38
Panoramika {” Szczecin 69 20 89 - 1 1 90
Total 867 469 1,336 24 107 131 1,467

(*) For the purpose of disclosing information at#d to the particular projects, the word “sell” $6ld”) is used, that relates to signing the
preliminary sale agreement with the client for #ade of the apartment; whereas the word “deliveiti€livered”) relates to the transferring
of significant risks and rewards of the ownershiphe residential unit to the client.

(**) For information on the completed projects s&usiness highlights during the year ended 31 Delger 2014 — B. Results breakdown by
project” (pages 20 to 22).

B. Current projects under construction and/or onlsa

The table below presents information on projectsafbich completion is scheduled in 2015 and 201& Tompany
has obtained construction permits for all projetégjes and has commenced construction.

Units sold until Units for sale as Expected
31 December  at 31 December Total Total area completion of

Project name Location 2014 2014 units of units (m?) construction
Sakura lll Warsaw 101 44 145 7,300 2015
Sakura IV Warsaw 46 68 114 6,600 2015
Verdis Il Warsaw 135 11 146 7,700 2015
Verdis IV Warsaw 41 37 78 4,000 2015
Impressio Il Wroctaw 38 98 136 8,400 2015
Mtody Grunwald 11 Pozna 35 102 137 8,200 2015
Tamka Warsaw 37 28 65 5,500 2015
Espresso Il Warsaw 74 78 152 7,600 2016
Panoramika I Szczecin 15 92 107 5,900 2016
Moko | Warsaw 89 90 179 11,300 2016
Kamienica Jgyce | Pozna 45 99 144 7,800 2016
Total 656 747 1,403 80,300
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Outlook for 2015 (cont'd)

B. Current projects under construction and/or onlsacont’d)

Sakura Il and IV
Description of project

The third and the fourth phase ( last phases) ®fSakura project are being developed on a lang efri9,900 M
located in Warsaw at Klobucka Street and are airmeation of Sakura | and Sakura I, which were ctatgd during
2012 and 2013. The third and the fourth phase isf pioject will comprise 1 six-and-seven-storey, ltifamily
residential building with a total of 145 apartmeatsl an aggregate floor space of 7,300and 1 seven-storey, multi-
family residential building with a total of 108 apaents and 6 commercial units and an aggregate fpace of 6,600
m?, respectively.

Stage of development
The construction of the Sakura Il project commehiteOctober 2013, while the construction completaduary 2015.

The construction of the Sakura IV project commencelllarch 2014, while completion is expected in thied quarter
of 2015.

Verdis Ill and IV
Description of project

The third and fourth phase ( last phases) of theligeroject are being developed on a land stri§,000 ni located in
the Wola district in Warsaw at Saigkiego Street and are a continuation of Verdis d &erdis Il, which were
completed during 2012 and 2013. The third and thetli phase of this project will comprise 2 seved-aleven-
storey, multi-family residential buildings with atal of 140 apartments and 6 commercial units andggregate floor
space of 7,700 frand 1 seven -storey, multi-family residential Hiriy with a total of 78 apartments with an aggregat
floor space of 4,000 mrespectively.

Stage of development

The construction of the Verdis Ill project commethde October 2013, while completion is expectedhe second
quarter of 2015. The construction of the VerdispMject commenced in June 2014, while completioaxjzected in
the fourth quarter of 2015.

Impressio Il
Description of project

The second and the last phase of the Impressieqirisj being developed on a part of a land strip,800 nf located in
the Grabiszyn district in Wroctaw at Rymarska Straed is a continuation of Impressio |, which waspleted during
2012. The last phase of this project will compistour-storey, multi-family residential buildingsitiv a total of 136
units with an aggregate floor space of 8,460 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Impressio Il project comoezhin November 2013, while completion is expedéteithe second
quarter of 2015.
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Outlook for 2015 (cont'd)

B. Current projects under construction and/or onlsacont’d)

Mtody Grunwald I

Description of project

The second phase of the Miody Grunwald projectisd developed on a land strip of 5,008 lotated in Grunwald
district in Pozna at Jeleniogdrska Street, and is a continuatioMiofdy Grunwald | which was completed in May

2014. The second phase of this project will congp8ssix-storey, multi-family residential buildingsth a total of 132
apartments and 5 commercial units and an aggrégatespace of 8,200 in

Stage of development

The construction of the Mtody Grunwald Il projecinamenced in April 2014, while completion is expécta the
fourth quarter of 2015.

Tamka
Description of project
The Tamka project is being developed on a lang stfi2,500 m located in theSrédmiecie district in Warsaw at

Tamka Street (Warsaw city center). The Tamka ptojéit comprise 1 eight-storey, multi-family resiaéal building
with a total of 60 apartments and 5 commercialawith an aggregate floor space of 5,500 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Tamka project commencedduember 2013, while completion is expected intthed quarter
of 2015.

Espresso Il

Description of project

The second phase of the Espresso project is benglaped on a land strip of 4,80F ocated in Wola district in
Warsaw at Jana Kazimierza Street, and is a contoruaf Espresso | project which was completed ébrigary 2014.

The second phase of this project will comprise \&reand-eight-storey, multi-family residential llifigs with a total
of 142 apartments and 10 commercial units and greagte floor space of 7,60F.m

Stage of development

The construction of the Espresso Il project comradrin August 2013, while completion is expectethmfirst quarter
of 2016.

Panoramika Il

Description of project

The second phase of the Panoramika project is hisngloped on a land strip of 12,208 imcated in Szczecin at
Dunska Street, and is a continuation of Panoramikahich was completed during 2012. The second phéaski®

project will comprise 1 nine-storey, multi-familgsidential building with a total of 107 apartmeatsl an aggregate
floor space of 5,900 m

Stage of development

The sale of units in the Panoramika Il project camoed in June 2014 and the construction work isncenced
September 2014, while completion is expected irsdemnd quarter of 2016.
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B. Current projects under construction and/or onlsacont’d)

Moko |
Description of project

The first phase of the Moko project is being depetb on a land strip of 12,200*ocated in Mokotéw district in
Warsaw at Magazynowa Street. The first phase &f pihoject will comprise 2 seven and eight-storey]tinfiamily
residential buildings with a total of 164 apartnseand 15 commercial units and an aggregate flaarespf 11,300 f

Stage of development

The construction of the Moko | project commencedSaptember 2014, while completion is expected égbcond
quarter of 2016.

Kamienica Jéyce | (previously named Copernicus)

Description of project

The first phase of the Kamienicazyee project is being developed on a land strip,656 nf located in Jiyce district
in Pozna at Kdécielna Street. The first phase of this project wilmprise 4 five and six-storey, multi-family residial
buildings with a total of 139 apartments and 5 caruial units and an aggregate floor space of 7r800

Stage of development

The construction of the Kamienicazyee | project commenced in September 2014, whitaptetion is expected in the
second quarter of 2016.

C. Projects for which construction work is plannéd commence during 2015

As the Company is aware of the increasing compaetitn the market, the Company has been carefulaoage the
number of new projects and the makeup of such gtoje order to best satisfy consumer demand. Qu2iBil5, the
Company is considering the commencement of devedopmf another seven stages of currently runnimgepts and
three new projects one of which will be in two pémswhich management believes are well-suited meoticustomer
requirements, including smaller apartments at nem@nomical prices. Furthermore, in order to minaniarket risk,
the Company’s management breaks down the new psojeo relatively smaller stages. In the eventny market
deterioration or difficulties with securing finang by the banks for the considered projects, manage may further
delay some of those plans.

a) New Projects
Nova Kroélikarnia | (previously named Jaminowa)

The Nova Krélikarnia project will be developed otaad strip of 82,000 focated inthe Mokotéw district in Warsaw
at Jéminowa Street. The project will comprise 340 umiith an aggregate floor space of 32,000 Whe first stage is
to comprise 116 units with an aggregate floor spatel0,900 i The Company is considering commencing
construction of the first phase of this projectidgr2015.

City Link I and Il (previously named Skierniewicka)

The City Link project will be developed on a lanttis of 8,893 m located inthe Wola district in Warsaw at
Skierniewicka Street. The project will comprise 4ifits with an aggregate floor space of 24,060 Fhe first and the
second stage are to comprise 134 units with areagee floor space of 6,100°mnd 178 units with an aggregate floor
space of 7,900 mrespectively The Company is considering commencing construatibthe first and the second
phase of this project during 2015.
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Outlook for 2015 (cont'd)

C. Projects for which construction work is plannéd commence during 2015

a) New Projects (cont’d)

Picasso |

The Picasso project will be developed on a lanig st 8,121 i located in Wroctaw at Na Grobli Street. The projec
will comprise 153 units with an aggregate floor @af 6,200 rh The first stage is to comprise 97 units with an
aggregate floor space of 3,706.rithe Company is considering commencing constroctibthe first phase of this
project during 2015.

b) New stages of running projects

Espresso Il

The Espresso Il project is continuation of Espoebsind Il projects. The project will comprise 186its with an
aggregate floor space of 8,306.Mhe Company commenced the construction of thigept in February 2015.

Espresso IV

The Espresso IV project (last stage) is continmatibEspresso | and Il projects. The project wilhgrise 148 units
with an aggregate floor space of 7,900 fthe Company is considering commencing constroaifathis project during
2015.

Moko Il

The Moko Il project (last stage) is continuation Mbko | project. The project will comprise 169 witvith an
aggregate floor space of 12,600, fihe Company commenced the construction of thagept in February 2015.

Chilli vV

The Chilli IV project is a continuation of Chilli, lll and 11l projects. The project will comprise 3#hits with an
aggregate floor space of 2,206.Mhe Company is considering commencing constroaifcthis project during 2015.

Mtody Grunwald I

The Miody Grunwald Il project (last stagéey a continuation of Miody Grunwald | and Il projecThe project will
comprise 117 units with an aggregate floor space &0 m. The Company is considering commencing constractio
of this project during 2015.

Panoramika Ill

The Panoramika lll project is a continuation of ®amika | and Il projects. The project will com@i&07 units with
an aggregate floor space of 5,908, ihe Company is considering commencing constroatibthis project during
2015.

Kamienica Jégyce I

The Kamienica Jg/ce |l project (last stage) is a continuation of@nica Jeyce | project. The project will comprise
151 units with an aggregate floor space of 7,460 The Company is considering commencing constroatibthis
project during 2015.
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D. Value of the preliminary sales agreements signeith clients for which revenue has not
been recognized in the Consolidated Statement ofm@rehensive Income as at
31 December 2014

The current volume and value of the preliminargesagreements signed with the clients do not imipecBtatement
of Comprehensive Income account immediately buy affler final settlement of the contracts with thestomers (for
more details see under “A — Projects completedpage 33). The table below presents the value opteEminary
sales agreements executed with the Company’s sli@nparticular for units that have not been redaph in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income:

Value of the preliminary sales

agreements signed with clients in Completed / expected
Project name Location thousands of PLN completion of construction
Gemini 11©) Warsaw 77 Completed
Verdis 1 & 11 ©) Warsaw 461 Completed
Sakura | & I Warsaw 1,349 Completed
Naturalis I, 11l & 111 © Warsaw 1,661 Completed
Panoramika { Szczecin 32 Completed
Constang’ Warsaw 1,008 Completed
Espresso Warsaw 811 Completed
Impressio ) Wroctaw - Completed
Miody Grunwald [ Pozna 328 Completed
Chilli1& 11 © Pozna 403 Completed
Chilli 1 © Pozna 3,727 Completed
Subtotal completed projects 9,857
Miody Grunwald 11®” Pozna 8,807 2015
Sakura 111 Warsaw 33,370 2015
Sakura IV Warsaw 16,957 2015
Verdis 11l ©) Warsaw 47,226 2015
Verdis IV Warsaw 14,208 2015
Impressio 1" Wroctaw 13,657 2015
Tamka™ Warsaw 39,805 2015
Espresso I{” Warsaw 22,427 2016
Panoramika If” Szczecin 3,426 2016
Moko | ® Warsaw 41,524 2016
Kamienica Jayce 1 Pozna 11,723 2016
Subtotal ongoing projects 253,130
Total 262,987

® For information on the completed projects seesBass highlights during the year ended 31 Decerbg4 — B. Results breakdown by
project” (pages 20 to 22).

™ For information on current projects under constioat, see “Outlook for 2015 — B. Current projectsden construction” (pages 33 to 36).

E. Main risks and uncertainties during 2015

While the improving market in 2014, potentially lesdwell for the Company in 2015, the overall ecoitosituation in

Europe and in Poland and the ongoing uncertaiimid¢se housing market make it very difficult to giet results for
2015 precisely. The level of development of theigbholeconomy, the performance of the banking ingusind

consumers’ interest in new housing projects, a$ aglincreasing competition in the market are aergid to be the
most significant uncertainties for the financiahyending 31 December 2015.
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Major shareholders

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as of @te @f publication of this annual report (19 Febyu2015), the
following shareholders are entitled to exerciser@f of the voting rights at the General MeetingStfareholders in
the Company:

As of As of As of
19 February 2015 Change in 31 December 2014 Change in 31 December 2013
Number of shares / number of Number of shares / number Number of shares /
% of shares shares % of shares of shares % of shares
Shares issued 272,360,000 - 272,360,000 - BOB0
Major shareholders:
o 87,449,187 87,449,187 - 87,449,187
1 T.R. 2013 B.V. 32.1% 32.1% 32.1%
I.T.R. Dori B.V. 87,449,187 87,449,187 - 87,449,187
32.1% 32.1% 32.1%
RN Residential B.V" 41,800,000 41,800,000 - 41,800,000
15.3% 15.3% 15.3%
Metlife Otwarty Fundusz N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
=
Emerytalny Between 3%-5%. Between 3%-5%. Between 5%-10%.
ING Otwarty Fundusz N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Emerytalny o o o o 0
Between 5%-10%. Between 5%-10%. Between 5%:10

*) In December 2012, I.T.R. 2012 B.V. and |.T.R. DBIV. entered into a partnership formed under Duety which holds the voting rights
attached to 174,898,374 shares in the Companyseqtiag 64.2% of the total number of shares inGbmpany, which were previously held
by I.T.R. Dori B.V.

I.T.R. 2012 B.V. is an indirect subsidiary of G&ICity Holdings N.V. and |.T.R. Dori B.V. is alssidiary of U. Dori Group Ltd.

(**)  On 14 November 2013, the shares in RN ResidentMl Bpreviously GE Real Estate CE Residential B.Were (indirectly, through the
acquisition of the shares of RN Development HoldBwy.) acquired by I.T.R. 2012 B.V. and U. Dori @m Ltd., which due to this
transaction increased indirect shareholding in Bortsy 7.67% each. As a result of this transactitwb&@ City Holdings N.V. indirectly
controls 39.78% of the Company’s shares and U. Booup Ltd. indirectly controls 39.78% of the Compa shares.

(**) Formerly Amplico Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny.

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shalbgsManagement Board members in the year ended
31 December 2014 and until the date of publicatiointhe report

Shares
The following members of the Management Board olares in the Company:

- Mr Ronen Ashkenazi as at 31 December 2014 and #watay of publishing this report indirectly heddl8%
interest in the Company.
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Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shalssSupervisory Board members in the year ended
31 December 2014 and until the date of publicatiohthe report

Shares
The following members of the Supervisory Board @liares in the Company:

- Mr Arie Mientkavich as at 31 December 2014 and tath@ day of publishing this report indirectly hédd17%
interest in the Company.

Changes in the Management Board in the year endddicember 2014 and until the date of publication
of the report

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholdestdhon 30 June 2014, Mr Peter Dudolenski was ap@oin
member of the Management Board and managing dirdetior a term of four years. Mr Dudolenski is thele
executive board member of Global City Holdings Navid therefore has a related party consideratidim oie of the
major shareholders. His appointment came into fascef 30 June 2014. Mr Dudolenski replaced Mrdk@reidinger,
who stepped down as managing director B effectivéhe day of Mr Dudolenski’s appointment.

Changes in the Supervisory Board in the year endddDecember 2014 and until the date of publication
of the report

None.

Indemnity for Management Board members and SupeovisBoard members

The Articles of Association of the Company provide an indemnification for all directors of the Cpany (article
42). The members of the Supervisory Board and Mamagt Board shall be reimbursed for (i) all reabtmaosts of
conducting a defense against claims based on ad&lures to act in the exercise of their duti@g,any damages or
fines payable by them as a result of an act ouriaito act in the exercise of their duties, andl i@asonable costs of
appearing in other legal proceedings in which they involved as current or former directors of @@mpany. No
indemnification will be given to any director if itas been determined by a judgment which is nodosgbject to
appeal, that the act or failure to act is char&ddras willful misconduct or gross negligence. dkattons to award the
indemnification in a specific case are to be disetbin the Annual Accounts of the Company. Adoptbthe Annual
Accounts will be considered to be approval of ste$olutions, unless the General Meeting of Shadehsldecides
otherwise.
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Overview of the results during the three months edd31 December 2014

The Company’s net loss for the three months endedd8cember 2014 was PLN 15,773 thousand and can be

summarized as follows:

For the three months ended 31 December 2014 2013
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) (restated*®)
Revenue 10,661 39,060
Cost of sales** (21,732) (33,005)
Gross profit/(loss) (11,071) 6,055
Changes in the value of investment property - 774
Selling and marketing expenses (1,564) (1,686)
Administrative expenses (4,639) (3,953)
Share of profit/(loss) from joint ventures (34) (359)
Other expenses (658) (669)
Other income 364 251
Result from operating activities (17,602) 413
Finance income 464 611
Finance expense (1,398) (534)
Net finance income/(expense) (934) 77
Profit/(loss) before taxation (18,536) 490
Income tax benefit 2,642 369
Profit/(loss) for the period before non-controllinginterests (15,894) 859
Non-controlling interests 121 250
Net profit/(loss) for the period attributable to
the equity holders of the parent (15,773) 1,109

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to th@gotdated Financial Statements as at 31 DecembBé&B2and reflect adjustments
made as detailed in Note 2(f) (see pages 59 and 60)

** Including a Write-down adjustment in the amowftPLN 12,471 thousand during three months endeBé&ember 2014 and nil during
three months ended 31 December 2013.

Other

As of 31 December 2014, the Company has issuedagtgas for bank loans granted to subsidiaries atimguto
a total of PLN 28,000 thousand.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had no litigatiiaims or liabilities exceeding in total 10% oétGroup’s equity.
The following net movements in the Group’s mainysmns took place during the year ended 31 Deced#4:

* adecrease in the provision for deferred tax litedl of PLN 1,182 thousand (a decrease of PLNtB8&sand
during the year ended 31 December 2013).
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Additional information to the report (cont’d)

Statement relating to the system of internal coritro

In line with best practice provision 11.1.4 of tHeutch Code and bearing in mind the recommendatminghe
Monitoring Committee Corporate Governance Code,Gbenpany issues a declaration about the effectssné the
system of internal control of the processes on kvttie financial reporting is based.

In 2014, the Management Board assessed the eHeetg of the system of internal controls for firanceporting.

During the investigation on which this assessmeag tased, no shortcomings were identified that npghsibly have
a material impact on the financial reporting. Oa tasis of the results of the above assessmerthanisk analyses
that were carried out at the Company within thenfeavork of governance and compliance, the ManageBweatd is of

the opinion - after consulting with the Audit Contitee and with the approval of the Supervisory Boattat the

system of internal controls provides a reasonaldgrab of certainty that the financial reporting tegms no

inaccuracies of material importance. An inhereatrednt in how people and organizations work togeither dynamic
world is that systems of internal control cannodvide an absolute degree (though they can provideaaonable
degree) of certainty as regards the prevention aterial inaccuracies in the financial reporting dnel prevention of
losses and fraud.

In our view the system of internal controls, foaisa the financial reporting, functioned effectivelver the past year.
There are no indications that the system of inferaatrols will not function effectively in 2015.

Directors Representation statement

In conjunction with the EU Transparency Directive iacorporated in Chapter 5.3 of the Dutch Findn®larkets
Supervision Act (Wet op het financieel toezichg tManagement Board therefore confirms to the biess &nowledge
that:

- the Annual Financial Statements for the year en8ieddecember 2014 give a true and fair view of theets,
liabilities, financial position and profits and foef the Company and its subsidiaries,

- the additional management information discloseth@nAnnual Report gives a true and fair view of @@mpany and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 and the afiairs during the financial year to which tleport relates, and

- the Annual Report describes the principal riskrigcihe Company. These are described in detailignDirector’s
Report.

Representation concerning election of the Compangigitor

The Management Board confirms that the Companyitauhas been elected according to applicablesraled the
audit firm and its registered accountants engagetieé audit of the financial statements of Ronsaropge N.V. meet
the objectives to present an objective and indepeinceport. The agreement with the auditors wasesigon 8 July
2014. For information about agreed-upon engagenadrtte Company’s auditor see Note 15 of the Companancial
Statements.
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Additional information to the report (cont’d)

Financial risk management, objectives and policies

For information on the financial risk managemeitjectives and policies see Note 40 of the Constil&inancial
Statements.

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tafiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer algs and Marketing Director
Ronen Ashkenazi Peter Dudolenski

Rotterdam, 19 February 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To: The shareholders and Supervisory Board of RoEagsope N.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statements 201

Our opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statésnfem the year 2014 of Ronson Europe N.V. (heezaftthe
Company”), based in Rotterdam, The Netherlands. fihencial statements include the consolidated i
statements and the company financial statements.

In our opinion:

- The consolidated financial statements give a trual dair view of the financial position of
Ronson Europe N.V. as at 31 December 2014 and oé#ult and its cash flows for 2014 in accordanitie
International Financial Reporting Standards as tatbpy the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Paof 9
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

- The company financial statements give a true aindview of the financial position of Ronson EuroleV. as
at 31 December 2014 and of its result for 2014cooadance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Cwilde.

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise:

1. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014;

2. the following statements for 2014: consolidatedesteents of profit or loss and other comprehenshaoiine,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended; and

3. notes to the consolidated financial statementdudiieg a summary of the significant accounting gie and other
explanatory information.

The Company financial statements comprise:

1. the Company Statement of Financial Position &4 &@ecember 2014;

2. the following overviews for 2014: Company Statersenf Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive income,
Changes in Equity and Cash Flows for the year &émeled; and

3. notes comprising a summary of the significant aotiog policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch, lemiuding the Dutch Standards on Auditing anceinational
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities undherse standards are further described in the “Gspomsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements” section wf eport.

We are independent of Ronson Europe N.V. in accmelavith the “Verordening inzake de onafhankelijdhean
accountants bij assurance-opdrachten” (ViO) anderottelevant independence regulations in the Nethdd.
Furthermore we have complied with the “Verorderjeglrags- en beroepsregels accountants” (VGBA).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour opinion.

Materiality

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error anccansidered material if, individually or in the aggate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economiisidas of users taken on the basis of these finhstatements.
The materiality affects the nature, timing and aktef our audit procedures and the evaluation ef ¢ffifect of
identified misstatements on our opinion.
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Based on our professional judgment we determined ritateriality for the financial statements as a levhat
PLN 4,207,000. The materiality is based on 0.5%otdl assets. We believe that basing our materialit total assets
best reflects what is important for the users ef fihancial statements, considering the naturdefentity’s business
and industry as well as the entity’s current openst We have also taken into account misstatenadfor possible
misstatements that in our opinion are materiabfaalitative reasons.

We agreed with the Supervisory Board that misstatémin excess of PLN 210,000, which are identifiedng the
audit, would be reported to them, as well as smatisstatements that in our view must be reportedjaalitative
grounds.

Scope of the group audit
Ronson Europe N.V. is head of a group of entitieBe financial information of this group is includéd the
consolidated financial statements of Ronson Euhbjye

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opiniwe are also responsible for directing, supergisand
performing the group audit. In this respect we hdegermined the nature and extent of the auditquoes to be
carried out for group entities. Decisive were ttze &ind / or the risk profile of the group entit@soperations. On this
basis, we selected group entities for which antamdreview had to be carried out on the completeo$ financial
information or specific items.

Our group audit mainly concentrated on significgidup entities based on the relative size of tlegentity on total
assets, including the size of the work in progréssshed goods and outstanding finance positi@ignificant group
entities are also determined based on specific ridkmaterial misstatements. We have performedt gudcedures
ourselves at group entity Ronson Europe N.V. angiimt operation with our local team in Poland, performed full

audit procedures for the significant group entitiessPoland. We performed review procedures or $igeaiudit

procedures at the other group entities.

Following our assessment of the risk of materiabstatement to the consolidated financial statememshave
performed full audit procedures on group entitiegresenting 95% of the group’s total assets. Tl atork on the
significant group entities were executed at lewdlsnateriality applicable to each individual entithich were much
lower than group materiality.

By performing the procedures mentioned above aigemntities, together with additional proceduregratp level, we
have been able to obtain sufficient and appropsdatt evidence about the group’s financial infotiorato provide an
opinion about the consolidated financial statements

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in oafegsional judgment, were of most significance um audit of the
financial statements. We have communicated theakelyt matters to the Supervisory Board. The keyitaudtters are
not a comprehensive reflection of all matters disedl.

These matters were addressed in the context ofwdit of the financial statements as a whole antbiming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepaigitéan on these matters.

Inventory valuation

Inventory consist of multi-family residential reastate projects under development or constructimhis the most
significant account in the consolidated financtatements of the Company. Inventory is measuréidealower of cost
and net realizable value. The cost of inventoryudes amongst other land or leasehold rights fod,l@onstruction
costs, planning and design costs, perpetual udufiees and real estate taxes, borrowing costs asfgégsional fees
directly attributable to the project and constroictoverheads and other directly related costs.

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world’pital markets and

real estate markets. As a result, there is ledaingr with regard to valuations and market valoas change rapidly
due to the current market conditions.
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The Company assesses internally the net realizaddlee of the inventory and decreased the value whennet

realizable value was lower than the cost. The aalizable value calculation is highly dependentestimates like
amongst other the estimated sales prices per engstimated construction costs and the expectédgiof sales of the
units. Management assessed possible write-dowmwamiory for each project separately, accordinth&projection

of revenues net from cost of sales. We have detemmithat inventory is assessed by managemento€dmpany
periodically and that the net realizable value sss®nt is based on the correct data. We have useolwm EY real

estate valuation specialists to assist us in olpigian understanding of management’s analyses. AWe évaluated the
work of management, including the competence, déped and objectivity of management with respé&ztthe net

realizable value assessment, and have assesséketl@ampany has sufficient effective internal colstdesigned and
in operation to mitigate the risk of incorrect \ation of inventory.

Additionally, we have performed substantive audibgedures, by amongst others, extensively discussisith
management of the Company with respect to the ealizable value method applied, the key assumpticsesd,
including comparing these assumptions to similanjgmts in the market and the results of the nelizadzle value
calculations on individual projects. For more imf@tion about inventory, please refer to note 20.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue arising from the multi-family residentielk estate projects under development or construatontracts,
represents the majority of the Company’s total nexe As disclosed in note 3(b), revenue is recaghiay the
Company when the significant risks and rewardswefiership of the residential units have been passdte buyer
and when the revenue can be measured reliable.

The risks and rewards are considered as transféoréide buyer when the residential units have tmdystantially
constructed, the occupancy permit for the propbeg been issued, apartment has been accepted loygteamer
(hand-over protocol has been signed between therkand the Company) and the full amount resultiognfthe sale
agreement has been paid by the buyer. The remaiiskg are considered by the Company’s Managenmentmaote.
Consequently, the proper cut-off of revenues has lidentified as a key audit matter.

We have assessed that the Company has sufficifetieé internal controls designed and in operatmmitigate the
risk of incorrect and incomplete revenue recognitimcluding the proper cut-off of revenues. Additally, we have
performed substantive audit procedures, by amootygrs, detailed margin analyses, extensive sufbgtatest of
details and test of transactions to assess theatoass and completeness of recognition of reveinagkiding the
proper cut-off. For more information about reverplease refer to note 3(b) and note 6.

Responsibilities of management and the SupervisBoard for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aimcfesentation of the financial statements iroetance with EU-
IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Codad for the preparation of the management boardrtrép

accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch C&dde. Furthermore, management is responsibleufdr mternal
control as management determines is necessaryatiesthe preparation of the financial statemerds dhe free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud omrerro

As part of the preparation of the financial statataRemanagement is responsible for assessing thgp&uwy’s ability to

continue as a going concern. Based on the finang@rting frameworks mentioned, management shprdgare the
financial statements using the going concern bakiagccounting unless management either intendgqtaodate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no readikBenative but to do so. Management should digckevents and
circumstances that may cast significant doubt @nGbhmpany’s ability to continue as a going conderthe financial

statements.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for oversetirgCompany’s financial reporting process.
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the financiadtatements
Our objective is to plan and perform the audit@gssient in a manner that allows us to obtain s@ffitend appropriate
audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but hebhute, level of assurance, which means we mapan¢ detected
all errors and fraud.

We have exercised professional judgment and havetaneed professional skepticism throughout the itaud
accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, iniclgdhe International Standards on Auditing. ethieguirements
and independence requirements. Our audit includged e

- ldentifying and assessing the risks of materialstatement of the financial statements, whethertdu’eaud

or error, designing and performing audit procedussponsive to those risks, and obtaining audilende
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide aidoder our opinion. The risk of not detecting a erél
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher thandiee resulting from error, as fraud may involvdusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentatiamghe override of internal control.

- Obtaining an understanding of internal control vatg to the audit in order to design audit proceduhat are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for theppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverséghe
Company’s internal control.

- Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pesicised and the reasonableness of accounting estiarad
related disclosures made by management.

- Concluding on the appropriateness of managemes€sofithe going concern basis of accounting, aseéda
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mateniaértainty exists related to events or condititreg may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s abilityctmtinue as a going concern. If we conclude thaagerial
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attentn our auditor’s report to the related disclesum the
financial statements or, if such disclosures asgléguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusiores laeised
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date phaditor's report. However, future events or ctiodis may
cause the Company ceasing to continue as a gomgeon

- Evaluating the overall presentation, structure @matent of the financial statements, includingdiselosures.

- Evaluating whether the financial statements reptetbee underlying transactions and events in a matirat
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regardamgong other matters, the planned scope and tiwmirthe
audit and significant audit findings, including asignificant findings in internal control that weeintify during our
audit.

We provide the Supervisory Board with a statemleat tve have complied with relevant ethical requeata regarding
independence, and to communicate with them altioglships and other matters that may reasonabtidigght to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, retatftjuards.

From the matters communicated with the SuperviBmrgrd, we determine those matters that were of sigatficance
in the audit of the financial statements of therent period and are therefore the key audit mattes describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or ragjah precludes public disclosure about the mattewhen, in
extremely rare circumstances, not communicatingrthtter is in the public interest.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the management board report and the otlrdormation
Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Boalf the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our obligatitreport about
the management board report and other information):

- We have no deficiencies to report as a result ofesamination whether the management board refothe

extent we can assess, has been prepared in accerdith Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Codeda
whether the information as required by Part 9 o6iB2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been annexed.

- We report that the management board report, toeittent we can assess, is consistent with the fiabnc
statements.

Engagement
We were engaged as auditor of Ronson Europe N.\8. &uly 2014, as of the audit for year 2014 ancehaperated as

statutory auditor ever since that date.
Amsterdam, 19 February 2015

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by J.H. de Prie
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Othe€omprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

(restated*)
Revenue 6 153,155 207,025
Cost of sales** (141,225) (164,460)
Gross profit 11,930 42,565
Changes in the value of investment property 16 - 774
Selling and marketing expenses 8 (6,881) (6,821)
Administrative expenses 9 (18,220) (15,905)
Share of profit/(loss) in joint ventures 18 (311) (680)
Other expenses 11 (3,058) (2,608)
Other income 12 726 731
Result from operating activities (15,814) 18,056
Finance income 13 1,957 1,872
Finance expense 13 (4,827) (2,842)
Net finance income (2,870) (970)
Profit/(loss) before taxation (18,684) 17,086
Income tax benefit 14 3,469 958
Profit/(loss) for the year (15,215) 18,044
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (15,215) 18,044
Total profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
equity holders of the parent (15,431) 18,648
non-controlling interests 26 216 (604)
Total profit/(loss) for the year (15,215) 18,044
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
equity holders of the parent (15,431) 18,648
non-controlling interests 26 216 (604)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (15,215) 18,044
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basidduted) 27 272,360,000 272,360,000
In Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Net earnings per share attributable to
the equity holders of the parent (basic and dilutejl 27 (0.057) 0.068

* Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thagotdated Financial Statements as at 31 Decemb&B 2nd reflect adjustments made

as detailed in Note 2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).

**  Including a Write-down adjustment in the amoofPLN 12,471 thousand during 2014 and nil dur2@g.3.

The notes on pages 54 to 115 are an integral phittese consolidated financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2014 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

(restated*)  (restated®)
Assets
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 15 9,424 9,270 8,660
Investment property 16 9,217 9,840 8,279
Loans granted to third parties 17 1,623 630 1,043
Investment in joint ventures 18 16,022 15,295 14,969
Deferred tax assets 19 14,213 11,845 11,715
Total non-current assets 50,499 46,880 44,666
Current assets
Inventory 20 706,501 604,790 653,419
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 21 8,659 38,063 30,604
Income tax receivable 475 524 2,422
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 22 2,031 1,268 2,944
Loans granted to third parties 17 - 843 -
Other current financial assets 23 2,722 515 -
Cash and cash equivalents 24 70,590 52,153 44,550
Total current assets 790,978 698,156 733,939
Total assets 841,477 745,036 778,605

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thegotidated Financial Statements as at 31 Decemb8 2nd reflect adjustments made as

detailed in Note 2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).

The notes on pages 54 to 115 are an integral phittese consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (cond)

As at 31 December 2014 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

(restated*) (restated*)
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 20,762 20,762 20,762
Share premium 282,873 282,873 282,873
Retained earnings 145,607 161,038 152,088
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 25 449,242 464,673 455,723
Non-controlling interests 26 2,099 1,883 3,910
Total equity 451,341 466,556 459,633
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Floating rate bond loans 28, 29 158,825 113,759 86,756
Secured bank loans 28, 30 73,699 27,528 39,893
Loans from third parties 28, 31 2,737 2,657 6,228
Other payables - 394 816
Share-based payment liabilities 35 702 - -
Deferred tax liability 19 9,440 10,622 11,517
Total non-current liabilities 245,403 154,960 145,210
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 32 43,711 32,688 38,028
Floating rate bond loans 28, 29 924 5,607 1,657
Secured bank loans 28, 30 5 14,450 65,319
Advances received 33 99,013 70,565 68,492
Income tax payable 2 9 35
Provisions 34 1,078 201 231

Total current liabilities

144,733 123,520 173,762

Total liabilities

390,136 278,480 318,972

Total equity and liabilities

841,477 745,036 778,605

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thegotidated Financial Statements as at 31 Decemb8 2nd reflect adjustments made as

detailed in Note 2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).

The notes on pages 54 to 115 are an integral phtttese consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 Decemb@13:

Attributable to the
Equity holders of parent

Non-

Share Share Retained - Total
< - - Total controlling ey
capital premium earnings interests equity
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) INIETests
Balance at 1 January 2013 20,762 282,873 152,223 55,858 3,910 459,768
Changes in accounting polices* - - (135) (135) - 5013
Balance at 1 January 2013 (restated*) 20,762 282,873 152,088 455,723 3,910 459,633
Comprehensive income (restated*):
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 - - 48,6 18,648 (604) 18,044
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 18,648 18,648 (604) 18,044
Dividend paid (see Note 25) - - (8,171) (8,171) - (8,171)
Acquisition of Non-controlling interest
(see Note 26) - - (1,527) (1,527) (1,423) (2,950)
Balance at 31 December 2013 20,762 282,873 161,038 464,673 1,883 466,556
Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 - - 435) (15,431) 216 (15,215)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - (15,431) (15,431) 216 (15,215)
Balance at 31 December 2014 20,762 282,873 145,607 449,242 2,099 451,341

* Certain amounts shown do not correspond to the Glideted Financial Statements as at 31 December328d reflect
adjustments made as detailed in Note 2(f) (see pg@esd 60).

The notes on pages 54 to 115 are an integral ptti@se consolidated financial statements
52



Ronson Europe N.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2014

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

(restated*)
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Profit for the period (15,215) 18,044
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period t@hcash used in operating activities
Depreciation 9,15 638 627
Write-down of inventory 20 12,471 -
Decreasel/(increase) in the value of investmentestpp 16 - (774)
Finance expense 13 4,827 2,842
Finance income 13 (1,957) (1,872)
Profit on sale of property and equipment 12 (72) (152)
Share of loss/( profit) from joint ventures 18 311 680
Share-based payment 35 702 -
Income tax benefit 14 (3,469) (958)
Subtotal (1,763) 18,437
Decrease/(increase) in inventory 42 (75,074) 60,422
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivablgéprepayments 42 435 (7,459)
Decrease/(increase) in other current financialtasse (2,207) (515)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payableacanded expenses 10,629 (5,762)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 34 877 (30)
Increase/(decrease) in advances received 28,448 2,073
Subtotal (38,655) 67,166
Interest paid (12,521) (15,790)
Interest received 1,253 1,249
Income tax received/(paid) (39) 1,805
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (49,962) 54,430

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Acquisition of property and equipment 15 (792) (713)
Proceeds from sale of investment property 623 -
Loans granted to third parties 17 - (327)
Investment in joint ventures 18 (475) (350)
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized (763) 1,676
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 71 658
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (1,336) 944

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Proceeds from bank loans, net of bank charges 30 69,030 26,438
Repayment of bank loans 30 (38,413) (90,589)
Proceeds from bond loans, net of issue costs 29 44,118 113,322
Repayment of bond loans 29 (5,000) (82,500)
Acquisition of Non-controlling interest 26 - (2,950)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent 25 - (8,171)
Loans received from third parties 31 - 943
Repayment of loans received from third parties 31 - (4,264)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 69,735 (47,771)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 18,437 7,603
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 52,153 44,550
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 24 70,590 52,153

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thesGlisiated Financial Statements as at 31 Decemb#8 2Md reflect adjustments made as detailed in B(fje

(see pages 59 and 60).
The notes on pages 54 to 115 are an integral piathi@se consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(@)

(b)

Background and business of the Company

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), a Dutch puldiempany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam, the
Netherlands, was incorporated on 18 June 2007 rddjistered office is located at Weena 210-212,dRdém,
the Netherlands. The Company (together with itssRadubsidiaries ‘the Group’), is active in the elepment
and sale of units, primarily apartments, in mudtivily residential real-estate projects to individuastomers in
Poland.

The shares of the Company are traded on the WaBtavk Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31
December 2014, 39.78% of the outstanding sharexa@rgolled by I.T.R. 2012 B.V., which is an indite
subsidiary of Global City Holdings N.V. (‘ITR 2012(32.11% through a jointly controlled partnersfopmed
under Dutch law between ITR 2012 and ITR Dori Bavid 7.67% through a jointly controlled company fedn
under Dutch law between ITR 2012 and U. Dori Groaipd 39.78% of the outstanding shares are controle

U. Dori Group Ltd (‘U Dori Group’) (32.11% through jointly controlled partnership formed under Dutatv
between ITR 2012 and ITR Dori B.V. (of which it del 50% of the shares) and 7.67% through a jointly
controlled company formed under Dutch law betweER 2012 and U. Dori Group). The remaining 20.44% of
the outstanding shares are held by other investmisding Metlife Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny holdin
between 3% and 5% and ING Otwarty Fundusz Emerytatiding between 5% and 10% of the outstanding
shares. The number of shares held by the investaqual to the number of votes, as there are ivilqued
shares issued by the Company.

A list of the companies from which the financiata are included in these Consolidated Financite8tents
and the extent of ownership and control are preskintNote 1(b).

The details of the Polish companies whose finansiatements have been included in these Consalidate
Financial Statements, the year of incorporation #redpercentage of ownership and voting rightsctliyeor
indirectly held by the Company as at 31 Decembé#2@re presented on the following pages.

The projects managed by the companies are in \&astages of development ranging from being in toegss
of acquiring land for development to projects whick completed or near completion.
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1. Background and business of the Company (cont’d)

Year of Share of ownership & voting rights

Entity name incorporation at the end of

31 December 31 December
201« 201z

a. held directly by the Company :
1. Ronson Development Management Sp. z 0.0. 1999 100.0% 100.0%
2. Ronson Development 2000 Sp. z o.0. 2000 100.0% 100.0%
3. Ronson Development Warsaw Sp. z 0.0. 2000 100.0% 100.0%
4. Ronson Development Investment Sp. z o.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
5. Ronson Development Metropol Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
6. Ronson Development Properties Sp. z o0.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
7. Ronson Development Apartments Sp. z 0.0. 2003 100.0% 100.0%
8. Ronson Development Enterprise Sp. z o0.0. 2004 100.0% 100.0%
9. Ronson Development Company Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
10. Ronson Development Creations Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
11. Ronson Development Buildings Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
12. Ronson Development Structure Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
13. Ronson Development Pozn&p. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
14. E.E.E. Development Sp. z o0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
15. Ronson Development Innovation Sp. z o.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
16. Ronson Development Wroctaw Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
17. Ronson Development Capital Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
18. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
19. Ronson Development Construction Sp. z o0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
20. Ronson Development City Sp. z o.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
21. Ronson Development Village Sp. z d®. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
22. Ronson Development Conception Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
23. Ronson Development Architecture Sp. z o0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
24. Ronson Development Skyline Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
25. Ronson Development Continental Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
26. Ronson Development Universal Sp. z 6o. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
27. Ronson Development Retreat Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
28. Ronson Development South Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
29. Ronson Development West Sp. z o0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
30. Ronson Development East Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
31. Ronson Development North Sp. z o0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
32. Ronson Development Providence Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
33. Ronson Development Finco Sp. z 0.0. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
34. Ronson Development Partner 2 sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
35. Ronson Development Skyline 2010 Sp. z 0.0. w lilaejd 2010 100.0% 100.0%
36. Ronson Development Partner 3 Sp. z 0.0. 2012 100.0% 100.0%

(1) The Company has the power to govern the financial @perating policies of this entity and to obtaienefits from its activities, whereas
Kancelaria Radcy Prawnego Jarostaw Zubrzycki htfgslegal title to the shares of this entity.
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1. Background and business of the Company (cont’d)
Share of ownership & voting rights

Entity name Year of incorporation at the end of
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
b. held indirectly by the Company :

37. AGRT Sp. zo.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
38. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0.- Panoraipka 2007 100.0% 100.0%
39. Ronson Development Sp z 0.0. — Estate Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
40. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. — Home Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
41. Ronson Development Sp z 0.0 — Horizon Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
42. Ronson Development Partner 3 Sp. z 0.0- Sakura Sp.k 2007 100.0% 100.0%
43. Ronson Development Sp z 0.0 —Town Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
44. Ronson Development Destiny Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
45. Ronson Development Millenium Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
46. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-EEE 2011 Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
47. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Apartments 2011 Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
48. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-ldea Sp.k 2009 100.0% 100.0%
49. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Destiny 2011 Sp.k. 0092 100.0% 100.0%
50. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. — Enter@f41 Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
51. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. — Retf¥t 3p.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
52. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Wroctaw 2011 Sp.k. 0920 100.0% 100.0%
53. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. — 2011 Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
54. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. — Gemini 2 Sp.k. 9200 100.0% 100.0%
55. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.- Verdis Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
56. Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0. 2006 82.0% 82.0%
57. Ronson Development Apartments 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
58. Ronson Development 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
59. Ronson Development Retreat 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
60. Ronson Development Enterprise 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
61. Ronson Development Wroctaw 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
62. E.E.E. Development 2010 Sp. z o0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
63. Ronson Development Nautica 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
64. Ronson Development Gemini 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
65. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Naturalis Sp.k. 1201 100.0% 100.0%
66. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Impressio Sp.k. 1201 100.0% 100.0%
67. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Continental 201k.Sp 2011 100.0% 100.0%
68. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Providence 2014 Sp. 2011 100.0% 100.0%
69. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. — Capithl Bp. k 2011 100.0% 100.0%
70. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Architecture 201k.S 2011 100.0% 100.0%
71. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - City 1 Sp.k. 2012 100.0% 100.0%
72. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - City 2 Sp.k. 2012 100.0% 100.0%
73. Ronson Development Sp. z o.0. - City 3 Sp.k. 2012 100.0% 100.0%
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2.

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Basis of preparation and measurement

Basis of preparation and statement of compliare

These Consolidated Financial Statements have Ipeepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘IFRS0). the year ended 31 December 2014, in light ef th
current process of IFRS endorsement in the Europkeéon and the nature of the Group’s activitieg tRRSs
applied by the Group are different from the IFR®sl@sed by the European Union. The Group used the
possibility given by International Financial Repogt Standards as adopted by the EU to adopt staadBRS

10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 from the annual periodsnpégg on 1 January 2014, IFRIC 21 from the annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2015, whereas chBang&RS 2 and IFRS 3 resulting from the revieuFiRS
2010-2012 from the annual periods beginning onnuidey 2016. IFRSs comprise standards and intetjmesa
accepted by the International Accounting Stand&asrd (“IASB”) and the International Financial Refiog
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). The Companyn&incial Statements have been prepared in accordance
with article 362.8 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were auhdrby the Boards of Directors of Ronson Europe. W

19 February 2015. These Consolidated Financiaérsients have been prepared on the assumptionhbat t
Group is a going concern, meaning it will contirineoperation for the foreseeable future and willdide to
realize assets and discharge liabilities in thenabicourse of its operations.

Basis of measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have begpaped on the historical cost basis, except foestment
property which was measured at fair value. The odthused to measure fair values for the purpogecioare
the Consolidated Financial Statements are discuUssger in Note 16.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of eawtity in the Group are measured using the cuyr@fiche
primary economic environment in which the entityemges (the ‘functional currency’) being Polish &¥lo
(‘PLN’). The Consolidated Financial Statements gresented in thousands of Polish Zloty, except when
otherwise indicated, which is the parent compamgfional and presentation currency. Although thenfany

is Dutch, it operates mainly in Poland.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requiragagement to make judgments, estimates and assmshat
affect the application of accounting policies ahé teported amounts of assets, liabilities, thelaksire of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effihancial statements, and the reported amounitscoime and
expenses during the reported period. Actual resnéty differ from these estimates. Estimates ancerlyidg
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. iRegito accounting estimates are recognized ipdhnod in
which the estimate is revised. In particular, infation about significant areas of estimation, utadety and
critical judgments in applying accounting policilsat have the most significant effect on the amsunt
recognized in the financial statements, are desdrib the following notes:

. Note 16 — investment property

. Note 19 — utilization of tax losses

. Note 20 — inventory

. Note 34 — provisions

. Note 38 — commitments and contingencies

Estimation of net realizable value for inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and eetizable value (NRV). NRV for completed inventgmoperty

(Finished goods) is assessed with reference toehadaditions and prices existing at the reportiate and is
determined by the Group having taken suitable eateadvice and in the light of recent market tratisas.

NRV in respect of inventory property under condfiarc (Work in progress) is assessed with refereéacaarket
prices at the reporting date for similar complgteaperty, less estimated costs to complete corigiruand less
an estimate of the time value of money to the datmmpletion.
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2. Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)
(d)  Use of estimates and judgments (cont'd)

Valuation of investment property

The fair value of the investment property is deiead by independent real estate valuation expagsdon the
discounted cash flow approach. The determinatiotheffair value of the investment property requites use
of estimates such as future cash flows from aqsetsh as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revestreams,
capital values of fixtures and fittings, any enwingental matters and the overall repair and conditb the

property) and discount rates applicable to thosetas

Deferred tax asset recognition

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unusetbsars and deductible temporary differences tegent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be availatdgainst which the losses and deductible tempaliffarences
can be utilized. Significant management judgmengdgiired to determine the amount of deferred &sets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing thedlevel of future taxable profits together withure tax
planning strategies.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Notent¥4Note 19.

(e) Basis of consolidation

These Consolidated Financial Statements compresdinancial statements of the Company and itsidigvaes
as at 31 December 2014. Control is achieved wherGtloup is exposed, or has rights, to variablermstérom
its involvement with the investee and has the gbib affect those returns through its power over investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee ifl amly if, the Group has:

. power over the investee (i.e. existing rights tjige it the current ability to direct the relevadtivities
of the investee);

. exposure, or rights, to variable returns fromritgilvement with the investee;

. the ability to use its power over the investeeffec its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controisnaestee if facts and circumstances indicate tthexte are
changes to one or more of the three elements dfaloonsolidation of a subsidiary begins when @reup
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases wheGroup loses control of the subsidiary. Asdebilities,

income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired posksl of during the year are included in the codatgd
financial statements from the date the Group gamstrol until the date the Group ceases to corttiel
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comgmsive income (OCI) are attributed to the equitides of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controliitgrests, even if this results in the non-conimgllinterests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjugsma®e made to the financial statements of subrgidido
bring their accounting policies into line with tl@&roup’s accounting policies. All intra-group assetsd
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash dloalating to transactions between members of ttoelisare
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiarghout a loss of control, is accounted for aseauity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary,dtetognizes the related assets (including goodwdbilities,
non-controlling interest and other components afitygvhile any resultant gain or loss is recognizegrofit or
loss. Any investment retained is recognized atvalue.
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2.

()

Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are pezbéor the same period as the financial stateroéparent.
The Group entities keep books of accounts in a@oarel with accounting policies specified in the Aguing

Act dated 29 September 1994 (‘the Accounting Awutith subsequent amendments and the regulationsdssu
based on that Act (all together: ‘Polish Accounti&tandards’). Ronson Europe N.V. keeps the books of
accounts in accordance with accounting policiesireq by Dutch law. These consolidated financiateshents
include a number of adjustments not included inktheks of account of the Group entities, which waegle in
order to bring the financial statements of thod#tiea to conformity with IFRSs.

Where property is acquired, via corporate acqaisitor otherwise, management considers the sulestafithe
assets and activities of the acquired entity irdeining whether the acquisition represents theiiaien of a
business. Where such acquisitions are not judgdaetan acquisition of a business, they are notddeas
business combinations. Rather, the cost to acdh&ecorporate entity is allocated between the itiehte
assets and liabilities of the entity based on thelative fair values at the acquisition date. Adaagly, no
goodwill or additional deferred taxation arises.h@tise, acquisitions are accounted for as business
combinations.

() Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted for the preparatbrthe current Consolidated Financial Statememés a
consistent with those of the previous financialryeecept for the fact that the Group has adopteddhowing
amendments to IFRS and IFRIC interpretations applée to annual reporting periods beginning on terat
January 2014:
« IFRS 10Consolidated Financial Statements
« IFRS 11Joint arrangements
« IFRS 12Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
« Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and |IASI@Vestment Entities
« |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements - Amendments t@TAS
« |AS 28Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Aments to IAS 28
« IAS 32 Financial Instruments: presentation - Offsettingdncial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendhrgeto
IAS 32
« IAS 39 Financial Instruments: recognition and measuremeNbvation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting - Amendments to IAS 39
« |AS 36 Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disodssior Non-Financial Assets - Amendments to IAS 36

The application of the above mentioned standardsadampact the annual consolidated financial stetets of
the Group except for IFRS 1Ibint Arrangementdn addition, the application of IFRS 12 Discloswoffdnterest
in Other Entities would result in additional disslwes in this Consolidated Financial Statements.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventwrd SIC-13 Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-maargt
Contributions by Venturers. IFRS 11 removes theoopto account for jointly controlled entities (J§EIsing
proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs thattrtiee definition of a joint venture under IFRS 1lishbe
accounted for using the equity method. The effé¢dFRS 11 is described below, which includes gdanatiion
of the effect on the financial statements. The igppbn of IFRS 11 has impacted the financial posibf the
Group by eliminating the proportionate consolidatad the joint ventures in Ronson IS sp. z 0.0. imnEonson
IS Sp. z o0.0. Sp.k.. With the application of thevn&tandard, these investments are accounted fag ube
equity method of accounting. The change was appt&dospectively as required by IFRS 11 and the
comparative information for the preceding periodeistated. This restatement has an impact on tmpaative
results and on equity, which represents the eéfettte fact that it is not allowed to capitalizertmwing costs on
an equity-accounted investment in a joint ventwiace there is no qualifying asset as defined i® [23.
Previously, applying the proportionate consolidagianethod, the assets of the joint ventures (ccimgrireal
estate units with associated land under constmictiget the definition of a qualifying asset in acEnce with
IAS 23 and borrowing costs were capitalized toGlaenpany’s share of qualifying assets.
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2. Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

(g) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (dd)

The effect of applying IFRS 11 on the Company’ssaidated financial statements is as follows:

Impact on statement of comprehensive income (increa/(decrease) in profit):

For the year ended 31 December

2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Approved Restated Impact
Share of profit/(loss) from joint ventures - (680) (680)
Net financial income/(expense) (1,495) (970) 525
Profit before taxation (1,495) (1,650) (155)
Income tax benefit/(expense) 1,181 958 (223)
Net impact on profit for the period (314) (692) (378)

Impact on the statement of financial position:

As at 31 December 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Approved  Restated Impact

Investment in joint ventures (hon-current) - 15,295 15,295
Loans granted to related parties (non-current) 8,536 - (8,536)

Decrease in deferred tax assets (non-current) 12,470 11,845 (625)
Inventory (current) 620,330 604,790  (15,540)
Trade and other receivables and prepayments (¢urren 38,026 38,063 37
Cash and cash equivalents (current) 52,204 52,153 (51)
Loans from third parties (non-current) (11,192) (2,657) 8,535
Deferred tax liability (non-current) (10,954) (10,622) 332
Trade and other payables and accrued expensesn{urr (32,728) (32,688) 40
Net impact on equity attributable to equity holdersof the parent (513)

As at 31 December 2012

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Approved  Restated Impact
Investment in joint ventures (non-current) - 14,969 14,969
Loans granted to related parties (non-current) 7,704 - (7,704)
Deferred tax assets (non-current) 11,798 11,715 (83)
Inventory (current) 668,080 653,419 (14,661)
Trade and other receivables and prepayments (¢urren 30,661 30,604 (57)
Cash and cash equivalents (current) 44,928 44,550 (378)
Loans from third parties (non-current) (13,932) (6,228) 7,704
Deferred tax liability (non-current) (11,530)  (11,517) 13
Trade and other payables and accrued expensesr{gurr (38,090)  (38,028) 62
Net impact on equity attributable to equity holdersof the parent (135)

There is no material impact on the consolidatetéstant of cash flows or the basic and diluted EPS.
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3.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have beepliep consistently in all periods presented in ¢éhes
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(@)

(b)

(i)

()

Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translatetthé respective functional currencies of Groujitiest
at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of #res#ictions using:

. the purchase or selling rate of the bank whoseicsare used by the Group — in case of foreign
currency sales or purchase transactions, as wethéncase as of the debt or liability payment
transactions;

. the average rate specified for a given currencyheyNational Bank of Poland as on the transaction
date, unless a customs declaration or other bindiimgment indicates another rate — in case of other
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in ifprecurrencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the répprtlate. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency aemslated using the exchange rates as at the afties
initial transactions.

Revenue
Revenue from operations includes:

Revenue from the sale of residential units

Revenues from the sale of residential units aregeized upon transfer to the buyer of the significa
risks and rewards of ownership of the residentist (i.e. upon signing of the protocol of technical
acceptance and transfer of the key to the resmlemtiit), after a valid building occupancy permésh
been obtained by the Group.

Advances received related to pre-sales of residlemtits, which represent deferred income, arerdsde
when they do not meet the criteria to be recognagdevenue. When they subsequently meet these
criteria, they are recognized as revenue.

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Groupmprise loans granted, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, deposits, other cuiremtcial assets, loans and borrowings, and trae a
other payables. All financial assets are recogninéihlly at fair value plus, in the case of int@®nts

not at fair value through profit or loss, direcdlifributable transaction costs.

A financial instrument is recognized if the Grougcbmes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognizecifatoup’s contractual rights to the cash flows fribwm
financial assets expire or if the Group transféws tinancial asset to another party without retajni
control or substantially all risks and rewards loé isset. Regular way purchases and sales of f@hanc
assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e. tieetlolat the Group commits itself to purchase or thel
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized & @roup’s obligations specified in the contractiexpor

are discharged or cancelled.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(©)

(d)
()

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand amadl & integral part of the Group’s cash management
are included as a component of cash and cash égpisdor the purpose of the statement of cashdlow

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Group elassified into one of the following categories:

Category Statement of financial position item Measurement
Held for trading Cash and cash equivalent Fair value - through profit
and loss
Loans and receivables Short-term deposits Apeattcosts
Other current financial assets Amortized costs
Loans granted to third parties Amortized costs
Trade and other receivables Amortized costs
Other financial liabilities Floating rate bonds mArtized costs
Loans from others Amortized costs

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses ortiaeal costs

Secured bank loans Amortized costs

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finaresslets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are cladsdg current assets, provided their maturity dags n
exceed 12 months after the reporting date. Loadsraceivables with maturities exceeding 12 months
from the reporting date are classified under nomesu assets. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortized asing the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. Gains and losses aregm®ized in the statement of comprehensive income
when the loans and receivables are derecognizeidchpaired, as well as, through the amortization
process.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are measured at amedizost using the effective interest method.

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured dtless accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly atteble to the acquisition of the asset. The costetff
constructed assets includes the cost of matenmlsdaect labor, any other costs directly attritblg¢ato
bringing the asset to a working condition for ittended use, and the costs of dismantling and remgov
the items and restoring the site on which they@rated.

When significant parts of property, plant and eqmept are required to be replaced in intervals, the
Group recognizes such parts as individual assetsspecific useful lives and depreciation, respetyi
Likewise, when a major inspection is performedcist is recognized in the carrying amount of tlaap
and equipment as a replacement if the recognitiberia are satisfied. All other repair and mairarce
costs are recognized in the statement of compréareimcome as incurred.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(d)
(ii)

(€)

(f)

Property and equipment (cont’d)

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-lineibaser the estimated useful life of each compormént
an item of property and equipment.

The estimated useful life of property and equipmdapending on the class of asset, ranges fron¥ to
years. Leased assets are depreciated over thershbthe lease term and their useful lives. Landat
depreciated.

When parts of an item of property and equipmenthgifferent useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property guienent.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualeslare reassessed at the reporting date, andeatljus
prospectively since the beginning of the followiregr, if appropriate.

Leases

Finance leases — lessee accounting

Leases in which the Group assumes substantialthaltisks and rewards of ownership are classdied
finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the lekhasset is measured at an amount equal to the loiwer
its fair value and the present value of the minimaase payments.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at,cosluding transaction costs. Subsequently taahi
recognition, investment properties are stated at Value, which reflects market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from charigethe fair values of investment properties are
included in the statement of comprehensive incanthe period in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognized when eitigsr have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and oture economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. The difference between the net disposatgeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive indarttee period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property when there is a change in use. For a transfen f
investment property to owner occupied property,dbemed cost for subsequently accounting is the fai
value at the date of change in use. If owner o@migiroperty becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance \lith policy stated under property, plant and
equipment up to the date of change in use.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(@)

(h)
(i)
0

(ii)

@)
(i)

Inventories of residential units

Inventories consist of multi-family residential restate projects to individual customers.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost atdealizable value. The cost of inventories inelud

expenditure incurred relating to the constructiba project.

Costs relating to the construction of a projectiactuded in inventories of residential units akdios:

. costs incurred relating to projects or a phase pfagect which are not available for sale (work in
progress),

. costs incurred relating to units unsold associatitidl a project.

Project construction costs include:

a) land or leasehold rights for land,

b) construction costs paid to the general contraatdding the residential project,

¢) planning and design costs,

d) perpetual usufruct fees and real estate taxesrataiuring the period of construction,

e) borrowing costs to the extent they are directlyitaitable to the development of the project (see
accounting policy (1)),

f) professional fees attributable to the developméthe project,

g) construction overheads and other directly relatesdsc

Inventory is recognized as a cost of sales in thtement of comprehensive income when the sale of
residential units is recognized.

Trade and other receivables and prepayment
Trade and other receivables are stated at amoritizstdess impairment losses.

Equity

Share capital

Share capital includes the proceeds received flerigsue of ordinary shares on the nominal value in
exchange for cash.

Share premium

Share premium includes the excess of proceedsvezt&iom the issue of shares over the nominal value
of shares.

Shares issuance costs are deducted from shareuypnemi

Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impairedjeotive evidence indicates that one or more evesns

had a negative effect on the estimated future flagls of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial assetasured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and thesqme value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tesfer impairment on an individual basis. The rermain
financial assets are assessed collectively in gréhgt share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognized in the statérnécomprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal barrelated objectively to an event occurring affter
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assetasured at amortized cost the reversal is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
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3.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

()
(ii)

(k)

o

(m)

Impairment (cont’d)

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financiakets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of immaint. If any such indication exists then the asset’
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryingoamt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greatts value in use and its fair value less costseth In
assessing value in use, the estimated future dasis fire discounted to present value using a pre-ta
discount rate that reflects current market assestsnod the time value of money and the risks spetif

the asset.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods asessed at each reporting date for any indicattaats
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. Aniimpat loss is reversed if there has been a change
the estimates used to determine the recoverabler@man impairment loss is reversed only to theeakt
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceeddlrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impaimh&ss had been recognized.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a pastnt, the Group has a present legal or constaicti
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and ipiobable that an outflow of economic benefitd i
required to settle the obligation. Provisions agtedmined by discounting the expected future chossf
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current marketssssents of the time value of money and the risksifip

to the liability.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the invemyt of properties which necessarily take a substhnt
period of time to get ready for their intended wsesale, are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective assets.

The interest capitalized is calculated using th@upls weighted average cost of borrowings after
adjusting for borrowings associated with specifavelopments. Where borrowings are associated with
specific developments, the amount capitalized exqtted gross interest incurred on those borrowings.
Interest is capitalized as from the commencemertheevelopment work until the date of completion.
The capitalization of borrowing costs is suspendetthere are prolonged periods when development
activity is interrupted.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and defeasedQurrent tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates edantesubstantively enacted at the reporting daie aay
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previowsseCurrent tax expense is calculated accordingxto
regulations in effect in the jurisdiction in whittie individual companies are domiciled.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balastveet method, for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitieghaidcarrying amounts for financial reporting poses,
and for tax losses carried forward, except forittitgal recognition of assets or liabilities in @bsaction
that is not a business combination and that affeeither accounting nor taxable profit. Deferrexl ig
measured at the tax rates that are expected tpied to the temporary differences when they reser
based on the laws that have been enacted or stibstpenacted by the reporting date.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(a)

Income tax expense (cont’d)

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to thergxtmat it is probable that future taxable profitidl be
available against which the asset can be utili2é@ach reporting date deferred tax assets areceelio

the extent that it is no longer probable that #lated tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tagets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legallgferceable right exists to set off current tax &ssgainst
current income tax liabilities and the deferredetxelate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings pares(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The
computations of the basic earnings per share dezrdimed on the basis of the weighted average numbe
of shares outstanding during the year. The dil@achings per share are determined by adjusting the
statement of comprehensive income and the weightethge number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary skay which comprise share options granted and rights
obtain shares by employees.

Share options granted

Equity-settled transactions

The fair value of share options granted to manageraad other employees as at the grant date is
recognized as an employee expense, with a corrdsmprincrease in equity recognized in retained
earnings, over the period during which the empleyescome unconditionally entitled to the optionse T
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted &ztréfle actual number of share options that vest.

Cash-settled transactions

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measaitally at fair value at the grant date. This faalue is
expensed over the period until the vesting dath vatognition of a corresponding liability. Thehliity
is re-measured to fair value at each reporting dptéo, and including the settlement date, withncfes
in fair value recognized in employee benefits exggen

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement ofdiabpositions comprise cash at banks and on hadd a
short-term deposits with an original maturity ofe months or less, except for collateralized diépos

For the purpose of the consolidated statement ftasls, cash and cash equivalents consist of cadh an
short-term deposits as defined above, net of mudgtg bank overdrafts.

Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement wétgr the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of iheyenture. Joint control is the contractually eyt
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exwmtty when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharintyalo

Under the equity method, the investment in a je@tture is initially recognized at cost. The cangyi
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognimnges in the Group’s share of net assets of the jo
venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill reigtto the joint venture is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impant individually.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Investment in joint ventures (cont'd)

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Greughare of the results of operations of the joartture.
Any change in OCI of joint ventures are presentegart of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there
has been a change recognized directly in the eqtiiye joint venture, the Group recognizes ity slud

any changes, when applicable, in the statementhahges in equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group &edjaint venture are eliminated to the extent & th
interest in the joint venture.

The financial statements of the joint venture areppred for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bringtiweiating policies in line with those of the Group.
After application of the equity method, the Grougtetmines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in joint ventuke each reporting date, the Group determines véreth
there is objective evidence that the investmenhénjoint venture is impaired. If there is suchdevice,

the Group calculates the amount of impairment agdifference between the recoverable amount of the
joint venture and its carrying value, and then getgees the loss as ‘Share of profit/(loss) of ajoi
venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of joint control over the joint ventutbe Group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference betwéke carrying amount of the joint venture uporslof
joint control and the fair value of the retainedaatment and proceeds from disposal is recognized i
profit or loss.

Employee benefits
Obligations for contributions to defined contritortipension plans are recognized as an expense in th
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Poland are requiveder applicable regulations, to pay, on a monthly
basis, social security contributions for the empkg/ future pension benefits. These benefits, aaugr

to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, are state plans amd characterized as defined contribution plans.
Therefore, the Company’s subsidiaries have no legial constructive obligation to pay future
pension benefits and their obligation is limitecbsyyment of contributions as they fall due.

Fair Value

The Group measures investment properties at fhiewa each balance sheet date. In addition, &ires

of financial instruments measured at amortized aostdisclosed in Note 36 and Note 37.

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddth @n asset or paid to transfer a liability in@derly
transaction between market participants at the onea®ent date. The fair value measurement is based o
the presumption that the transaction to sell tisetagr transfer the liability takes place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability,

- in the absence of a principal market, in the mdsaatageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market leistccessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measlusing the assumptions that market participantddv

use when pricing the asset or liability, assumihat tmarket participants act in their economic best
interest.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(s)

Fair Value (cont'd)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asakes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset imdghest and best use or by selling it to anatienket
participant that would use the asset in its highestbest use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are apptefn the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximgite use of relevant observable inputs and miningiz
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value iseasured or disclosed in the financial statemergs a
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, ddsed as follows, based on the lowest level input itha
significant to the fair value measurement as a ahol

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mexlker identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includétthivw Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or iidctly (i.e., derived from prices);

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that ar@t based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognizechanfinancial statements on a recurring basis, theus
determines whether transfers have occurred betweevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input thasignificant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

4, Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standardianterpretations, insofar endorsed by the Eemop
Union, are not yet effective for the year endedd@tember 2014, and have not been applied in prapthiese
consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (issued on 24 July@ffective for financial years beginning on oteaf
1 July 2018 - not yet endorsed by EU till the dzftapproval of these financial statements,

IFRIC 21 Levies (issued on 20 May 2013) — effecfioefinancial years beginning on or after 1 Jaguar
2014, in EU effective at the latest for financialys beginning on or after 17 June 2014,

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Empe@ontributions (issued on 21 November 2013) —
effective for financial years beginning on or affeduly 2014, in EU effective at the latest forafircial
years beginning on or after 1 February 2015,

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 (issued d®é&cember 2013)— some amendments effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 Julyl20and some effective prospectively for transastion
occurring on or after 1 July 2014, in EU effectiaklatest for financial years beginning on or after
February 2015,

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 (issued 2ié&cember 2013) — effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 July 2014, in EU effectifatest for financial years beginning on or after 1
January 2015,

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (issued onJa@uary 2014) — effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 — decisiorutiberms of performing particular steps resulting i
endorsement of the Standard has not yet been ma8&RAG — not yet endorsed by EU till the date of
approval of these financial statements,

68



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4.

Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitiorfsimterests in Joint Operations (issued on 6 May
2014) — effective for financial years beginningamafter 1 January 2016 - not yet endorsed by Hithg
date of approval of these financial statements,

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of ckptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortization (issued on 12 May 2014) — effective fmancial years beginning on or after 1 January
2016 — not yet endorsed by EU till the date of appl of these financial statements,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers édsan 28 May 2014) — effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 — not yet eseibby EU till the date of approval of these ficiah
statements,

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: BeaPdants (issued on 30 June 2014) - effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 January&@9Tot yet endorsed by EU till the date of appl@fa
these financial statements,

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate k@ Statements (issued on 12 August 2014) —
effective for financial years beginning on or aftedanuary 2016 — not yet endorsed by EU till thte af
approval these financial statements,

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contriyutof Assets Between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (issued on 11 SepterBbg4) - effective for financial years beginning @n
after 1 January 2016— not yet endorsed by EUndldate of approval of these financial statements,

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 (issued®B&ptember 2014) - effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2016— not yet esetbby EU till the date of approval of these finahc
statements,

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investragmities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(issued on 18 December 2014) - effective for finahgears beginning on or after 1 January 2016 + no
yet endorsed by EU till the date of approval ofsthnéinancial statements,

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (issued18 December 2014) — effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 — not yet eseibby EU till the date of approval of these ficiah
statements.

The Group has not early adopted any other stantfdedpretation or amendment that has been issueid b
not yet effective.
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5. Segment reporting

The Group’s operating segments are defined as aepantities developing particular residential gctg, which
for the reporting purposes were aggregated. Theeggton for reporting purpose is based on geoggaph
locations (Warsaw, PozhaWroctaw and Szczecin) and type of activity (depehent of apartments and
development of houses). Moreover, for two particalssets the reporting was based on type of incoamgal
income from investment property.

According to the Management Board’'s assessmentppleeating segments identified have similar ecocomi
characteristics. Aggregation based on the typesgélbpment within the geographical location hastsgaplied
since primarily the location and the type of depahent determine the average margin that can bzedabn
each project and the project’s risk factors. Cozrsidy the fact that the production process for tpants is
different from that for houses and considering fédnet that the characteristics of customers buyipgrtanents
slightly differ from those of customers interestacbuying houses, aggregation by type of develogmathin
the geographical location has been used for segrapatting and disclosure purposes.

Segment results, assets and liabilities includastdirectly attributable to a segment as well aséfthat can be
allocated indirectly based on reasonable critddiaallocated loss for the year comprises mainly heffide
expenses, unallocated assets comprise mainly eas#id cash and cash equivalents and income taksasse
Unallocated liabilities comprises mainly income tiabilities and floating rate bond loans.

Data presented in the table below are aggregatégplyof development within the geographical lomatti

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

As at 31 December 2014

Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total
Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Aparents Houses Apartments Houses

Segment
assets 479,849 33,513 9,217 115,975 - 93,522 2,612 8,2 7,710 - 800,691
Unallocated
assets - - - - - - - - - 40,786 40,786
Total
assets 479,849 33,513 9,217 115,975 - 93,522 6122, 58,293 7,710 40,786 841,477
Segment
liabilities 162,784 1,134 - 23,436 - 25,622 - 4,758 - - 234,
Unallocated
liabilities - - - - - - - - - 172,402 172,402
Total
liabilities 162,784 1,134 - 23,436 - 25,622 - 4,758 - 172,402 390,136
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) As at 31 December 2013 (restated*)

Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental

Apartments Houses Apartents Houses Apartments Houses

Segment

assets 375,542 40,161 9,840 133,607 - 75,327 2,585 00,3 7,688 - 705,051
Unallocated

assets - - - - - - - - - 39,985 39,985
Total

assets 375,542 40,161 9,840 133,607 - 75,327 5852, 60,301 7,688 39,985 745,036
Segment

liabilities 108,466 9,774 - 24,737 - 588 - 1,279 - - 144,844
Unallocated

liabilities - - - - - - - - - 133,636 133,636
Total

liabilities 108,466 9,774 - 24,737 - 588 - 219 - 133,636 278,480

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thesdtidated Financial Statements as at 31 Decemb&Band reflect adjustments made as detailed ire Not

2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).
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5. Segment reporting (cont’'d)

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) For the year ended 31 December 2014
Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartments Houses Apartments Houses
Revenue 103,463 3,241 826 39,537 - 1,252 - 4,836 - - 3,15
Segment
result 14,484  (2,532) 522 136 - (7,839) 4 (2,141) (4) - 2,622
Unallocated
result - - - - - - - - (18,436)  (18,436)
Result from
operating
activities 14,484  (2,532) 522 136 - (7,839) @) (2,141) ) (4 (18,436)  (15,814)
Net finance
income 268 (284) - (102) - 65 - 76 - (2,893 (2,870)
Profit/(loss)
before tax 14,752  (2,816) 522 34 - (7,774) (4) 2,065) @ - (21,329)  (18,684)
Income tax
benefit 3,469
Profit/(loss)
for the year (15,215)
Capital
expenditure - - - - - - - - - 792 792
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) For the year ended 31 December 2013 (restated*)

Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartments Houses Apartments Houses
Revenue 166,153 9,974 772 9,321 - 8,809 - 11,996 - - 7,026
Segment
result 35,129 (828) 1,203 (900) - (575) 4 301 4) - 34,322
Unallocated
result - - - - - - - - - (16,266)  (16,266)
Result from
operating
activities 35,129 (828) 1,203 (900) - (575) (4) 301 @) 16,266) 18,056
Net finance
income 123 (22) - 108 - 32 - 12 - (1,223)  97Q)
Profit/(loss)
before tax 35,252 (850) 1,203 (792) - (543) 4 313 (4) (17,489) 17,086
Income tax
benefit 958
Profit/(loss)
for the year 18,044
Capital
expenditure - - - - - - - - - 713 713

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thesdtidated Financial Statements as at 31 Decemb&B2nd reflect adjustments made as detailed ire Not
2(f) (see pages 59 and 60).
** Results from operating activities including sleaof loss in joint venture, that amounted to PLN &lousands (expenses) during the year ended 3érblser

2014 and PLN 680 thousands (expenses) duringehegnded 31 December 2013 .
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6. Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Espresso | 63,264 -

Mtody Grunwald | 35,424 -

Verdis I+11 24,324 40,481
Sakura I+1 5,711 62,410
Impressio | 1,252 8,809
Constans 3,241 9,974
Naturalis [+11+111 8,960 17,759
Panoramika | 4,836 11,996
Chilli 1+l 1,374 9,276
Chilli 1 2,403 -

Gemini Il 947 45,395
Other 1,419 925
Total revenue 153,155 207,025

7. Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Espresso | 50,478 -
Mitody Grunwald | 32,944 -
Verdis I+ 18,543 28,343
Sakura I+1 5,045 53,006
Impressio | 1,304 9,011
Constans 3,135 10,320
Naturalis [+II+l1] 8,188 15,555
Panoramika | 4,280 11,354
Chilli 1+11 1,256 8,785
Chilli 1 2,267 -
Gemini I 670 27,618
Other 644 468
Write-down of inventory 12,471 -
Total cost of sales 141,225 164,460
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8. Selling and marketing expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Advertising 4,347 5,308
Brokerage fees 1,546 1,100
Other 988 413
Total selling and marketing expenses 6,881 6,821

9. Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Personnel expenses 10 12,561 11,152
External services 3,362 2,632
Materials and energy 733 674
Depreciation 638 627
Taxes and charges 156 176
Other 770 644
Total administrative expenses 18,220 15,905

10. Personnel expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Wages and salaries 10,174 9,590
Share-based payment 35 702 -
Social security and other benefits 1,685 1,562
Total personal expenses 12,561 11,152
Average number of personnel employef 73 66

(*) All employees are employed in the territoryPafland.
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11. Other expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Maintenance expense of unsold units 1,078 1,621
Cost of repairs and defects 827 314
Expense for contractual penalties and compensation 129 68
Group restructuring expense 137 100
Impairment of trade receivablés 380 36
Cost of research and due diligence of new projects 54 56
Other expense 453 413
Total other expense 3,058 2,608

(1) For additional information see Note 21.

12. Other income

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Revenues from contractual penalties and compemsatio 55 159
Rental income from inventory 313 192
Net profit on sale of property and equipment 71 521
Other income 287 228
Total other income 726 731
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13. Finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Recognized in the

Total Amount statement of
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized comprehensive income
Interest on granted loans 713 - 713
Interest income on bank deposits 1,199 (9) 1,190
Other finance income 54 - 54
Finance income 1,966 (9) 1,957
Interest expense on financial liabilities (11,036 8,066 (3,870)
Foreign exchange loss (25) - (25)
Commissions and fees (2,861) 2,082 (779)
Other finance expense (153) - (153)
Finance expense (14,975) 10,148 (4,827)
Net finance expense (13,009) 10,139 (2,870)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Recognized in the

Total Amount statement of
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized comprehensive income
Interest on granted loans 758 - 758
Interest income on bank deposits 1,244 (136) 1,108
Other finance income 6 - 6
Finance income 2,008 (136) 1,872
Interest expense on financial liabilities 1xp7 11,698 (1,577)
Foreign exchange loss (6) - (6)
Commissions and fees (3,262) 2,048 (1,214)
Other finance expense (45) - (45)
Finance expense (16,588) 13,746 (2,842)
Net finance expense (14,580) 13,610 (970)
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14. Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Current tax

Current period 59 72
Taxation in respect of previous periods 22 (5)
Total current tax expense 81 67

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (2,783) (7,894)
Tax losses utilized/(recognized) (767) 6,869
Total deferred tax benefit (3,550) (1,025)
Total income tax benefit (3,469) (958)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Profit/(loss) for the year (15,215) 18,044
Total income tax benefit (3,469) (958)
Profit/(loss) before income tax (18,684) 17,086
Expected income tax using the Polish tax rate (19%) (3,550) 3,246
Tax effect of

Taxes in respect of previous periods 22 (5)

Non-deductible expenses, net 55 67

Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets lando (181) (1,911)
Tax benefit in connection with the organizatiorestructuring of

the Group (608) (3,017)
Other differences 793 662
Tax benefit for the period (3,469) (958)
Effective tax rate 18.57% -5.61%
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15. Property and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Vehicles Equipment Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 1,298 1,614 8,645 11,557
Additions 474 318 - 792
Transferred from inventory - - - -
Sales and disposals (263) - - (263)
Closing balance 1,509 1,932 8,645 12,086
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 698 889 700 2,287
Depreciation for the period 203 140 295 638
Sales and disposals (263) - - (263)
Closing balance 638 1,029 995 2,662
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 600 725 7,945 9,270
Closing balance 871 903 7,650 9,424
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Vehicles Equipment Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 1,108 1,703 8,551 11,362
Additions 405 43 265 713
Transferred from inventory - - 1,030 1,030
Sales and disposals (215) (132) (1,201) (1,548)
Closing balance 1,298 1,614 8,645 11,557
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 811 735 1,156 2,702
Depreciation for the period 87 228 312 627
Sales and disposals (200) (74) (768) (1,042)
Closing balance 698 889 700 2,287
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 297 968 7,395 8,660
Closing balance 600 725 7,945 9,270

Impairment loss

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 Decezdti&r the Group did not recognize any impairmess |

with respect to Property and equipment.
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16. Investment property

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at 1 January 9,840 8,279
Transferred from inventory - 787
Sales (623) -
Change in fair value during the year - 774
Balance as at 31 December, including: 9,217 9,840
Cost 4,058 4,434
Fair value adjustments 5,159 5,406

As at 31 December 2014, the investment propertydtied property held for long-term rental yields aagbital
appreciation, and were not occupied by the Groune ifivestment property consists of two real estajects
located in Warsaw:

i) a plot of land (71, Gwialzista Street) and an office building with an agate usable floor space of
1,318 nf located on this plot that is leased to third partieder lease agreements with an indefinite term
subject to a three-month notice period for termaraf“Bielany IP"),

i) one commercial (office) unit located at 57, KRvenue (in the Gemini | project), with a totalgrggate
usable floor space of 89°reased to third parties with an indefinite terrdi&ynéw IP”).

Investment property is valued at fair value deteredias at 31 December 2014 and as at 31 Decemb@rb30
the Management. The investment property has besm alued by an independent appraiser, having an
appropriate recognized professional qualificatioased on current prices on an active market. Balhations
came up with similar results.

The Bielany IP was valued based on the discounssth dlow approach, including the assumption asnto a
annual discount rate of 8.0% (during a 6 year faseperiod), a capitalization exit yield of 6.0%mnanthly rate

of PLN 35/m” and a long term vacancy rate of 10%. The assunptsrat the end of 2013 were the same as at
the end of 2014.

The Ursynéw IP was valued on the basis of the mexstnt comparable transactions, involving salesiroflar
units in the Gemini | and Il projects.

The fair value of completed investment propertias heen determined on a market value basis in dacos
with International Valuation Standards (IVS), a$ eat by the IVSC. The valuations were preparedaon
aggregated non-leveraged basis. The valuations penfermed by an accredited independent valuatdn wi
recognized and relevant professional qualificatiord with recent experience in the local market #rel
specific category of the investment properties edlu

If the yields used for the appraisals of investnmanatperty on 31 December 2014, had been 100 basgissp
higher than was the case at that time, the valubeofnvestments would have been 14% lower (31 Déee
2013: 14% lower). In this situation, the Compangtsareholders’ equity would have been PLN 1.4 nmillio
lower (31 December 2013: PLN 1.4 million lower).

The continued instability in the financial marketsises volatility and uncertainty in the world’pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctaras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sule there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and marnkaties can change rapidly due to the current marke
conditions.

The investment property is currently occupied.
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17.

18.

Loans granted to third parties
The table below presents the movement in Loandeplan third parties:

For the year ended 31 December

2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Opening balance 1,473 1,043
Loans granted - 627
Loans repaid - (300)
Accrued interest/(interest repayment), net 150 102
Total closing balance 1,623 1,472
Closing balance includes:
Current assets - 843
Non-current assets 1,623 630
Total closing balance 1,623 1,473

The loans are granted to one of the shareholddRon$on Espresso Sp. z 0.0. As at 31 December &d 431
December 2013 the loans bear a variable rate &4 knd 12.2% (variable interest is charged basethen
latest interest rate as charged on the constructidtit/loan granted by the banks to the Groupiaadased by

7%, and updated at the beginning of each quarespectively.

For securing the repayment of the loan, the Comeiys a pledge on the partner’'s share in RonspneEso
Sp. z 0.0. as well as on a part of the loans gdamyethe partner to Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0.

Investment in joint ventures

As at 31 December

2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Loans granted 18,672 17,071
Share of profit/(loss) of joint venture (2,650) (1,776)
The Company’s carrying amount of the investment 1622 15,295

Share of profit/(loss) of joint venture

The Investment in joint ventures comprise the Cam{sa50% interest in the joint venture companiesistm
IS sp. z 0.0. and in Ronson IS Sp. z 0.0. Sp.kth Baint ventures are involved in the developmend sale of
residential units in Warsaw. The investments intj@entures are accounted for using the equity atkih these

Consolidated Financial Statements.

79



Ronson Europe N.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
18. Investment in joint ventures (cont’d)
Share of profit/(loss) of joint venture (cont'd)
The table below present the movements in the sifgyeofit/(loss) of joint venture.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance (903) (223)

Investments in joint venture - -

Net result from joint venture during the period (874) (1,337)

Offsetting net results of the joint venture witltercompany interest during the

period 563 657
(1,214) (903)

Total net results of the joint venture that weffset with intercompany interest

as at the end on the period (1,436) (873)

Total closing balance (2,650) (1,776)

Summarised financial information of the joint veratsi (based on IFRS) is presented below.

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Assets
Inventory 31,966 30,70:
Cash and cash equivalents 277 43
Other current assets 152 151
Liabilities
Long-term loans from shareholders (37,336) (34,141
Other current liabilities (359) (307
Equity (5,300) (3,552
Company share (2,650) (1,776

The joint ventures had no contingent liabilities aapital commitments as at 31 December 2014 andt as
31 December 2013. The joint ventures cannot digitiheir profits without the consent from the tyaint
venture partners.
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18.

Investment in joint ventures (cont’d)

Share of profit/(loss) of joint venture (cont'd)

The summarised statement of comprehensive incomghéojoint ventures in aggregate (based on IFR3si

follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Administrative expenses Q) ()
Selling and marketing expenses (69) -
Finance income - 6
Finance expense (1,685) (2,679)
Profit/(loss) before taxation (1,755) (2,674)
Income tax benefit/(expense) 8 -
Profit for the year (continuing operations) (1,747) (2,674)
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuingperations) (1,747) (2,674)
The Company’s share of profit/(loss) for the year &74) (1,337)
Loans granted to the joint venture
The table below present the movements in the Igeanrsted to the joint venture.
For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Opening balance 16,198 15,192
Loans granted 475 350
Accrued interest 1,126 1,313
Offsetting accrued interest with net results ofjthiat venture during
the period (563) (657)
17,236 16,198
Total net accrued interest that were offset wahnasults of the joint
venture as at the end on the period 1,436 873
Total closing balance 18,672 17,071

The loans mature in 2017. As at 31 December 208i3aarat 31 December 2014 the loans bear a variatglef
8.6% and a variable rate of 7.2% (variable intei®sharged based on the latest interest rate axgeth on the
construction credit/loan granted by the banks ® @&roup and increased by 2%, and updated at begirofi

each calendar year), respectively.
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19.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at the ginand end of the financial periods are attriblgdo the

following:
Recognized in
Opening the statement Closing
balance of balance
1January comprehensive 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2014 income 2014
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 14,735 767 15,502
Accrued interest 4,694 313 5,007
Accrued expense 179 263 442
Write-down on work in progress - 2,341 2,341
Other 454 34 488
Total deferred tax assets 20,062 3,718 23,780
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying valuewntory 16,318 493 16,811
Accrued interest 883 (254) 629
Fair value gain on investment property 1,027 47) 809
Other 611 (24) 587
Total deferred tax liabilities 18,839 168 19,007
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 14) (3,550)
Deferred tax assets 20,062 23,780
Deferred tax liabilities 18,839 19,007
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities fatividual companies (8,217) (9,567)
Deferred tax assets reported in the
statement of financial position 11,845 14,213
Deferred tax liabilities reported in the
statement of financial position 10,622 9,440
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19. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’'d)

Opening Recognized in Closing
balance  the statement of balance
1 January comprehensive 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2013 income 2013
(restated*)
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 21,604 (6,869) 14,735
Accrued interest 2,799 1,895 4,694
Accrued expense 225 (46) 179
Other 454 - 454
Total deferred tax assets 25,082 (5,020) 20,062
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying valuearntory 22,776 (6,458) 16,318
Accrued interest 640 243 883
Fair value gain on investment property 880 147 1,027
Other 588 23 611
Total deferred tax liabilities 24,884 (6,045) 18,839
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 14) (1,025)
Deferred tax assets 25,082 20,062
Deferred tax liabilities 24,884 18,839
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities fatividual companies (13,367) (8,217)
Deferred tax assets reported in the
statement of financial position 11,715 11,845
Deferred tax liabilities reported in the
statement of financial position 11,517 10,622

* Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thengbtidated Financial Statements as at 31 Decemlidr32and reflect
adjustments made as detailed in Note 2(f) (seeppageand 60).

The tax losses carried forward expire in the follving years:

As at 31

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) December 2014
2015 2,667
2016 3,559
2017 1,709
2018 3,732
2019 3,835
After 2019 -

Total deferred tax asset in respect of tax lossesrcad forward 15,502

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities
There are no unrecognized deferred tax liabilities.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to thergxteat it is more likely than not that future thle profits will
be available against which the asset can be wdilizarecognized deferred tax assets relate priynaritax loss
carry-forwards, which are not considered probablealization prior to their expiration.
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19.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)

The Company did not recognize the entire defera@dasset at consolidation level resulting from dbations
as the recoverability of such assets is uncerfatal unrecognized deferred tax assets as at 3&rbleer 2014
are estimated to be PLN 18,702 thousand (31 Dece?@i&: PLN 20,830 thousand) .

Realization of deferred tax assets

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax sgeanagement considers whether it is more likedy not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets matl be realized. The ultimate realization of defdrtax assets

is dependent upon the generation of future taxaideme during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management consitte¥sscheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities
projected future taxable income, and tax planninatesgies in making this assessment. In order Ity fealize

the deferred tax asset (before offsetting agaieftrded tax liability), the Group will need to geate future
taxable income of approximately PLN 125,158 thods@ased upon the level of historical taxable inecand
projections for future taxable income over the @dsi in which the deferred tax assets are dedugtible
management believes it is more likely than not tha&t Group will realize the benefits of these deitle
differences. The amount of the deferred tax ase@thnis considered realizable, could however beiced in
the near term if estimates of future taxable incalmeng the tax loss carry-forward period are reglic

Tax losses in Poland are required to be utilizethiwi5 years following the period in which they ginated,
subject to the limitation that a maximum of 50%lué loss carry-forward can be used in one year.ldsses in
the Netherlands are required to be utilized withiears following the period in which they origiedt

Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets

Unrecognized deferred tax assets in Poland

Balance 1 Tax Balance 31 Tax Balance 31
January losses Additions/ December losses Additions/ December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2013 expired (Realizations) 2013 expired (Realizations) 2014
Tax losses 7,503 (355) (1,910) 5,238 (1,435) (181) 3,622
Total 7,503 (355) (1,910) 5,238 (1,435) (181) 3,622
Tax losses carry forward
As at 31 December 2014 2013
Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) tax losses tax losses losses tax losses tax losses losses
Tax loss 2009 carried forward - - - 12,810 5,799 8,609
Tax loss 2010 carried forward 12,213 6,396 18,609 11,712 11,475 23,187
Tax loss 2011 carried forward 16,338 6,849 23,187 6,499 7,746 14,245
Tax loss 2012 carried forward 12,818 1,427 14,245 1,968 2,147 4,115
Tax loss 2013 carried forward 2,755 1,360 4,115 ,090 404 40,494
Tax loss 2014 carried forward 37,466 3,029 40,495 - - -
Total tax losses carried forward 81,590 19,061  1@31 73,079 27,571 100,650

Moreover the Company is not recognizing deferredassets on tax losses carried forward in the Niathas.
The accumulated Dutch tax losses available foryctmmward as per 31 December 2014 are estimatdaketo
PLN 7,177 thousand (2013: PLN 6,921 thousand).
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20.

Inventory

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world’pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sulg there is

less certainty with regard to valuations and manka&ues can change rapidly due to the current marke

conditions.

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Closing
Opening balance 31
balance 1 Transferred to December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2014 finished units Additions 2014
Land and related expense 336,695 (22,606) 79,410 3,439
Construction costs 86,733 (74,717) 143,118 155,134
Planning and permits 24,174 (3,244) 6,387 27,317
Borrowing cost$” 77,502 (5,002) 10,139 82,639
Other 3,772 (1,141) 2,750 5,381
Work in progress 528,876 (106,710) 241,804 663,970
Recognized in the Closing
Opening Transferred statement of balance 31
balance 1  from work in comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2014 progress income 2014
Finished goods 76,439 106,710 (127,940) 55,209
Revaluation write down recognized )
in statement of comprehensive Closing
Opening income balance 31
balance 1 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2014 Increase Utilization 2014
Write-down (525) (12,471) 318 (12,678)
Total inventories at the lower
of cost or net realizable value 604,790 706,501

(1) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the value okimery with 7.24% average effective capitalizatinterest rate
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20. Inventory (cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2013:

Opening Closing
% balance balance 31
Restated 1 January Transferred to December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN 2013 finished goods Additions 2013
Land and related expense 354,976 (21,377) 3,096 36,695
Construction costs 64,590 (67,883) 90,026 86,733
Planning and permits 20,200 (3,095) 7,069 24,174
Borrowing costs ** 69,727 (5,835) 13,610 77,502
Other 2,938 (1,406) 2,240 3,772
Work in progress 512,431 (99,596) 116,041 528,876
Opening Transferred Recognized in Closing
balance to property  Transferred Transferred  the statement of balance 31
1 January and toinvestmen  from work in comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2013 equipment property progress income 2013
Finished goods 142,557 (1,030) (787) 99,596 (163,897) 76,439
) Revaluation write down )
Opening recognized in statement of Closing
balance 1 comprehensive income balance 31
January December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2013 Increase Utilization 2013
Write-down (1,569) - 1,044 (525)
Total inventories at the lower
of cost or net realizable value 653,419 6040

*

Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thesolidated financial statements as at 31 Decerab&B and reflect adjustments made

(reference is made to Note 2(f) - see pages 5%and

**  Borrowing costs are capitalized to the valueimientory with 8.6% average effective capitalizatioterest rate

Write-down revaluating the inventory:

The company internally assessed the net realizathle of the inventory and decreased the value winemet
realizable value was lower than the cost amountiém of the situation in the property market inigihthe
Group operates, during the year ended 31 Decentiibt and 31 December 2013 the Group performed an
inventory review with regard to its valuation tot mealizable value based on the most reliable evide
available to the Group. As a result, during theryeaded 31 December 2014 and 31 December 201Grthp
made a write-down adjustment of PLN 12,471 thousand a write-down adjustment in the total amoumtilp
respectively, which is included as part of cossaks in the Consolidated Statement of Compreherssome.
The Company examined a possible write-down on itargnfor each project separately, according to the

projection of revenues net of cost of sales. Fer iibt realizable value calculation, the Companyd use
average effective capitalization interest rate.

The valuation of Inventory is as follows:

As at 31 December 2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Valued at cost 582,130 589,478
Valued at net realizable value 124,371 15,312
Total inventory 706,501 604,790
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20.

21.

22.

Inventory (cont’d)

For information about future commitments to the eyah contractor for construction services related t
inventory construction, see Note 38.

For information about the balance sheet value wénitory used to secure banks loans and floatirg vahds
series C and F, see Note 28.

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
(restated*)

Value added tax (VAT) receivables 6,059 4,307
Trade and other receivables 1,639 3,489
Prepayments 961 1,328
Advances for land purchase - 28,939
Total trade and other receivables and prepayments 8,659 38,063

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to tbesolidated financial statements as at 31 Decen@®di3 and reflect adjustments made
(reference is made to Note 2(f) - see pages 5%and

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, thapGrad no allowance for doubtful debts.
During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 Omsre?®13, the Group wrote down an amount of PLN 380
thousand and PLN 36 thousand, respectively aowezable debts included in trade and other reckigab

Short-term bank deposits — collateralized

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Deposits collateralized for securing the repaynoéimterest related to the

credit facilities provided to the Group 1,531 768
Other deposits collateralized 500 500
Total short-term bank deposits — collateralized 031 1,268

The interest rates earned on these deposits \@aryfr5% to 2.2% on an annual basis.
For information about the fair value of short-tdsamk deposits - collateralized see Note 36.

For information about the pledge over depositsatethlized for interests on credit facilities saaeN30.
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23.

24,

25.

Other current financial assets

The new regulations related to the activity of tbsidential developers, which came into force orApél 2012,
imposed on all residential developers in Polandohligation to open an escrow account for all cusiem
purchasing residential units during the construcfieriod. According to these regulations, all anteyaid by the
customers have to be paid directly to the escrmowtt. The developer is entitled to receive the eyainly once
certain conditions — related mainly to progresshef construction process — are met or the upornramsfer of
ownership of the apartment to the customer.

As long as the money is kept in the escrow accdbetCompany is neither entitled to any benefits, can it
dispose of the cash in any way.

The obligation relates only to the new projectsolthivere offered for sale after 29 April 2012. A84atDecember
2014, the Company operates four projects (Kamiedgzgce |, Impressio I, Moko I, and Tamka) under thewn
regulation (as at 31 December 2013 the Companyatgzkthree projects (Chilli Ill, Impressio |l andrfika) under
the new regulation).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bankndmehd and short-term deposits freely availabletfie
Group. Cash at bank comprises of overnight depdsiésshort-term deposits have an original matuwritgying
from one day to three months.

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

(restated*)
Cash at bank and in hand 36,060 24,160
Short-term deposit 34,530 27,993
Total cash and cash equivalents 70,590 52,153

* Certain amounts shown do not correspond to thesotidated financial statements as at 31 Decembé32ihd
reflect adjustments made (reference is made to R{fte see pages 59 and 60).

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates baseathily bank deposit rates. As at 31 Decembed 20d 31
December 2013 the Group held in saving accountsuatimgy to PLN 24,906 thousand and PLN 17,990
thousand, respectively. As at 31 December 20143dnBecember 2013 the saving accounts that earregtte
rates varying between 1.75% - 1.95% and 2% - 2r8%fectively.

Short-term deposits have a duration varying betwa®n day and three months depending on the imneediat
cash requirements of the Group. As at 31 Decemb&# 2nd 31 December 2013, they earn interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates varying betvile®¥ - 3.2% and 2% - 2.8%, respectively.

For information about the fair value of cash anshcaquivalents see Note 36.

For information about the pledge over cash and egsivalents see Note 30.

Shareholders’ equity

1) Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company cansis800,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value €Huoh.
number of issued and outstanding ordinary shareata®l December 2014 and as at 31 December 2013
amounted to 272,360,000. The number issued shatessethe number of votes, as there are no priaileg
shares issued by the Company.

There are no restrictions regarding dividend payménture dividends may be proposed and paid.

88



Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2014

Ronson Europe N.V.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. Shareholders’ equity (cont’d)

2) Dividend

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no divideasl distributed to the Company’s shareholdersirigur
the year ended 31 December 2013, a dividend amuuriti PLN 8,171 thousands total or PLN 0.03 per

ordinary share, was distributed.

26. Non-controlling interests

Movements in non-controlling interests during tleayended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2053 are

follows:
As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Opening balance 1,883 3,910
Acquisition of additional stake in consolidatedsidiary™ - (1,423)
Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to nomrodiing interests 216 (604)
Closing balance 2,099 1,883

@ On 18 December 2013, the Group acquired an additiaB.6% of the equity of Ronson Espresso Sp..{leceinafterEspresso”)
for PLN 2,950 thousand in cash, thereby increagimgwnership to 82.0%. As at 17 December 2013rbehe transaction, the book
value of the non-controlling interest in Espressonoanted to PLN 3,306 thousand. As a result of ridwestction, Non-controlling
interests decreased by PLN 1,423 thousand. Therelife with the acquisition price, amounting to PLE27 thousand was charged
to Retained earnings during the year ended 31 Dbee@013.

Summarised financial information of Ronson Espresg. z 0.0. (based on IFRS) is presented below:

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Assets

Property and equipment 290 331
Inventory 36,280 66,248
Cash and cash equivalents 5,653 2,390
Other current assets 2,785 1,397
Liabilities

Long-term loans from shareholders (26,963) (29,285)
Secured bank loans (6,283) (65)
Advances received (6,347) (42,192)
Other current liabilities (5,344) (6,290)
Equity 71 (7,466)
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26. Non-controlling interests (cont'd)

The summarised statement of comprehensive incom&doson Espresso Sp. z 0.0. in aggregate (based o
IFRS) is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Revenue 63,264 -
Cost of sales (44,447) -
Gross profit 18,817 -
Administrative expenses (7,200) (917)
Selling and marketing expenses (841) (793)
Other income/(expenses) (85) 203
Finance income 359 14
Finance expense (1,700) (1,620)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 9,350 (3,113)
Income tax benefit/(expense) (1,813) 463
Profit for the year (continuing operations) 7,537 2,650)
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuig

operations) 7,537 (2,650)

27. Net earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculateliviiiing net profit/(loss) attributable to equitglders of the
parent company for the year by the weighted averageber of ordinary shares outstanding during thar.y
Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculagedividing the net profit/(loss) attributable towsty holders
of the parent company for the year by the weiglaegrage number of ordinary shares outstanding gluhe
year plus the weighted average number of ordinaayes that would be issued on conversion of albihgive
instruments into ordinary shares, no such instrasexists as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic):

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013

Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holderstbé parent

companyfin thousands of Polish Zlotys) (15,431) 18,648
Balance at beginning of the period 272,360,000 , 252,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 272,360,000 272,360,000
Basic earnings per sharein Polish Zlotys) (0.057) 0.068

There have been no other transactions involvingnargl shares between the reporting date and the afat
completion of these consolidated financial statemen
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28. Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Floating rate bonds 29 159,749 119,366
Secured bank loans 30 73,704 41,978
Loans from third parties 31 2,737 2,657
Total loans and borrowings 236,190 164,001

Information about the contractual terms of the @isunterest-bearing loans and borrowings is preskm the
table below. For more information about the GrowgxXposure to interest rate, see Note 40.

Loans as at 31 December 2014:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate  maturity Capital interest and fees value
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series C PLN 3.75% 2017 83,500 212 (1,381) 82,331
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series D PLN 4.55% 2016 23,550 68 (307) 23,311
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series E PLN 4.55% 2016 9,250 310 (47) 9,513
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series F PLN 3.5% 2018 28,000 174 (479) 27,695
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series G PLN 4.25% 2018 12,000 127 (183) 11,944
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series H PLN 4.25% 2018 5,000 33 (78) 4,955

Subtotal (floating rate bonds) 161,300 924 (2,475) 159,749
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2016 34,174 2 (404) 33,772
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans pLN Bank's margin 2016 40,136 3 (207) 39,932

Subtotal (Bank ) 74,310 5 (611) 73,704

Loans from non-controlling

interest granted to consolidated

subsidiaries PLN 6.8% 2016 2,737 - - 2,737

Subtotal (others) 2,737 - - 2,737

Total 238,347 929 (3,086) 236,190

(1) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obarmn the construction credit/loan granted by thaeks to the Group and increased by
2%, and updated at the beginning of each quarter.
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28. Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

Loans as at 31 December 2013:

Nominal Year of Accrued  Charges Carrying

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate  maturity Capital interest and fees value
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series A PLN 4.25% 2014 5,000 70 (65) 5,005
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series C PLN 3.75% 2017 83,500 221 (1,944) 81,777
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series D PLN 4.55% 2016 23,550 70 (519) 23,101
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series E PLN 4.55% 2016 9,250 311 (78) 9,483

Subtotal (floating rate bonds) 121,300 672 (2,606) 119,366
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2014 6,557 - (37) 6,520
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2014 7,994 - (64) 7,930
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2015 28,352 - (824) 27,528

Subtotal (Bank ) 42,903 - (925) 41,978

Loans from non-controlling

interest granted to consolidated

subsidiary PLN 7.29% 2016 1,924 733 - 2,657

Subtotal (third parties) 1,924 733 - 2,657

Total 166,127 1,405 (3,531) 164,001

(1) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obéumn the construction credit/loan granted by theks to the Group and increased by
2%, and updated at the beginning of each quarter.

Balance sheet value of assets used to secure logateived from banks and floating rate bonds serie€ and F:

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Inventory 461,696 350,925
Other 15,497 16,306
Balance sheet value of pledged assets 477,193 ,38Y

Amount of loans and borrowings 183,730 123,755
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29.

Floating rate bonds
The table below presents the movement in Floatitg lbond loans:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

Opening balance 119,366 88,413
Repayment of bond loans (5,000) (82,500)
Proceeds from bond loans 45,000 116,300
Issue cost (882) (2,978)
Issue cost amortization 1,013 1,116
Accrued interest 9,645 8,352
Interest repayment (9,393) (9,337)
Total closing balance 159,749 119,366

Closing balance includes:

Current liabilities 924 5,607
Non-current liabilities 158,825 113,759
Total closing balance 159,749 119,366

As at 31 December 2014 and as at 31 December 20d@/anants on floating rate bonds are met.

Series A:

On 18 April 2014, the Company repaid all remaimugstanding 500 series A bonds.

Series C and D:

On 14 June 2013, the Company issued 83,500 seriesn@s and 23,550 series D bonds, together with an
aggregate nominal value of PLN 107,050 thousand. ridminal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1 thodisa
and is equal to its issue price. The series C behdl be redeemed on 14 June 2017, whereas ilks 8ebonds
shall be redeemed on 14 June 2016 at nominal visdapectively. The bonds carry an interest ratepas®d of

a base rate equal to 6 months Wibor plus a mafgg7®% and 4.55%, respectively. Interest is pagaeimi-
annually in June and December until redemption.date

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 14 Juri’ Z8eries C bonds) or 14 June 2016 (series D honds
respectively, in case of the occurrence of certaignts covering a number of obligations and rdgirie
applicable to the Company, including the obligatiormaintain its financial ratios at certain leyeisstrictions

on investments in land having an unregulated statdsrestrictions on related party transactions.

The series D bonds are not secured, whereas tlies s€r bonds are secured by joint mortgage up to
PLN 100,200 thousand established by the ComparglistPsubsidiaries. Moreover, the ratio betweenvlee

of the pledged properties and the total nominalealf the Bonds issued shall not decrease below 90%
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29.

Floating rate bonds (cont’d)

Series E:

On 15 July 2013, the Company issued 9,250 seriesns with a total nominal value of PLN 9,250 themk
The nominal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1 ¢hod and is equal to its issue price. The seribsrigls
shall be redeemed on 15 July 2016. The bonds earipterest rate composed of a base rate equaitonshs
Wibor plus a margin of 4.55%. Interest is payalelmisannually in January and July until redemptiated

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 15 Juli62(n case of the occurrence of certain eventemoy a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetite Company, including the obligation to maintéi
financial ratios at certain levels, restrictionsiowestments in land having an unregulated statdsrastrictions
on related party transactions.

Series F

On 20 May 2014, the Company issued 280,000 seribsriels with a total nominal value of PLN 28,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®_té 100 and is equal to its issue price. The sé¥ibends
shall be redeemed on 20 May 2018. The bonds carigtarest rate composed of a base rate equahtortihs
Wibor plus a margin. Interest is payable semi-alipua May and November until redemption date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’'s request to be made prior to 20 May8201 case of the occurrence of certain events raoyex
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetite Company, including the obligation to maintéi
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series F bonds are secured by a mortgage RpNo42,000 thousand established by one of the Cagipa
Polish subsidiaries on the plots situated in Waragy&minowa Street.

Series G

On 30 April 2014, the Company issued 120,000 se@esonds with a total nominal value of PLN 12,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®d t 100 and is equal to its issue price. The s&ié®nds
shall be redeemed on 30 January 2018. The bondg @arinterest rate composed of a base rate equal t
months Wibor plus a margin. Interest is payableisamually in April and October until redemptiontea

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 30 JanR@iy, in case of the occurrence of certain eveoisring a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetite Company, including the obligation to maintéi
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

Series H

On 23 May 2014, the Company issued 50,000 seriesrids with a total nominal value of PLN 5,000 themks
The nominal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1QaDiarequal to its issue price. The series H bohdd be
redeemed on 23 February 2018. The bonds carrytarest rate composed of a base rate equal to 6hsont
Wibor plus a margin. Interest is payable semi-alipua May and November until redemption date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 23 FeprR@18, in case of the occurrence of certain eveongring

a number of obligations and restrictions applicablehe Company, including the obligation to maimtés
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.
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29.

Floating rate bonds (cont’d)
Financial ratio covenants:

Series C, D and E:

Based on the bonds conditions, in each reportimpgehe Company shall test the ratio between Nt do
Equity (hereinafter “Ratio” or “Net Indebtednessti@g. The Ratio shall not exceed 60% however ifidg the
Reporting Period the Company paid dividend or penéxl any buy-out of its treasury shares then theR&all
not exceed 50%.

The Net Indebtedness Ratio is a non-GAAP Finardigdsure and is calculated according to formulasigeal
below

Net debt -shall mean the total consolidated balance shdaeé\af loans and borrowings less the consolidated
value of cash and cash equivalents and short-tank deposits - collateralized.

Equity -shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valtleeafquity attributable to equity holders of ttzegnt,
less the value of the intangible assets (excludimg financial assets and receivables), includireciically (i)
the intangible and legal assets, goodwill andtfi§ assets constituting deferred income tax deedebg the
value of the provisions created on account of tbferded income tax, however, assuming that thenbalaf
those two values is positive. If the balance ofessnd provisions on account of deferred incomeiga
negative, the adjustment referred to in item (iipze shall be zero.

Reporting period starting from the second quarter of 2013 — mehegjuarterly reporting period with respect
to which the Group Net Indebtedness Ratio will bstad, while a “Reporting period” shall mean a king
reporting period, i.e. each calendar quarter.

The table presenting the Net Indebtedness Rati e end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2014
Net debt 163,569
Equity 444,469
Net Indebtedness Ratio 36.8%

Series F and H:

Based on the conditions of bonds F and H in eggbrtiag period the Company shall test the ratiblef debt to
Equity (hereinafter “Net Indebtedness Ratio”). Ruegio shall not exceed 80% on the Check Date.

The Net Indebtedness Ratio is Non-GAAP Financiab8ee and is calculated according to formulas piexvi
below:

Net debt -shall mean the total consolidated balance sheleievaf all interest bearing liabilities less the
consolidated value of cash and cash equivalents.

Equity -shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valtieeaquity attributable to equity holders of tlaegnt.
Check date +4ast day of each calendar quarter starting froenstcond quarter of 2014.

The table presenting the Net Indebtedness Rati e end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2014
Net debt 165,600
Equity 449,242
Net Indebtedness Ratio 36.9%
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29.

Floating rate bonds (cont’d)

Financial ratio covenants (cont’d):
Series G:

Based on the conditions of bonds G in each regppieriod the Company shall test the ratio of Nditde
Equity (hereinafter “Net Indebtedness Ratio”). Ruegio shall not exceed 80% on the Check Date.

The Net Indebtednes$atio is Non-GAAP Financial Measure and is cal@daaccording to formulas provided
below:

Net debt -shall mean the total consolidated balance sheleievaf all interest bearing liabilities less the
consolidated value of cash and cash equivalents$essctash paid by Company’s clients blocked teanigron

the escrow accounts servicing ongoing projects #rat under construction (presented in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet un@¢her current financial assets).

Equity -shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valtreadquity attributable to equity holders of tlzegmt.
Check date +ast day of each calendar quarter starting froenstcond quarter of 2014.

The table presenting the Net Indebtedness Rat e end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2014
Net debt 162,878
Equity 449,242
Net Indebtedness Ratio 36.3%

In addition to the above, based on the conditidisoods G, in each reporting period the Companyl &bst the
Net debt to Inventory Ratio (hereinafter “Net Débtinventory Ratio”). The Ratio shall not exceed®06n the
Check Date.

The Net Debt to Inventory Ratio is Non-GAAP FinalcMeasure and is calculated according to formulas
provided below:

Net debt -shall mean the total consolidated balance sheleievaf all interest bearing liabilities less the
consolidated value of cash and cash paid by Compatignts blocked temporarily on the escrow act¢sun
servicing ongoing projects that are under consoacfpresented in the Company’s consolidated balameet
underOther current financial assets).

Inventory -shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valubeofnventory of the Company less advances
received from the customers.

Check date +4ast day of each calendar quarter starting froenstcond quarter of 2014.

The table presenting the Net Debt to Inventory®as at the end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2014
Net debt 162,878
Inventory 607,488
Net Debt to Inventory Ratio 26.8%
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30.

Secured bank loans

The table below presents the movement in Secunekl Ibans:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL
Opening balance 41,978 105,212
New bank loan drawdov 69,819 27,428
Bank loans repayments (38,413)  (90,589)
Bank charges (789) (990)
Bank charges amortization 1,104 1,054
Accrued interest/(interest repayment) on bankdpaet 5 (137)
Total closing balance 73,704 41,978
Closing balance includes:

Current liabilities 5 14,450

Non-current liabilities 73,699 27,528
Total closing balance 73,704 41,978

For information related to unutilized bank loaniliies see Note 38.
For information related to new bank loans drawnidete 43.

Covenants on secured bank loans:

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company hasreached any loan covenant, which would expose th
Company for risk of obligatory and immediate repayinof any loan and has been able to extend altiegp

loan facilities.
For the bank loans the following collateral was gign:

* Ordinary and floating mortgages on Inventory se&NeO.

» Pledge over bank accounts which are presentecittimsolidated Statement of Financial Position ashC

and cash equivalents up to the amounts/installnterdsamounting to PLN 15,753 thousand and PLN 9,953
thousand as at 31 December 2014 and 31 Decemb@y 23pectively.

Deposits guarantee for interest on loans, see Rite

Assignment of receivables arising from insurancecagent and from the agreements concluded with
clients.

Subordination agreement on loans from related gmrti

Blank promissory note drawn by particular subsigieompanies with a promissory note declarationap t
the amount of the loan plus interest.

Advance payments of dividends by the borrowerd €udtirepayment of loans are not allowed.
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31. Loans from third parties
The table below presents the movement in Loans frimd parties:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance 2,657 6,228
Proceeds - 943
Repayments - (4,264)
Interest repayment (80) (589)
Accrued interest 160 339
Total closing balance 2,737 2,657

Closing balance includes:
Current liabilities - -

Non-current liabilities 2,737 2,657
Total Closing balance 2,737 2,657

For additional information, see Note 28.

32. Trade and other payables and accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Trade payables 27,706 19,200
Guarantees for construction wdtk 4,189 4,694
Accrued expenses 11,002 6,180
Value added tax (VAT) and other tax payables 478 779
Non-trade payables 336 1,835
Total trade and other payables and accrued expenses 43,711 32,688

Trade and non-trade payables are non-interestrigeand are normally settled on 30-day terms.

1) The long-term part of guarantees for constructiarhkg is presented in non-current liabilities.
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33.

34.

Advances received

Advances received consist of customer advancesoftstruction work in progress (deferred revenue) an

comprise customer advances for the following prsjec

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Chilli 1+11 41 85
Chilli 1 2,495 -
Espresso | 221 40,477
Espresso Il 6,126 1,715
Gemini ll 56 112
Verdis I+l 344 10,832
Verdis Il 25,181 1,636
Verdis IV 3,461 -
Kamienica Jezyce | 831 -
Sakura I+11 362 1,715
Sakura lll 24,265 1,773
Sakura IV 5,947 -
Tamka 13,652 861
Naturalis [+11+I11 148 1,016
Panoramika | 29 777
Panoramika Il 379 -
Mtody Grunwald | 300 7,109
Mtody Grunwald I 2,288 -
Moko | 6,684 -
Constans 231 2,138
Impressio I 5,951 67
Other 21 252
Total 99,013 70,565
For information about contingent receivables fragmed contracts with clients, see Note 38.
Provisions
For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Balance at the beginning of the year 201 231
Increase/(decrease) 877 (30)
Balance at the end of the year 1,078 201

As at 31 December 2014, the provision included etqubnecessary costs of guarantees for construstioks
amounting to PLN 1,078 thousand, whereas as ate2kmber 2013, the provision included expected sacgs

costs of guarantees for construction works amogrtrPLN 201 thousand.
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35. Share-based payments

In February 2014 the Company implemented a long+-iecentive plan (the ‘Plan’), addressed to setbéey
employees, which is based on the price performafntiee Company’s shares (the “Phantom Stock Plartie
Phantom Stock Plan, which does not assume anyssag of shares and which will not result in any seares
supply is based on the following key assumptiortsianludes the settlement mechanism as descrided/be

i. the exercise price of one option under the Rirarstock Plan is PLN 1.6;

ii. the total number of options is 2,705,000 (whistihe equivalent of approximately 1% of the Comps total
number of shares), and the allocation of optionpddicular employees shall be made by way of arste
decision of the remuneration committee of the Regration Committee;

ii. benefits will be aggregated among the seleastloyees (of the Company or of its subsidiarigsd join
the Phantom Stock Plan through the end of 201%ha¢h (a) 50% is awarded as of the date of thesitatiof
the Remuneration Committee approving the PhantaokI®lan, (b) 25% as of the end of 2014, and (&) By
the end of 2015;

iv. employees participating in the Phantom StoanRhaintain the right to exercise their optionsluhé end of
2017 (or a maximum of two years from the date te@yno longer employed by the Ronson Group);

v. upon the exercise of the options, the Comparllypay the option holder the amount in cash eqaathe
difference between PLN 1.6 and the current markieef the shares in the Company (“Current Mafkete”)
allocated to a particular employee (option holder);

vi. the Current Market Price will be calculatedthe average trading price of the shares duringptkeeding
calendar month, whereby the average trading phieé be determined by calculating the total turnmoxedue in
PLN of all of the shares in the Company tradedrduthat period divided by the total number of sharaded
during such period (however, if the total valudhasf overall turnover in any particular month is é&avthan PLN
100 thousand, then the Current Market Price shalt&iculated on the basis of the most recent twotimo
market average);

vii. in the event that the free float is less tH&0% of all the outstanding shares in the Compamy,Gurrent
Market Price will be established by a reputableigibn company based on a comparable valuatiorooén’s
peer companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exch@raged on P/E and P/BV multiples);

viii. an option holder shall be entitled to subraippayment request during the first five working slay each
calendar month, provided that all employees musénke any trading restrictions related to the patehase of

the Company’s shares by Management and Supervizmayd members and key management under applicable
regulations, especially with respect to the obssrgaf closed periods.

Based on the Remuneration Committee decision, buhe total 2,705,000 options, 950,000 options were
allocated to Tomasz tagski, and 675,000 options were allocated to And@efowski while the remaining
1,080,000 options were allocated to other key eygae of the Company. Of the total 2,705,000 optlEdes,

i.e. 1,352,500 options, were granted and vestedl leebruary 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of optigmasited is 2,705,000, the weighted average fdurevaf
these options using the Black-Scholes valuationehadapproximately PLN 0.31 per option. The sigpaift
inputs into the model were a weighted average space of PLN 1.49, the exercise price mentionedvab
volatility of 47%, dividend yield of 3%, an optidife of 2 years and an annual risk free rate of 6%.

The fair value of these options, as at 31 Decer@béd, amounting to PLN 702 thousand, has beendedlin

the Company’s consolidated balance sheet undee®izaed payment liabilities. The change in faingdbr the
year ended 31 December 2014, also amounting to PQA thousand, is recognized in employee benefits
expense.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no optiene exercised.
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36. Fair value estimation of financial assets anddbilities
The fair values of financial assets and liabilitiegyether with the carrying amounts shown in tlgolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are as follows:

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note 31 De?esmal;er 2014
Carrying amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 21 1,639 1,639
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 22 2,031 2,020
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 17 1,623 1,749
Other current financial assets Loans and receivables 23 2,722 2,722
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading 24 70,590 70,590
Liabilities:
Floating rate bonds Other financial liabilities 28 159,749 160,348
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 28 73,704 73,754
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 28 2,737 2,783
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 32 43,233 43,233
Unrecognized loss (580)
As at
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note 31 December 2013
Carrying amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 21 32,428 32,428
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 22 1,268 1,261
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 17 1,473 1,216
Other current financial assets Loans and receivables 23 515 515
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading 24 52,153 52,153
Liabilities:
Floating rate bonds Other financial liabilities 28 119,366 119,274
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 28 41,978 42,000
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 28 2,657 2,375
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 32 31,909 31,909
Unrecognized gain 88

Estimation of fair values

The following methods and assumptions were use@stimate the fair value of each class of financial

instruments:

« trade and other receivables, cash and cash equtisalether current financial assets and trade dhdro
payables: the carrying amounts approximate faue/élecause of the short maturity of these instrasnen

» short-term bank deposit — collateralized : the Yailue is estimated by discounting the future déshs of
each instrument using discount rates offered toGhaup for similar instruments of comparable maiesi

by the Group’s bankers;

* loans and borrowings: the fair value is estimatgddiscounting the future cash flows of each inseuan
using discount rates offered to the Group for @imihstruments of comparable maturities by the @iou

bankersThe own non-performance risk as at 31 December 2@klassessed as insignificant.

101



Ronson Europe N.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. Fair value estimation of financial assets andgdbilities (cont’d)

Interest rates used for determining fair value
The interest rates used to discount estimated ftasis (PLN denominated), where applicable, are tase
WIBOR plus/minus margin as at 31 December 20143nBecember 2013 and are as follows:

As at 31 December 2014 2013
Loans and borrowings 4.56-6.3% 5.6%-7.3%
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 2.1% TY2.

37. Fair value measurement hierarchy

The table below provides the fair value measurerhimtairchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:
» Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marker identical assets or liabilities;

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includéithivv Level 1 that are observable for the assdiamility,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectlye(i. derived from prices);

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that i@ based on observable market data (unobserirghlés).

Quantitative disclosures fair value hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 2014:

Fair value measurement using:

Quoted prices in Significant Significant

Date of active markets ~ observable inputs  unobservable inputs
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) valuation (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment property 31-Dec-14 - - 9,217
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Loans granted to third parties 31-Dec-14 - 1,749 -
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 31-Dec-14 - 2,020
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: -
Floating rate bonds 31-Dec-14 - 160,348 -
Secured bank loans 31-Dec-14 - 73,754 -
Loans from third parties 31-Dec-14 - 2,783 -

During 2014, there have been no transfers betwesgglll and Level 2.
For information related additional information abthe significant unobservable inputs (level 3) Se¢e 16.

102



Ronson Europe N.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. Commitments and contingencies

Investment commitments:

The amounts in the table below present unchargedsiment commitments of the Group in respect of
construction services to be rendered by the generdtactors:

As at 31 December 2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Moko | 35,301 -

Kamienica Jeyce | 28,109 -

Panoramika Il 24,500 -

Tamka 18,354 26,837
Mtody Grunwald I 18,183 -

Espresso |l 16,972 25,047
Impressio Il 17,038 30,708
Sakura IV 12,852 -

Verdis IV 11,646 -

Verdis Il 11,361 23,219
Sakura Il 4,158 19,515
Chilli - 4,471

Mtody Grunwald | - 1,811

Espresso | - 1,941

Total 198,474 133,549

Contingent liabilities:

As at 31 December 2014 and as at 31 December B84 &roup did not have any contingents liabilities.

Unutilized construction loans:

The table below presents the list of the constactioan facilities, which the Company arranged ifor
conjunction with entering into loan agreements wita banks in order to secure financing of the taoson
and other outstanding costs of the ongoing projetii® amounts presented in the table below inchhee
unutilized part of the construction loans availaol¢he Company:

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Espresso | - 4,491
Espresso Il 22,305 35,000
Sakura Il 4,415 33,103
Sakura IV 13,012 28,025
Tamka - 33,186
Impressio Il 20,314 34,750
Moko | 42,450 57,450
Mtody Grunwald Il 15,142 -
Kamienica Jeyce | 28,671 -
Total 146,309 226,005
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38. Commitments and contingencies (cont’d)

Contingent receivables - contracted sales not yeeécognized:

The table below presents amounts to be received fhe customers having bought apartments from Ronso
subsidiary companies and which are based on thee\afl the sale and purchase agreements signedtveith
clients until 31 December 2014 after deduction aympents received at reporting date (such paymegitgyb
presented in the Consolidated Statement of FinBRoisition as Advances received):

As at 31 December 2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Tamka 26,153 9,672
Moko | 34,255 -

Verdis Il 22,045 6,155
Espresso Il 16,271 6,937
Sakura lll 9,098 7,546

Sakura IV 11,017 -

Impressio I 7,706 358

Verdis IV 10,747 -

Miody Grunwald I 6,519 -

Kamienica Jeyce | 10,893 -

Chilli 11 1,233 413

Sakura | & Il 987 4,902

Panoramika Il 3,046 -

Naturalis I, Il & llI 1,513 2,378
Espresso | 686 13,316
Constans 776 969

Chilli I & 11 363 568

Verdis | & Il 117 10,844
Mtody Grunwald | 28 10,629
Gemini ll 50 640

Panoramika | 4 2,058

Impressio | - 335

Total 163,507 77,720

39. Related parties

Parent company
The Company enters into various transactions watisubsidiaries and with its directors and exeeutifficers.

The interest in the Company held (indirectly) bytlgading shareholders, (1) Global City Holding¥ Nand

(2) U. Dori Group Ltd. each holding (indirectly) B9 of the Company’s share capital and votes. The
Company’s immediate shareholders are I.T.R. 2032,B.T.R. Dori B.V. and RN Residential B.V. (prenisly

GE Real Estate CE Residential B.V.), controllecsilNovember 2013 by U. Dori Group Ltd. and |.T.R12
B.V., with an interest in shares in the Companyapital of 32.1%, 32.1% and 15.3%, respectively,ats
31 December 2014. For a list of subsidiaries refezés made to Note 1(b).
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39.

Related parties (cont'd)

The main related parties’ transactions arise on:

« transactions with key management personnel;

» loans granted to related parties;

» other.

Outstanding balances with related parties as d&dmber 2014 and as at 31 December 2013 are wedecu
interest free (except for loans granted to thetjeanture (Ronson IS sp. z 0.0. Sp.k.) and setthéraecurs in
cash. The Group did not record any impairment oéirables relating to amounts owed by related gsuiiti
either year. This assessment is undertaken eaahcfal year through examining the financial positaf the
related party and the market in which the relatadypoperates. All transactions with related partieere
performed based on market conditions.

Transactions with key management personnel
As at 31 December 2014, key management persontiet ompany include:
Shraga Weisman - President of the Management Board, Chief EtveeDfficer

Tomasz tapinski - Member of the Management Board, Chief Financiéicér
Andrzej Gutowski - Member of the Management Board, Sales and Mag®irector
Peter Dudolenski - Member of the Management Board

Ronen Ashkenazi - Member of the Management Board

Key Management Board personnel compensation

Apart from the compensation listed below, thereewvao further benefits, including share based paysnen
granted to key management personnel that wereggrahiring 2014. Key management personnel compensati
can be presented as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Salary and other short term employee benefits 37,4 1,534
Management bonus 67 582
Subtotal - Mr Shraga Weisman 1,504 2,116
Salary and other short term employee benefits 510 522

Management bonus 16 131

Incentive plan linked to financial results -
Current value of the potential benefits from theeintive plan linked to the

share price performance (not paid)* 247 -
Subtotal - Mr Tomasz tapiski 773 653
Salary and other short term employee benefits 297 311
Management bonus 15 222
Incentive plan linked to financial results 257

Current value of the potential benefits from theeintive plan linked to the

share price performance (not paid)* 172 -
Subtotal - Mr Andrzej Gutowski 741 533
Total 3,018 3,302

*  For additional information see note 35
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39.

Related parties (cont'd)

Share based payments to members of the Managemenbdd

During 2014, upon recommendation of the Remunerafiommittee and approval by the Supervisory Board,
950,000 options under the existing long-term inisenplan were allocated to Mr Tomasz tiggki, and 675,000
options were allocated to Andrzej Gutowski. Of theptions 50% were granted and vested on 3 FebRidr.

For a detailed description of the Company’s longratencentive plan, reference is made to Note 35

Loans to directors
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, weneno loans granted to directors.

Supervisory Board remuneration

The supervisory directors are entitled to an anfiemlof EUR 8,900 plus an amount of EUR 1,500 pmardh
meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by telephone)irguthe year ended 31 December 2014, the Supeyviso
Board consisted of five members. One Supervisogr@8oember has waived his remuneration and thueatid
receive any payment from the Company. The totallarhdue in respect of Supervisory Board fees du2ibiy

is PLN 253 thousand (EUR 60 thousand; 2013: PLNtB8lisand (EUR 67 thousand)).

Residential units purchased by key management

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Grolghae residential unit including two parking paand
one storage to Mr Andrzej Gutowski for a total mebount (excluding VAT) of PLN 872 thousand. This
transaction was executed at arm’s length and wasllierence to the Group’s policy in respect ofteelgparty
transactions.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Grolgprssidential one unit including one parking gland
one storage to Mr Shraga Weisman for a total nebusmn (excluding VAT) of PLN 890 thousand. These
transactions were executed at arm’s length and weaglherence to the Group’s policy in respectatéted-
party transactions.

Loans granted to the joint venture
The loans are granted to the joint venture, RohSap. z 0.0. Sp.k.. For additional information Bkxe 18.

Other

As a result of requirements pertaining to U. Donio® Ltd., one of the Company’'s larger (indirect)
shareholders, whose shares are listed on the Tl #tuck exchange, the first quarter reports, senmual
reports and third quarter reports are subjectftdl acope review by the Company’s auditors. F@& @ompany
itself, being domiciled in the Netherlands andelisbn the Warsaw Stock Exchange, only the semiameport

is subject to an audit review. The Company haseatwth U. Dori Group that the costs for the fiastd third
quarter audit review will be fully reimbursed toetfCompany. The reimbursement of audit review cists
disclosed in Note 15 to the Company Financial $tatgs.
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40. Financial risk management, objectives and polies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afafincial risks: market risk (including currency rigkice risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquiditgk. The Group’s overall risk management progracuges on
the unpredictability of financial markets and se&kminimize potential adverse effects on the Gietfipancial

performance. The Management Board reviews and sg@eies for managing each of these risks ang éine

summarized below. The Group also monitors the ntaotiee risk arising from all financial instruments

The Group does not use derivative financial insents to hedge currency or interest rate risksrayiiom the
Group’s operations and its sources of finances,laind has been throughout the year ended 31 Deceth4
and 2013, the Group’s policy that no trading inridative) financial instruments shall be undertaken

The Group’s principal financial instruments comerisash balances, bank loans, bonds, trade recesvaht

trade payables. The main purpose of these finaimgtluments is to manage the Group’s liquidity émdaise
finance for the Group’s operations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thed@p if a customer or counter party to a finanaiskiument fails

to meet its contractual obligations. Financial iastents that potentially subject the Group to cotregions of
credit risk consist principally of cash and cashiealents and receivables.

The Group is making significant cash payments as sgctor preliminary land purchase agreements. The
Group minimizes its credit risk arising from sucyments by registering advance repayment obligstionhe
mortgage register of the respective property. Manant has a credit policy in place and the exposuceedit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Groupsdaot expect any counter parties to fail in meetheir

obligations The carrying amounts of the financial assets remtethe maximum credit risk exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reportintgdeas as follows:

As at 31 December As at 31 December

In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN) 2014 2013

Trade and other receivables 2,600 4,817
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 2,031 1,268
Cash and cash equivalents 70,590 52,153
Total 75,221 58,238

The Group places its cash and cash equivalent®amdial institutions with high credit ratings. Megement
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meebhligations. Concentrations of credit risk witdspect to
trade receivables are limited due to the large rarolh customers comprising the Group’s customee b@ke
credit quality of cash at banks and short-term bdegosits can be assessed by reference to extretit
ratings:

As at 31 December  As at 31 December

2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN)

Rating

AAA 13 16
A 27,352 40,210
BB 28,986 -
BBB 14,239 11,927
Total cash at banks and short-term bank deposits 70,590 52,153
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40.

Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of ftgucash flows of a financial instrument will fluetie because of
changes in market prices, such as foreign excheaige and interest rates will affect the Grouptome or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments, Buas bank loans, floating rate bond loans, cash casth
equivalents and short-term bank deposits. The tigeof market risk management is to manage andraon
market risk exposures within acceptable parametdrie optimizing return.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk aenreables and payables denominated in a curreteyr tian
PLN to a limited extent only. As at 31 December£2@hd 2013, trade receivables and payables dentadiima
foreign currencies were insignificant.

(ii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to marketable and non-marletazurities price risk does not exists becausésttoup
has not invested in securities as at 31 Decembist 20d 2013.

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group didn't enter into any fixed-rate borrogsntransaction. The Group’s variable-rate borrowiage
exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due smgés in interest rates. Short-term receivablespaydbles
are not exposed to interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will ndsie able to meet its financial obligations as thay due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to enswae far as possible, that it will always have isight

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, undeotb normal and stressed conditions, without incigrri
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Gsaeputation.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of fundisg a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tamnsiders
the maturity of both its financial investments dinthncial assets (e.g. accounts receivable, otimaméial
assets) and projected cash flows from operatiohg Group's objective is to maintain a balance betwe
continuity of funding and flexibility through these of bank overdrafts, bank loans and floating lated loans.
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40. Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Interest rate risk and liquidity risk analyzed
In respect of income-earning financial assets andrést-bearing financial liabilities, the followgntables
indicate their average effective interest ratethatreporting date and the periods in which theyuneaor, if

earlier, re-price.

As at 31 December 2014

More
Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.05%-0.2% 9,951 9,951 - - - -
Short-term bank deposits -
collateralized 22 1.5%-2.2% 2,031 2,031 - - - -
Variable rate instruments
Loans granted to third parties 17 11.89%Y 1,623 - - 918 705 -
Cash and cash equivalents 24 Wibor + 0.1%-1% 60,639 60,639 - - - -
WIBOR + Bank's
Secured bank loans 28 magin 73,704 5 73,699 - - -
Loans from others 28 6.8%4% 2,737 - - 2,737 - -
Wibor 6M +
Floating rate bonds 28 3.75%-4.55% 159,749 924 - 32,446 126,379 -

@

2

As at 31 December 2013

The interest rate is calculated based on the latestest rate calculated on the construction ctéafn granted by bank to the Group
increased by 7%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.
The interest rate is calculated based on the latestest rate calculated on the construction ctéafn granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.

More
Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.05%-0.2% 5,185 5,185 - - - -
Short-term bank deposits -
collateralized 22 1.5%-2.5% 1,268 1,268 - - - -
Variable rate instruments
Loans granted to third parties 17 12.294Y 1,473 843 - - 630 -
Wibor + 0.1%-
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.5% 46,968 46,968 - - - -
Wibor + Bank's
Secured bank loans 28 margin 41,978 157 14,293 27,528 - -
Loans from others 28 7.2%-8.6% 2,657 - - - 2,657 -
Wibor 6M +
Floating rate bonds 28 3.75%-4.95% 119,366 5,005 - - 114,361 -

@

[©)

The interest rate is calculated based on the latestest rate calculated on the construction ctéafn granted by bank to the Group
increased by 7%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.
The interest rate is calculated based on the l&tdstest rate calculated on the construction ctéafin granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.
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40.

Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Interest rate risk and liquidity risk analyzed (ctd)
It is estimated that a general increase of onegm¢age point in interest rates at the reporting deduld
increase/(decrease) the net assets and the statefreemprehensive income by the amounts listethéntable
below. The analysis prepared for 12-month periadsimes that all other variables remain unchanged.

As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
Statement of comprehensive income
Variable interest rate assets 208 (208) 190 (190)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (787) 787 (575) 575
Total (579) 579 (385) 385
Net assets
Variable interest rate assets 208 (208) 190 (190)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (787) 787 (575) 575
Total (579) 579 (385) 385

*  The financial costs which are related to loand borrowing are capitalized by the Group to warkprogress. Such costs are gradually
recognized in the statement of comprehensive indmmsed on the proportion of residential units sibldas been assumed in the above
analysis that one third of the financial costs elated and capitalized in a given period is disetbi the statement of comprehensive
income based on the proportion of residential wsold of a given period and the remaining parthef ¢osts remains in the inventories
and will be disclosed in the statement of comprshvenincome in the following accounting periods.

The table below analyses the Group’s financialilitsds into relevant maturity groupings based dre t
remaining period from reporting date to the corttratmaturity date. The amounts disclosed in théetare the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 December 2014

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 13,998 120,676 133,942 -
Trade and other payables 43,233 - - -
Total 57,231 120,676 133,942 -

As at 31 December 2013

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 30,044 36,148 138,839 -
Trade and other payables 31,909 - - -
Total 61,953 36,148 138,839 -
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40. Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Real-estate risk

Management believes that the residential marketwebkole in Poland is less saturated than in angratbuntry
within the European Union, including also the depétg countries in Central and Eastern Europe, himic
general provides for many opportunities for restdg¢rdevelopers. However, due to the fact that Bodish
economy is still experiencing many dynamic changesay be sensitive to potential up and down-tuiliieese
market conditions form an important and significaisk factor for the Company and for other resigent
developers, as the development process (includages such as the purchase of land, the preparattitzmd
for construction works, the construction processlitand, finally, also the sale of apartments) nake several
years from start until completion. It is importaiot understand that decisions taken by the Companst m
assume a relatively long-term time horizon for eacbject as well as a significant volatility of thprices,
construction cost levels and sales prices of agarsnduring the duration of projects which may haveaterial
impact on the Company’s profitability and financingeds.

Another specific risk is associated with the raggdelopment of many Polish cities, which very oftevolves a
lack of stability of development plans which coslabstantially impact the likelihood that projectsparticular
sites are realized as initially desired or planr@dite often, residential developers are interestdallying land
parcels without zoning conditions or without a dgathaster plan for the area, which would allow fopedter
assessment of the ultimate value of the plot. Rogssuch market opportunities may result in rekgiviow
prices of the land parcels. However, this strategy result in increasing operational and finandiks for the
developer. Moreover, changing development planth@fities could also impact the planned develograad
realization of utility infrastructure (including wex, gas, sewage and electricity connections), vigccritical
factor for the Company and other developers. Howefee a vast majority of land parcels, the Compiag
already obtained zoning approvals, which reducssigk to the Company significantly.

Another operating risk lies within the constructiorocess itself. The Company does not operate stremtion
business, but, instead, it hires third party gdnepatractors, who are responsible for running ¢bastruction
and for the finalization of the project includingtaining all permits necessary for safe use ofapartments.
Important selection criteria when hiring a gene@htractor include experience, professionalism famahcial
strength of the contractor as well as the qualityhe insurance policy covering all risks assodatéth the
construction process.

Recent turbulence in the financial markets hasltegiun a lack of stability in the manner in whiihancing
institutions (banks) have approached both reatesmmpanies and individual customers when appljong
mortgage loan. As the real estate business is e@pjtal consuming, the role of the banking sectud ds
lending abilities are crucial for the Company laging not only when land parcels are acquired lsat during
the later stages of development, especially dutiegconstruction phase. Moreover, the availabditgxternal
financing is a crucial element driving the demamddpartments, as the vast majority of our custsraeg using
mortgage secured loans to finance the purchasgastraents.

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world'pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sute there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and mankaues can change rapidly due to the current nbarke
conditions.
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41.

Capital management

When managing capital, it is the Group’s objectisesafeguard the Group’s ability to continue asoing
concern in order to provide returns for sharehadend benefits for other stakeholders and to mairda
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ofiteapln order to maintain or adjust the capitausture, the
Group may adjust the profit appropriation, retuapital to shareholders, issue new shares or seditado
reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industny Group monitors capital on the basis of tharigg ratio
and leverage. The Group’s policy is to keep theiggaatio of the Group lower than 60%, and a lagerof the
Group lower than 50%.

Banking covenants vary according to each loan ageeg but typically are not related directly to tpearing
ratio of the Company but to the proportion of Idarvalue of the mortgage collateral which usuadlyequired
not to cross the limit of 50% or 60%. Moreover @empany is obliged to monitor its indebtedness ating to
the conditions of the bond issuance, which req@mongst others, that in each reporting periodGbmpany
shall test the ratio between Net debt to Equitye Ratio shall not exceed 60% however if duringReporting
Period the Company paid dividend or performed auny-dut of its treasury shares then the Ratio shatl
exceed 50% (for additional information see Note 29)

During the period the Group did not breach anytefléan covenants, nor did it default on any otbkits
obligations under its loan agreements.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt dividgdotal equity. Net debt is calculated as totatrbwings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ t®own in the consolidated Statement of Financiaitiom)
less cash and cash equivalents. Leverage is cedduda net debt divided by total capital employestal capital
employed is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in @mnsolidated Statement of Financial Position plesdebt
financing assets in operation.

The gearing ratios and leverage at 31 December @0d81 December 2013 were as follows:

As at 31 December 2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Loan and borrowings, including current portion 6230 164,001
Less: cash and cash equivalents (70,590) (52,153)
Net debt 165,600 111,848
Total equity 451,341 466,556
Total capital employed 616,941 578,404
Gearing ratio 36.7% 24.0%

Leverage 26.8% 19.3%

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are stiltgeexternally imposed capital requirements. Theege no
changes in the Groups approach to capital managedueng the year.

During the period the Group did not breach anyt®fdan and borrowings covenants, nor did it défaolany
other of its obligations under its loan agreements.
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42.

43.

Cash flow reconciliation

Inventory

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

Balance sheet change in inventory (101,711) 48,629
Finance expense, net capitalized into inventory ,139 13,610
Transferred from advance for land 28,969 -
Write-down of inventory (12,471) -
Inventory transferred into investment property - 787)
Inventory transferred into fixed assets - (1,030)
Change in inventory in the consolidated statementf@ash flows (75,074) 60,422

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance sheet change in trade and other receivabteprepayments 29,404 (7,459)
Transferred to inventory (28,969) -

Change in Trade and other receivables and prepaymés in the
consolidated statement of cash flows 435 (7,459)

Events during the financial year

Land purchase

In May 2014, the Group signed with private indivédli (the “Sellers”) the final sale-purchase agregme
concerning undeveloped land situated in WarsaviricisMokotow at Jéminowa Street with a total size of 82
thousand rh

The total purchase price for the land purchaseRids 65.57 million, of which PLN 20.75 million wasijd in
advance by the Company in June 2012 while the mEn@ipurchase amount (PLN 44.82 million) was paid i
May 2014.

Incentive plan

On 3 February 2014, the Supervisory Board of they@any adopted an incentive plan addressed to edl&ely
employees, which is linked to the price performaatthe Company’s shares (the “Phantom Stock Plartig
Phantom Stock Plan does not assume any new isslads and will not result in any new shares supr a
detailed description of the Plan, reference is madéote 35.

Bank loans

In September 2014, the Company entered into anxaioritae loan facility with Bank Zachodni WBK S.#vith
an aggregate value of PLN 18.4 million. Based an digned annex, the repayment date of a part ofotre
equal to PLN 7.6 million has been agreed for Oatdt¥ 4, while the repayment date of the remainmanl
amount (PLN 10.8 million) has been extended uatiluary 2016.

In November 2014, the Company executed loan agneewith Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. related to the seton
stage of housing development project Miody Grunwal®ozna. Under these loan agreement Bank Zachodni
WBK S.A. is to provide financing to cover the cosfsconstruction up to the total amount of PLN 2sillion.
Under the loan agreement the final repayment dateedoan facility is established for December @01
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43.

Events during the financial year (cont’d)
Bank loans (cont’d)

In November 2014, the Company executed loan agneewi¢h Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. related to the first
stage of housing development project Kamienicgckin Pozna. Under these loan agreement Bank Zachodni
WBK S.A. is to provide financing to cover the cosfsconstruction up to the total amount of PLN 2&i#lion.
Under the loan agreement the final repayment dateedoan facility is established for December 01

Bond loans

On 20 May 2014, the Company issued 280,000 serié®riels with a total nominal value of PLN 28,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®_té 100 and is equal to its issue price. The sé¥ibends
shall be redeemed on 20 May 2018. The bonds carigtarest rate composed of a base rate equahtortihs
Wibor plus a margin. Interest is payable semi-atipuia May and November until redemption date (for
additional information see Note 29).

On 30 April 2014, the Company issued 120,000 se@ekonds with a total nominal value of PLN 12,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®d_td 100 and is equal to its issue price. The sé&id®nds
shall be redeemed on 30 January 2018. The bondg &arinterest rate composed of a base rate equal t
months Wibor plus a margin. Interest is payableissamually in April and October until redemptiontedfor
additional information see Note 29).

On 23 May 2014, the Company issued 50,000 seriesrids with a total nominal value of PLN 5,000 thand
The nominal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1aDiarequal to its issue price. The series H bohddl be
redeemed on 23 February 2018. The bonds carrytarest rate composed of a base rate equal to 6hsont
Wibor plus a margin. Interest is payable semi-alipua May and November until redemption date (for
additional information see Note 29).

Completions of projects

In February 2014, the Company completed the coctstiuof the Espresso | project comprising 210sumiith a
total area of 9,500 fn

In May 2014, the Company completed the construabbthe Miody Grunwald | project comprising 148 i
with a total area of 8,500

In November 2014, the Company completed the coctsbruof the Chili Il project comprising 38 unitgith a
total area of 2,300 fn

Commencements of new projects

In March 2014, the Company commenced the constnuatiork of the Sakura IV project, which will compei
114 units with an aggregate floor space of 6,660 m

In March 2014, the Company commenced the salesni$ wf the Mitody Grunwald Il project, with the
construction works commenced in April 2014. The §4tdGrunwald 1l project will comprise 137 units wiém
aggregate floor space of 8,208.m

In June 2014, the Company commenced the construatiok of the Verdis IV project, which will compas78
units with an aggregate floor space of 4,060 m

In June 2014, the Company commenced the salesitsfafrthe Panoramika Il project, the constructeork is
commenced in September 2014. The Panoramika légrajill comprise 107 units with an aggregate flspace
of 5,900 M.

In September 2014, the Company commenced the catistt work of the Moko | project, which will conipe
179 units with an aggregate floor space of 11,380 m

In September 2014, the Company commenced the catistt work of the Kamienica dgce | project, which
will comprise 144 units with an aggregate flooramaf 7,800 rh
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44,

Subsequent events

Bank loans

None.

Commencements of new projects

In February 2015, the Company commenced the cat&truwork of the Espresso Il project, which will
comprise 155 units with an aggregate floor spac 230 .

In February 2015, the Company commenced the carsiruwork of the Moko Il project, which will comise
169 units with an aggregate floor space of 12,680 m

Completions of projects

In January 2015, the Company completed the congiruof the Sakura Il project comprising 145 unitgh a
total area of 7,300 In

Bonds

On 23 January 2015, the Company issued 10,000sskt®nds with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®d ¢ 100 and is equal to its issue price. The sérEmnds
shall be redeemed on 25 January 2019. The bondg @arinterest rate composed of a base rate equal t
months Wibor plus a margin. Interest is payableisamually in January and July until redemptionedat

Land purchase

In February 2015, the Group entered into a prelmjirpurchase agreement in respect of plot of lacdted at
Wolska Street in Warsaw with the total area of th@usand rh According to the valid zoning conditions, the
plot is dedicated for development of residentialtifamily project. The purchase price was agree@latl 21.1
million, of which 15% has been already pre-paid-ebruary 2015 and the remaining part of the pridebe
settled on a day of transfer of the ownership effitot to the buyer. The parties agreed that gmestiction shall
be settled by the end of 2015.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Company Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

(restated*)
Revenues from consulting services 4,472 5,402
General and administrative expense 3 (4,437) (3,395)
Operating profit/(loss) 35 2,007
Finance income 5 10,410 9,656
Finance expense 5 (11,404) (10,226)
Net finance income/(expense) (994) (570)
Profit/(loss) before taxation (959) 1,437
Income tax 6 - -
Profit/(loss) before result from subsidiaries (959) 1,437
Result from subsidiaries after taxation 8 (14,472) 17,211
Profit/(loss) for the year (15,431) 18,648

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to then@any Financial Statements as at 31 December 20d3eflect adjustments made as

detailed in Note 2(f) to the Consolidated Finan@shtements (see pages 59 and 60).

The notes on pages 120 to 125 are an integral giatiese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
After profit appropriation

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

(restated*)
Assets
Investment in subsidiaries 8 441,523 454,745
Loan granted to subsidiaries 9 158,747 105,054
Total non-current assets 600,270 559,799
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 719 475
Receivable from subsidiaries 497 4,558
Loan granted to subsidiaries 9 - 21,574
Cash and cash equivalents 12,314 1,403
Total current assets 13,530 28,010
Total assets 613,800 587,809
Equity
Shareholders’ equity 10
Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium reserve 282,873 282,873
Revaluation reserve 3,912 4,096
Retained earnings 141,695 156,942
Total shareholders’ equity 449,242 464,673
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Floating rate bond loans 11 158,825 113,759
Total long-term liabilities 158,825 113,759

Current liabilities

Floating rate bond loans 11 924 5,607
Payable to subsidiaries 228 -
Accrued interest on loans from subsidiaries 3,310 3,310
Share based payment liabilities 702 -
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 569 460
Total current liabilities 5,733 9,377
Total liabilities 164,558 123,136
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 613,800 587,809

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to then@any Financial Statements as at 31 December 20d3eflect adjustments made as
detailed in Note 2(f) to the Consolidated Finan@#htements (see pages 59 and 60).

The notes on pages 120 to 125 are an integral giatiese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 Decemb@13:

Share Share Revaluation Retained Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) capital  premium reserve earnings equity
Balance at 1 January 2013 (restated*) 20,762 282387 3,474 148,614 455,723
Payment of dividendgee Note 10) - - - (8,171) (8,171)
Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 - - 622 18,026 18,648
Acquisition of non-controlling interest
(see Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Stateshen - - - (1,527) (1,527)
Balance at 31 December 2013 20,762 282,873 4,096 6,982 464,673
Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 841  (15,247) (15,431)
Balance at 31 December 2014 20,762 282,873 3,912 1,895 449,242

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to then@any Financial Statements as at 31 December 20d3eflect adjustments made as

detailed in Note 2(f) to the Consolidated Finan@#htements (see pages 59 and 60).

The notes on pages 120 to 125 are an integral giathese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

(restated*®)
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Profit for the year (15,431) 18,648

Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period
to net cash from/(used in) operating activities:

Net finance income/(expense), net 5 994 570
Share based payment 702 -
Net results subsidiaries during the year 8 14,472 (17,211)
Subtotal 737 2,007
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

and prepayments (244) (29)
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from subsidiaries 4,061 (3,431)
Increase/(decrease) in payable to subsidiaries 228
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payable

and accrued expense 109 (1,063)
Subtotal 4,891 (2,506)
Interest paid, net 6,242 (3,747)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 11,133 (6,253)

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Loans granted to subsidiaries, net of issue cost (41,160) (18,788)
Repayment of loans granted to subsidiaries 3,070 2,500
Dividend from subsidiary 8 17,200 -
Investment in subsidiaries 8 (18,450) -
Net cash from/(used) in investing activities (39,340) (16,288)

Cash flows from/(used) financing activities

Dividend payment - (8,171)

Proceeds from bond loans, net of issue costs 44,118 113,322
Repayment of bond loans (5,000) (82,500)
Net cash from/(used) financing activities 39,118 22,651

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 10,911 110
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1,403 1,293
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12,314 1,403

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to then@any Financial Statements as at 31 December 208d3eflect adjustments made as
detailed in Note 2(f) to the Consolidated Finan@shtements (see pages 59 and 60).

The notes on pages 120 to 125 are an integral gittiese Company financial statements.
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1.

General

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), is a Nethertatichited liability company with its statutory seft
Rotterdam, the Netherlands, and was incorporatetBalune 2007.

The shares of the Company are traded on the Wai&aek Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at
31 December 2014, 39.78% of the outstanding shaesontrolled by I.T.R. 2012 B.V., which is an inedt
subsidiary of Global City Holdings N.V. (‘ITR 203232.11% through a jointly controlled partnerstiggmed
under Dutch law between ITR 2012 and ITR Dori Bavid 7.67% through a jointly controlled company fedn
under Dutch law between ITR 2012 and U. Dori Groaipd 39.78% of the outstanding shares are condrole

U. Dori Group Ltd (‘U Dori Group’) (32.11% throughjointly controlled partnership formed under Dutatv
between ITR 2012 and ITR Dori B.V. (of which it del 50% of the shares) and 7.67% through a jointly
controlled company formed under Dutch law betweER R012 and U. Dori Group). The remaining 20.44% of
the outstanding shares are held by the public.

The Company holds and owns (directly and indiggcZB Polish companies. These companies are actithe
development and sale of units, primarily apartmeintsnulti-family residential real-estate projetdsindividual
customers in Poland and lease real estate to tharties. For additional information see Note 1.bthe
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting principles

The Company’s financial statements have been pedpamder the option of clause 362.8 of Part 9 afkBd of
the Netherlands Civil Code, meaning that the actiogrprinciples and measurement basis of the Cogipan
financial statements are similar to those appliégt respect to the Consolidated Financial Statemésge Notes

2 and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statemeptg)ept for the valuation of subsidiaries which eatued
using the net asset value method. The Company ¢éimlaBtatements have been prepared in conformitiy wi
generally accepted accounting principles in thehsigands (‘Dutch GAAP’), whereas the Consolidated
Financial Statements have been prepared in acamdaith International Financial Reporting Standards
(‘IFRS’) as adopted by the EU as described in Niote the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue from consulting services represents feagyet by the Company to its subsidiaries; this nmeds
eliminated upon consolidation.
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3. General and administrative expense

For the year ended 31 Decembe 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

External service 1,377 793
Remuneration fee 2,860 2,499
Othel 200 103
Total 4,437 3,395

4, Directors’ remuneration

Key Management Board personnel compensation
Apart from the compensation listed below, thereemeo further benefits, in the periods ended 31 Dibes

2014 and 31 December 2013. Key Management Boabpeel compensation, payable by the Group, can be
presented as follows:

As at 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Salary and other short term employee benefits 37,4 1,534
Management bonus 67 582
Subtotal - Mr Shraga Weisman 1,504 2,116
Salary and other short term employee benefits 510 522

Management bonus 16 131

ked to financial rest - -
Current value of the potential benefits from theeintive plan linked to the

share price performance (not paid)* 247 -
Subtotal - Mr Tomasz tapiski 773 653
Salary and other short term employee benefits 297 311
Management bonus 15 222
Incentive plan linked to financial results 257 R
Current value of the potential benefits from theeintive plan linked to the

share price performance (not paid)* 172 -
Subtotal - Mr Andrzej Gutowski 741 533
Total 3,018 3,302

* For additional information see note 35

Mr Peter Dudolenski and Mr Ronen Ashkenazi areemtitled to any remuneration from the Company amd n
from any of the Company’s subsidiaries.

According to the conditions of the termination agnent concluded in 2008 with Mr Kerem, former Riest

of the Management Board and former Chief Execu®fficer of the Company, the consulting agreement
between him and the Company and its subsidiaryredpas of end of March 2009 (‘Expiration Date’).
Mr Kerem is entitled to a bonus equal to 0.5% @f fine-tax profits generated by projects that wevaea by
the Company as at the Expiration Date. This corschawever only those projects which are based emplibts

of land with validated zoning conditions or withetialid master plans. Moreover, Mr Kerem is erditte an
additional bonus equal to 2.5% of the pre-tax prgdéinerated by the projects that were in constnabr were
completed as at the Expiration Date.
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4.

Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

Supervisory Board remuneration

The supervisory directors are entitled to an anfemlof EUR 8,900 plus an amount of EUR 1,500 pmard
meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by telephoneYinguthe year ended 31 December 2014, the Supeyviso
Board consisted of five members. One Supervisorgr8anember (Mr Arie Mientkavich) has waived his
remuneration and thus did not receive any paymemh fthe Company. The total amount due in respect of
Supervisory Board fees during 2014 is PLN 253 thads(EUR 60 thousand; 2013: PLN 281 thousand (EUR
67 thousand)) and can be presented as follows:

As at 31 Decembe 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

Mr Mark Segal 69 72
Mr Yair Shilha 69 81
Mr Reuven Sharo 69 78
Mr Przemyslaw Kowalcz 46 50
Total 253 281

(*) The amounts above were translated from EUR Rubsh Zlotys (PLN) using the average exchange Ratblished by the NBP.

For additional information about transactions withnagement Board and Supervisory Board see Note 8&
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Net finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

Interests and fees on granted loans to subsidiaries 10,337 9,402
Interest income on bank deposits 73 254
Finance income 10,410 9,656
Interest expense on bonds measured at amortizéd cos (9,645) (8,352)
Foreign exchange loss (15) -

Commissions and fees (1,035) (1,874)
Other (709) -

Finance expense (11,404) (10,226)
Net finance income/(expense) (994) (570)
Income tax

No Dutch income taxes have been recorded, primbgbause current year’s tax charge has been offsénst

the carry forward of taxable losses from the pBsalizations of these carry forward tax lossesdagendent
upon generating sufficient taxable income in thaqokthat the carry forward tax losses are realiBabked on

all available information, it is not probable ththe carry forward tax losses are realizable andefbee no
deferred tax asset is recognized.

The Company is not recognizing deferred tax assptsax losses carried forward in the Netherlandse T
accumulated Dutch tax losses available for carmwdéod as per 31 December 2014 are estimated to be
PLN 7,177 thousand (2013: PLN 6,921 thousand).
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7.

Personnel

The Company did not employ any personnel during fihancial years ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013.

Investment in subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Company are valued at ttetiasset value.

The movements in subsidiaries are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

(restated*)
Balance at beginning of the year 454,745 439,196
Investments in subsidiaries 18,450 -
Net result subsidiaries during the year (14,472) 7,211
Dividends received during the year (17,200) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interest - (1,527)
Balance at end of the year 441,523 454,745

*  Certain amounts shown do not correspond to then@@any Financial Statements as at 31 December 20d3eflect adjustments made
as detailed in Note 2(f) to the Consolidated FinahStatements (see pages 59 and 60).

The Company holds and owns (directly and indirgctty Polish companies. These companies are actitreei
development and sale of units, primarily apartmentsnulti-family residential real-estate projetdsindividual
customers in Poland and lease real estate to fhartles. For additional information see Note 1.bthe
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Loan granted to subsidiaries

Loans as at 31 December 2014:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL Currency interest rate maturity Capital interest and fees value

Ronson Development Finco PLN 6% 2016 10 293 - 303

Ronson Development Skyline PLN 6% 2018 7,350 3,092 - 10,442
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.25% 2017 79,235 2,770  (1,004) 81,001
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 5.05% 2016 23,550 913 (228) 24,235
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.0% 2018 28,000 929 (419) 28,510
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.75% 2018 5,000 184 (73) 5,111
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.75% 2018 9,000 279 (134) 9,145

Total loans granted to Subsidiaries 152,145 8,460 (1,858) 158,747
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9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Loan granted to subsidiaries (cont’d)

Loans as at 31 December 2013:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL Currency interest rate maturity Capital interest and fees value

Ronson Development Finco PLN 6% 2016 10 293 - 303

Ronson Development Skyline PLN 6% 2014 7,350 2,651 - 10,001
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.75% 2014 2,500 4,814 - 7,314
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 5.45% 2014 - 3,956 - 3,956
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.25% 2017 79,805 2,502 (1,413) 80,894
Wibor 6M +

Ronson Development Finco PLN 5.05% 2016 23,550 995 (385) 24,160

Total loans granted to subsidiaries 113,215 15,211  (1,798) 126,628

The loans are not secured.

Shareholders’ equity

The authorized share capital of the Company cansisB00,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value €Huod.
number of issued and outstanding ordinary sharest &1 December 2014 amounted to 272,360,000 (as at
31 December 2013: 272,360,000 shares).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no divideasl distributed to the Company’s shareholdersirigur

the year ended 31 December 2013, a dividend ammutai PLN 8,170,800 in total or PLN 0.03 per ordjna
share, was distributed.

According to Dutch Law, the Company has an amonat 6f tax) of PLN 3,912 thousand (2013: PLN 4,096
thousand) as legal reserve relating to unrealieedlts of changes in fair value of an investmeapprty owned

by one of the Company’s subsidiaries. This legs¢ree is not available for dividend distribution.

Floating rate bond loans

As at 31 December 2014, the floating rate bonds loamprise a loan principal amount of PLN 161,300
thousand plus accrued interest of PLN 924 thousainds costs directly attributed to the bond isseafwehich
are amortized based on the effective interest ni@thmounting to PLN 2,475 thousand. As 31 Decerbéd

all covenants were met.

For additional information see Notes 28 and 2h&Qonsolidated Financial Statements.

Commitments and contingencies

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had no commithand contingencies.

Related party transactions

During the financial years ended 31 December 20ddl &1 December 2013, respectively, there were no
transactions between the Company on the one haddt{sashareholders, their affiliates and otheatesl parties
which would qualify as not being at arm’s length.
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14. Financial risk management, objectives and polies

For a description of the Company’s financial riskmagement, objectives and policies reference isentad
Note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

15. Information about agreed-upon engagements of hCompany’s auditor
Information about audit agreements and the valuges those agreements is disclosed below:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2013
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Audit remuneratiof” 635 630
Reimbursed audit review costs (189) (192)
Other services 43 -
Total audit remuneration for the expense of the Comany 489 438

@ Audit remuneration includes amounts paid and du¢h&o Company’s auditors worldwide for professionaivices
related to the audit and review of unconsolidated aonsolidated financial statements of the Compang its
subsidiaries for the relevant year (excluding feedax advisory services). The part of the aueé felated to the Dutch
auditor amounted to PLN 203 thousand (EUR 49 thaljstor 2014 and PLN 195 thousand (EUR 47 thousaod) f
2013.

@ Costs in respect of the audit review of the Compafigss and third quarter reports have been reiméitsy one of the
Company’s shareholders. For an explanation referenceade to Note 39 to the Consolidated Financiate®tents
(under ‘Other’).

16. Subsequent events
For a description of the Company’s subsequent syarference is made to Note 44 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Rotterdam,
19 February 2015

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tapiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer I8a and Marketing Director
Ronen Ashkenazi Peter Dudolenski

The Supervisory Board

Mark Segall Arie Mientkavich Przemyslaw Kowalczk

Reuven Sharoni Yair Shilhav
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Articles of Association rules regarding profit appropriation

In accordance with Article 30 of the Articles of #aiation,

1) the Management Board, with prior approval of th@&uisory Board, shall determine which portion loé t
profits — the positive balance of the income statieim shall be reserved. The profit remaining dbalat the
disposal of the general meeting;

2) profit distributions may only be made to the extdre equity exceeds the paid and called up pathef
capital increased with the reserves which must dmtained pursuant to the law;

3) Dividends shall be paid after the adoption of thrnidal Accounts evidencing that the payment of d@inits
is lawful. The General Meeting shall, upon a pr@bad the Management Board, which proposal must be
approved by the Supervisory Board, at least detesrfi) the method of payment in case payments adem
in cash (ii) the date and (iii) the address or adsies on which the dividends shall be payable;

4) the Management Board, with prior approval of thg&uisory Board, may resolve to pay an interim
dividend provided the requirement of the seconchgraaph has been complied with as shown by interim
accounts drawn up in accordance with the provisicthe law;

5) the General meeting may, subject to due observaittes provision of paragraph 2 and upon a propbsgal
the Management Board, which proposal has been epprby the Supervisory Board, resolve to make
distributions out of a reserve which need not tarfzéntained by virtue of the law;

6) cash payments in relation to shares if and in aagahe distributions are payable outside the ét&hds,
shall be made in the currency of the country wileeeshares are listed and in accordance with thkcaple
rules of the country in which the shares of the @any have been admitted to an official listing on a
regulated stock exchange. If such currency is metsime as the legal tender in the Netherlandantoaint
shall be calculated against the exchange raterdigted by the Management Board at the end of the day
prior to the day on which the General meeting shedblve to make the distributions in accordancia wi
paragraph.1l above. If and in as far as the Companthe first day on which the distribution is palgab
pursuant to governmental measures or other exirargdcircumstances beyond its control, is not able
pay on the place outside the Netherlands or inréiievant foreign currency, the Management Board is
authorized to determine to that extent that theygayts shall be made in euros and on one or mocelia
the Netherlands. In such case the provisions ofitstesentence of this paragraph shall not apply.

7) the General meeting may, upon a proposal by thealfiag Directors, which proposal was approved by the
Supervisory Board, resolve to pay dividends, or endistributions out of a reserve which need nobéo
maintained by virtue of the law, wholly or partiaih the form of shares in the capital of the Compa

8) a claim of a shareholder to receive a distribuémpires after 5 years;

9) for the calculation of the amount of profit disution, the shares held by the Company shall bauded.

Proposed profit appropriation

For the year ended 31 December 2014, as at thefltitis report, Management proposes to allocaentit loss

for the year 2014 amounting to PLN 15,431 thoustanEetained earnings. This proposal has been teflén

the Company's Statement of Financial Position deD8cember 2014. However, in line with the prewaili
dividend policy, management and the Board of Supery Directors will be evaluating the possibilibf
declaring a dividend during 2015 in light of ther@many's financial position, taking into accounttfi¢ current
and expected balance sheet of the Company, witbectibservance of the all balance-sheet linked debt
covenants, (ii) the financial needs of the Compaimying to be ranked amongst leading residentiatlbgpers

in Poland and (iii) changing market environment.

Subsequent events — other information
Refer to Note 44 of the Consolidated Financialetants (page 115).

Auditor’s report
The auditor’s report is taken up on pages 44 thnalg)
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